
BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC
Form S-4
June 26, 2007
As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 26, 2007.

Registration No. 333-_________

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form S-4
REGISTRATION STATEMENT
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

6036
(Primary Standard Industrial
Classification Code Number)

34-3510455
(I.R.S. Employer

Identification Number)

Michael P. Daly
President and Chief Executive Officer

24 North Street 24 North Street
Pittsfield, Massachusetts 01201 Pittsfield, Massachusetts 01201

(413) 443-5601 (413) 443-5601
(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including (Name, address, including zip code, and telephone

area code, of registrant�s principal executive offices) number, including area code, of agent for service)

Copies to:

Lawrence M. F. Spaccasi Charles J. Ferry
Scott A. Brown Paul F. Wessell

Muldoon Murphy & Aguggia LLP Rhoads & Sinon LLP
5101 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W. One South Market Square, 12th Floor

Washington, D.C. 20016 Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17108
(202) 362-0840 (717) 233-5731

Facsimile: (202) 966-9409 Facsimile: (717) 231-6669

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: As soon as practicable after the effective date of this
Registration Statement and the conditions to the consummation of the merger described herein have been satisfied or
waived.

If the securities being registered on this Form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance
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If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and
list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.    o

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities
Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.    o

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of each class of securities to be registered
Amount to
be registered(1)

Proposed maximum
offering price
per share(2)

Proposed maximum
aggregate
offering price(2)

Amount of
registration fee(2)

Common Stock, $.01 par value 2,061,513 Not Applicable $65,701,043 $2,018

(1)  Represents the estimated maximum number of shares of common stock issuable by Berkshire Hills
Bancorp, Inc. upon the consummation of the merger with Factory Point Bancorp, Inc. and computed based on the
estimated maximum number of shares that may be exchanged for the securities being registered. Pursuant to Rule 416,
this Registration Statement also covers an indeterminate number of shares of common stock as may become issuable
as a result of stock splits, stock dividends or similar transactions.

(2)  Pursuant to Rule 457(f) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and solely for the purpose of
calculating the registration fee, the proposed maximum aggregate offering price is based on the average of the high
and low prices of Factory Point Bancorp, Inc. common stock on June 22, 2007 ($18.80) and the estimated maximum
number of shares of Factory Point Bancorp, Inc. common stock to be received by Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. in the
merger, which was reduced by the amount of cash expected to be paid by Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. in the merger.

The registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the
registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in
accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or until the registration statement shall become effective on such
date as the Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.
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BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP LOGO            FACTORY POINT BANCORP LOGO

MERGER PROPOSED � YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT

The boards of directors of Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. and Factory Point Bancorp, Inc. have agreed to a merger of our companies.  If the
merger is completed, each share of Factory Point Bancorp common stock will be converted into the right to elect to receive either 0.5844 shares
of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock or $19.50, subject to proration so that 80% of the outstanding Factory Point Bancorp shares are
converted into Berkshire Hills common stock and the balance is converted into the cash consideration.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s shareholders
will continue to own their existing shares.  After completion of the merger, we expect that current Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders will
own approximately 82% of the combined company and Factory Point Bancorp shareholders will own approximately 18% of the combined
company.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol �BHLB.�  On
________________, 2007, the closing price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock was $_______.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp is offering
approximately 1,919,527 shares of its common stock to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders (2,061,513 shares assuming all 303,701 outstanding
stock options of Factory Point Bancorp as of May 31, 2007 are exercised before the closing of the merger).

We expect the merger to generally be tax-free to holders of Factory Point Bancorp common stock for federal income tax purposes except to the
extent that they receive cash, including the cash consideration in the merger and any cash received instead of fractional shares of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock.

We cannot complete the merger unless we obtain the necessary government approvals and unless the shareholders of both companies approve
the merger agreement.  Each of us is asking our shareholders to consider and vote on this merger proposal at our respective meetings of
shareholders.  Whether or not you plan to attend your company�s meeting, please take the time to vote by completing and mailing the enclosed
proxy card to the appropriate company.  If you sign, date and mail your proxy card without indicating how you want to vote, your proxy will be
counted as a vote �FOR� the merger and the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.  If you do not return your proxy card, or if you
do not instruct your broker how to vote any shares held for you in �street name,� the effect will be a vote against the merger agreement.

The places, dates and times of the shareholders meetings are as follows:

For Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders: For Factory Point Bancorp shareholders:
The Crowne Plaza Hotel The Equinox Hotel
One West Street 3567 Main Street
Pittsfield, Massachusetts Manchester Village, Vermont
______________, 2007 ______________, 2007
__:__ _.m., local time __:__ _.m., local time

This document contains a more complete description of the shareholders meetings and the terms of the merger.  We urge you to review this
entire document carefully.  You may also obtain information about Berkshire Hills Bancorp from documents it has filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.  We enthusiastically support the merger and recommend that you vote in favor of the merger agreement.

Michael P. Daly Guy H. Boyer
President and Chief Executive Officer President and Chief Executive Officer
Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or
disapproved of the securities to be issued under this joint proxy statement/prospectus or determined if this
joint proxy statement/prospectus is accurate or adequate. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal
offense. The securities we are offering through this document are not savings or deposit accounts or other
obligations of any bank or non-bank subsidiary of either of our companies, and they are not insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Savings Association Insurance Fund, the Bank Insurance Fund or
any other governmental agency.

Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus dated ______________, 2007
and first mailed to shareholders on or about ______________, 2007
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This document incorporates important business and financial information about Berkshire Hills Bancorp from documents filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission that have not been included in or delivered with this document. You may read and copy these documents
at the Securities and Exchange Commission�s public reference facilities. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for information about these
facilities. This information is also available at the Internet site the SEC maintains at http://www.sec.gov.  See �Where You Can Find More
Information� on page ____.

You also may request copies of these documents from Berkshire Hills Bancorp.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp will provide you with copies of these
documents, without charge, upon written or oral request to:

Berkshire Hills Bancorp

24 North Street

Pittsfield, Massachusetts  01201

Attention: Ann-Marie Racine

Telephone: (413) 236-3239

If you are a Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholder and would like to request documents from Berkshire Hills Bancorp, please do so by
________________, 2007 to receive them before the Berkshire Hills Bancorp special meeting. If you are a Factory Point Bancorp shareholder
and would like to request documents from Berkshire Hills Bancorp, please do so by ________________, 2007 to receive them before the
Factory Point Bancorp special meeting.
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BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP, INC.

24 North Street

Pittsfield, Massachusetts 01201

Notice of Special Meeting of Shareholders
to be held __________________, 2007

A special meeting of shareholders of Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. will be held at __:___ __m., local time, on ______________, 2007 at The
Crown Plaza Hotel, One West Street, Pittsfield, Massachusetts.  Any adjournments or postponements of the special meeting will be held at the
same location.

At the special meeting, you will be asked to:

1.  Consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May
14, 2007, by and between Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. and Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.  A copy of the merger
agreement is included as Annex A to the accompanying joint proxy statement/prospectus;

2.  Consider and vote upon a proposal to adjourn the special meeting to a later date or dates, if
necessary, to permit further solicitation of proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to
approve the merger agreement; and

3.  Transact such other business as may be properly presented at the special meeting and any
adjournments or postponements of the special meeting.

The enclosed joint proxy statement/prospectus describes the merger agreement and the proposed merger in detail.  We urge you to read these
materials carefully.  The enclosed joint proxy statement/prospectus forms a part of this notice.

The board of directors of Berkshire Hills Bancorp unanimously recommends that Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders vote �FOR� the
proposal to approve the merger agreement and �FOR� the proposal to adjourn the special meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional
proxies to vote in favor of the merger agreement.

The board of directors of Berkshire Hills Bancorp has fixed the close of business on _____________, 2007 as the record date for determining the
shareholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the special meeting and any adjournments or postponements of the special meeting.

Your vote is very important.  Your proxy is being solicited by the Berkshire Hills Bancorp board of directors. The
proposal to approve the merger agreement must be approved by the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the
outstanding shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock entitled to vote in order for the proposed merger to be
consummated. Whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting in person, we urge you to complete and mail the
enclosed proxy card, in the accompanying envelope, which requires no postage if mailed in the United States. You
may revoke your proxy at any time before the special meeting. If you attend the special meeting and vote in person,
your proxy vote will not be used.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Gerald A. Denmark
Secretary

Pittsfield, Massachusetts
_________________, 2007
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FACTORY POINT BANCORP, INC.
4928 Main Street
Manchester Center, Vermont 05255

Notice of Special Meeting of Shareholders
to be held ______________, 2007

A special meeting of shareholders of Factory Point Bancorp, Inc. will be held at __:__ __.m., local time, on _________________, 2007 at The
Equinox Hotel, 3567 Main Street, Manchester Village, Vermont.  Any adjournments or postponements of the special meeting will be held at the
same location.

At the special meeting, you will be asked to:

1.  Consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May
14, 2007, by and between Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. and Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.  A copy of the merger
agreement is included as Annex A to the accompanying joint proxy statement/prospectus;

2.  Consider and vote upon a proposal to adjourn the special meeting to a later date or dates, if
necessary, to permit further solicitation of proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to
approve the merger agreement; and

3.  Transact such other business as may be properly presented at the special meeting and any
adjournments or postponements of the special meeting.

The enclosed joint proxy statement/prospectus describes the merger agreement and the proposed merger in detail.  We urge you to read these
materials carefully.  The enclosed joint proxy statement/prospectus forms a part of this notice.

The board of directors of Factory Point Bancorp unanimously recommends that Factory Point Bancorp shareholders vote �FOR� the
proposal to approve the merger agreement and �FOR� the proposal to adjourn the special meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional
proxies to vote in favor of the merger agreement.

The board of directors of Factory Point Bancorp has fixed the close of business on _____________, 2007 as the record date for determining the
shareholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the special meeting and any adjournments or postponements of the special meeting.

Your vote is very important.  Your proxy is being solicited by the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors. The proposal
to approve the merger agreement must be approved by the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the outstanding
shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock entitled to vote in order for the proposed merger to be consummated.
Whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting in person, we urge you to complete and mail the enclosed proxy
card, in the accompanying envelope, which requires no postage if mailed in the United States. You may revoke your
proxy at any time before the special meeting. If you attend the special meeting and vote in person, your proxy vote
will not be used.

Under Delaware law, if the merger is completed, Factory Point Bancorp shareholders of record who do not vote to approve the merger
agreement and otherwise comply with the applicable provisions of Delaware law pertaining to dissenters� rights will be entitled to exercise
dissenters� rights and obtain payment in cash of the fair value of their shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock by following the
procedures set forth in detail in the enclosed joint proxy statement/prospectus.  A copy of the section of the Delaware General Corporation Law
pertaining to dissenters� rights is included as Annex D to the accompanying joint proxy statement/prospectus.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Edgar T. Campbell
Secretary
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Manchester Center, Vermont
_____________, 2007
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER AND THE SPECIAL MEETINGS

Q:  What am I being asked to vote on? What is the proposed transaction?

A:  You are being asked to vote on the approval of a merger agreement that provides for the acquisition of
Factory Point Bancorp by Berkshire Hills Bancorp.  A copy of the merger agreement is provided as Annex A to this
document.  Each of the Factory Point Bancorp and Berkshire Hills Bancorp boards of directors has determined that the
proposed merger is in the best interests of its respective shareholders, has unanimously approved the merger
agreement and recommends that its respective shareholders vote �FOR� the approval of the merger agreement.

Q:  What will Factory Point shareholders be entitled to receive in the merger?

A:  Under the merger agreement, at the election of each Factory Point shareholder, each share of Factory Point
Bancorp common stock will be exchanged for either 0.5844 shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock or
$19.50 in cash.  Each Factory Point shareholder may elect either of these options or each Factory Point shareholder
may elect to exchange some of his or her Factory Point Bancorp shares for cash and some of his or her Factory Point
Bancorp shares for Berkshire Hills Bancorp shares.

Elections will be limited by, among other things, a requirement that 80% of the total number of outstanding shares of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock be exchanged for Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.  Therefore, the form of consideration received will depend in part on
the elections of other Factory Point Bancorp shareholders.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp will not issue fractional shares in the merger.  Instead, each Factory Point shareholder will receive a cash payment,
without interest, for the value of any fraction of a share of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock that such shareholder would otherwise be
entitled to receive.  See �Description of the Merger�Consideration to be Received in the Merger� on page ___ and �Description of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp Capital Stock� on page ___.

Q:  What dividends will be paid after the merger?

A:  Berkshire Hills Bancorp currently pays a quarterly dividend of $0.14 per share.  Although Berkshire Hills
Bancorp has paid quarterly dividends on its common stock without interruption since November 2000, there is no
guarantee that Berkshire Hills Bancorp will continue to pay dividends on its common stock.  All dividends on
Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock are declared at the discretion of the Berkshire Hills Bancorp board of
directors.

Q:  How does a Factory Point shareholder elect to receive cash, stock or a combination of both for his or her
Factory Point Bancorp stock?

A:  For each Factory Point shareholder, a form for making an election should have been included with this joint
proxy statement/prospectus.  For the election to be effective, the properly completed election form, along with the
Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates or an appropriate guarantee of delivery, must be sent to and received by
Registrar and Transfer Company, the exchange agent, on or before 5:00 p.m., Eastern time, on ______________,
2007.  The election form should not be sent together with your proxy card.  Instead, use the separate envelope
specifically provided for the election form and your stock certificates.  If a timely election is not made, you will be
allocated Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and/or cash depending on the elections made by other shareholders.

Q:  How does a Factory Point shareholder exchange his or her stock certificates?

A:  If an election is made, the Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates or an appropriate guarantee of delivery
must be returned with the election form.  Shortly after the merger, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s transfer agent will
allocate cash and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock among Factory Point Bancorp shareholders, consistent with

Edgar Filing: BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC - Form S-4

12



their elections and the allocation and proration procedures in the merger agreement.  If a
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Factory Point shareholder does not submit an election form, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s transfer agent will send instructions on how and where to
surrender the Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates after the merger is completed.  Please do not send Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates
with the proxy card.

Q:  What are the tax consequences of the merger to Factory Point shareholders?

A:  The tax consequence of the merger to Factor Point shareholders will depend on whether only cash, only
Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock, or a combination of cash and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock was
received in exchange for shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock.  If shares were exchanged solely for
Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock, no gain or loss should be recognized except with respect to the cash received
instead of any fractional share of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.  If shares were exchanged solely for cash,
gain or loss should be recognized on the exchange.  If shares were exchanged for a combination of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock and cash, capital gain should be recognized, but not any loss, on the exchange.  Because the
allocations of cash and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock received will depend on the elections of other Factory
Point Bancorp shareholders, the actual tax consequences of the merger will not be known until the allocations are
completed.

Q:  Are Factory Point shareholders entitled to dissenters� rights?

A:  Yes.  Delaware law provides dissenters� rights in the merger to Factory Point shareholders.  This means that
Factory Point shareholders are legally entitled to receive payment in cash of the fair value of their shares, excluding
any appreciation in value that results from the merger.  To maintain your dissenters� rights you must (1) deliver written
notice of your intent to demand payment for your shares to Factory Point Bancorp before the special meeting of
Factory Point Bancorp shareholders or at the special meeting but before the vote is taken and (2) not vote in favor of
the merger.  This notice must be in addition to and separate from any abstention or any vote, in person or by proxy,
cast against approval of the merger.  Neither voting against, abstaining from voting, or failing to vote on the adoption
of the merger agreement will constitute notice of intent to demand payment or demand for payment of fair value under
Delaware law.  Notices should be addressed to Factory Point Bancorp�s Secretary and sent to 4928 Main Street,
Manchester Village, Vermont 05255.  Your failure to follow exactly the procedures specified under Delaware law will
result in the loss of your dissenters� rights.  A copy of the section of the Delaware General Corporation Law pertaining
to dissenters� rights is provided as Annex D to this document.  See �Rights of Dissenting Shareholders� on page ___.

Q:  Why do Factory Point Bancorp and Berkshire Hills Bancorp want to merge?

A:  Factory Point Bancorp believes that the proposed merger will provide Factory Point Bancorp shareholders
with substantial benefits, and Berkshire Hills Bancorp believes that the merger will further its strategic growth plans. 
As a larger company, Berkshire Hills Bancorp can provide the capital and resources that Factory Point Bancorp needs
to compete more effectively and to offer a broader array of products and services to better serve its banking customers.
To review the reasons for the merger in more detail, see �Description of the Merger�Factory Point Bancorp�s Reasons
for the Merger� on page ___ and �Description of the Merger�Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s Reasons for the Merger and
Recommendation of the Board of Directors� on page ___.

Q:  What vote is required to approve the merger agreement?

A:  Holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of both Factory Point Bancorp common stock entitled to vote
and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock entitled to vote must vote in favor of the proposal to approve the merger
agreement.

Q:  When and where is the Factory Point Bancorp special meeting?
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A:  The special meeting of Factory Point Bancorp shareholders is scheduled to take place at The Equinox Hotel,
3567 Main Street, Manchester Village, Vermont at __:__ __.m., local time, on _______________, 2007.
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Q:  Who is entitled to vote at the Factory Point Bancorp special meeting?

A:  Holders of shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock at the close of business on _______________,
2007, which is the record date, are entitled to vote on the proposal to adopt the merger agreement. As of the record
date, ________ shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock were outstanding and entitled to vote.

Q:  If I plan to attend the Factory Point Bancorp special meeting in person, should I still return my proxy?

A:  Yes. Whether or not you plan to attend the Factory Point Bancorp special meeting, you should complete and
return the enclosed proxy card.  The failure of a Factory Point Bancorp shareholder to vote in person or by proxy will
have the same effect as a vote �AGAINST� the merger agreement.

Q:  What do I need to do now to vote my shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock?

A:  After you have carefully read and considered the information contained in this joint proxy
statement/prospectus, please complete, sign, date and mail your proxy card in the enclosed return envelope as soon as
possible. This will enable your shares to be represented at the special meeting. You may also vote in person at the
special meeting.  If you do not return a properly executed proxy card and do not vote at the special meeting, this will
have the same effect as a vote against the merger agreement. If you sign, date and send in your proxy card, but you do
not indicate how you want to vote, your proxy will be voted in favor of adoption of the merger agreement. You may
change your vote or revoke your proxy before the special meeting by filing with the Secretary of Factory Point
Bancorp a duly executed revocation of proxy, submitting a new proxy card with a later date, or voting in person at the
special meeting.

Q:  If my shares are held in �street name� by my broker, will my broker automatically vote my shares for me?

A:  No.  Your broker will not be able to vote your shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock on the
proposal to adopt the merger agreement unless you provide instructions on how to vote.  Please instruct you broker
how to vote your shares, following the directions that your broker provides.  If you do not provide instructions to your
broker on the proposal to approve the merger agreement, your shares will not be voted, and this will have the effect of
voting against the merger agreement.  Please check the voting form used by your broker to see if it offers telephone or
Internet voting.

Q:  When and where is the Berkshire Hills Bancorp special meeting?

A:  The special meeting of Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders is scheduled to take place at The Crowne Plaza
Hotel, One West Street, Pittsfield, Massachusetts at __:___ __.m., local time, on _______________, 2007.

Q:  Who is entitled to vote at the Berkshire Hills Bancorp special meeting?

A:  Holders of shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock at the close of business on _______________,
2007, which is the record date, are entitled to vote on the proposal to adopt the merger agreement. As of the record
date, __________ shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock were outstanding and entitled to vote.

Q:  If I plan to attend the Berkshire Hills Bancorp special meeting in person, should I still return my proxy?

A:  Yes. Whether or not you plan to attend the Berkshire Hills Bancorp special meeting, you should complete
and return the enclosed proxy card.  The failure of a Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholder to vote in person or by proxy
will have the same effect as a vote �AGAINST� the merger agreement.
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Q:  What do I need to do now to vote my shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock?

A:  After you have carefully read and considered the information contained in this joint proxy
statement/prospectus, please complete, sign, date and mail your proxy card in the enclosed return envelope as soon as
possible. This will enable your shares to be represented at the special meeting. You may also vote
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in person at the special meeting. If you do not return a properly executed proxy card and do not vote at the special meeting, this will have the
same effect as a vote against the merger agreement. If you sign, date and send in your proxy card, but you do not indicate how you want to vote,
your proxy will be voted in favor of adoption of the merger agreement. You may change your vote or revoke your proxy prior to the special
meeting by filing with the Secretary of Berkshire Hills Bancorp a duly executed revocation of proxy, submitting a new proxy card with a later
date, or voting in person at the special meeting.

Q:  If my shares are held in �street name� by my broker, will my broker automatically vote my shares for me?

A:  No.  Your broker will not be able to vote your shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock on the
proposal to adopt the merger agreement unless you provide instructions on how to vote.  Please instruct you broker
how to vote your shares, following the directions that your broker provides.  If you do not provide instructions to your
broker on the proposal to approve the merger agreement, your shares will not be voted, and this will have the effect of
voting against the merger agreement.  Please check the voting form used by your broker to see if it offers telephone or
Internet voting.

Q:  When is the merger expected to be completed?

A:  We will try to complete the merger as soon as possible.  Before that happens, the merger agreement must be
approved by both Factory Point Bancorp and Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders and we must obtain the necessary
regulatory approvals. Assuming holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock vote in favor of the merger agreement and we obtain the
other necessary approvals, we expect to complete the merger late in the third calendar quarter of 2007 or early in the
fourth quarter.

Q:  Is completion of the merger subject to any conditions besides shareholder approval?

A:  Yes. The transaction must receive the required regulatory approvals, and there are other customary closing
conditions that must be satisfied.  To review the conditions of the merger in more detail, see �Description of the
Merger�Conditions to Completing the Merger� on page ___.

Q:  Who can answer my other questions?

A:  If you have more questions about the merger, or how to submit your proxy or if you need additional copies of
this joint proxy statement/prospectus or the enclosed proxy form, both Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point
Bancorp Shareholders should contact:

MacKenzie Partners, Inc.
105 Madison Avenue

14th Floor
New York, New York 10016

(800) 322-2885

Bank and brokers should call:
(212) 929-5500

4
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information in this joint proxy statement/prospectus and may not contain all of the information important to
you. To understand the merger more fully, you should read this entire document carefully, including the documents attached to this joint proxy
statement/prospectus.

The Companies

Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc.
24 North Street
Pittsfield, Massachusetts 01201
(413) 443-5601

Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc., a Delaware corporation, is a savings and loan holding company headquartered in Pittsfield, Massachusetts that
was incorporated and commenced operations in 2000.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock is listed on The NASDAQ Global Select Market
under the symbol �BHLB.�  Berkshire Hills Bancorp conducts its operations primarily through Berkshire Bank, a Massachusetts chartered savings
bank with 31 full-service offices throughout Western Massachusetts and Northeastern New York.  Berkshire Bank offers a full complement of
deposit, lending, investment and insurance products from a team of employees with extensive experience in banking, insurance and investment
management.  At March 31, 2007, Berkshire Hills Bancorp had total assets of $2.17 billion, total deposits of $1.54 billion and total shareholders�
equity of $263.1 million.

Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.

4928 Main Street
Manchester Center, Vermont 05255
(802) 362-2424

Factory Point Bancorp, Inc., a Delaware corporation, is bank holding company headquartered in Manchester Center, Vermont that was
incorporated and commenced operations as a holding company in 1984.  Its primary business is operating its subsidiary, The Factory Point
National Bank of Manchester Center, which operates seven full-service community banking offices in Arlington, Dorset, Ludlow, Manchester
and Rutland, Vermont.  Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock is quoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol �FAPB.�  Its
primary business includes residential real estate lending (for portfolio and sale on the secondary market), small business loan and deposit
services as well as variety of consumer loan and deposit services.  Factory Point National Bank is chartered with trust powers and offers trust
and investment services in the markets it serves.  As of March 31, 2007, Factory Point Bancorp had total assets of $339.4 million, total deposits
of $274.6 million and total shareholder�s equity of $29.6 million.

Special Meeting of Berkshire Hills Bancorp Shareholders; Required Vote (page ___)

A special meeting of Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders is scheduled to be held at The Crowne Plaza Hotel, One West Main Street, Pittsfield,
Massachusetts at __:___ __.m., local time, on _____________, 2007.  At the special meeting, you will be asked to vote on a proposal to approve
the merger agreement between Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp.   You also will be asked to vote on a proposal to adjourn the
special meeting, if necessary, to permit further solicitation of proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the meeting to approve the
merger agreement.

Only Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders of record as of the close of business on _____________, 2007 are entitled to notice of, and to vote at,
the Berkshire Hills Bancorp special meeting and any adjournments or postponements of the meeting.

Approval of the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock entitled to vote.  As of the record date, there were 8,842,323 shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock outstanding.  The
directors and executive officers of Berkshire Hills Bancorp (and their affiliates), as a group, beneficially owned 307,456 shares of Berkshire
Hills Bancorp common stock, representing 3.5% of the outstanding shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock as of the record date. This
amount does not include shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of stock options.
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Special Meeting of Factory Point Shareholders; Required Vote (page ___)

A special meeting of Factory Point Bancorp shareholders is scheduled to be held at The Equinox Hotel, 3567 Main Street, Manchester Village,
Vermont at __:___ __.m., local time, on _____________, 2007.  At the special meeting, you will be asked to vote on a proposal to approve the
merger agreement between Factory Point Bancorp and Berkshire Hills Bancorp.   You also will be asked to vote on a proposal to adjourn the
special meeting, if necessary, to permit further solicitation of proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the meeting to approve the
merger agreement.

Only Factory Point Bancorp shareholders of record as of the close of business on _____________, 2007 are entitled to notice of, and to vote at,
the Factory Point Bancorp special meeting and any adjournments or postponements of the meeting.

Approval of the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock entitled to vote.  As of the record date, there were __________ shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock outstanding.  The
directors and executive officers of Factory Point Bancorp (and their affiliates), as a group, beneficially owned _________ shares of Factory
Point Bancorp common stock, representing _____% of the outstanding shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock as of the record date. 
The directors of Factory Point Bancorp, who collectively own _________ shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock (_____% of the
outstanding shares of Factory Point Bancorp as of the record date) have agreed to vote their shares in favor of the merger at the special meeting. 
This amount does not include shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of stock options.

The Merger and the Merger Agreement (page ___)

Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s acquisition of Factory Point Bancorp is governed by a merger agreement.  The merger agreement provides that, if all
of the conditions are satisfied or waived, Factory Point Bancorp will be merged with and into Berkshire Hills Bancorp, with Berkshire Hills
Bancorp as the surviving entity.  We encourage you to read the merger agreement, which is included as Annex A to this joint proxy
statement/prospectus.

What Factory Point Bancorp Shareholders Will Receive in the Merger (page ___)

Under the merger agreement, at your election, each share of Factory Point Bancorp common stock you own will be exchanged for either 0.5844
shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock or $19.50 in cash.

Comparative Market Prices

The following table shows the closing price per share of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and the equivalent price per share of Factory
Point Bancorp common stock, giving effect to the merger, on May 14, 2007, which is the last day on which shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock traded preceding the public announcement of the proposed merger, and on _______________, 2007, the most recent practicable
date prior to the mailing of this joint proxy statement/prospectus.  The equivalent price per share of Factory Point Bancorp common stock was
computed by multiplying the price of a share of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock by the 0.5844 exchange ratio.  See �Description of the
Merger�Consideration to be Received in the Merger� on page ___.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp
Common Stock

Equivalent Price Per
Share of Factory Point
Bancorp Common Stock

May 14, 2007 $ 32.46 $ 18.97
_______________, 2007 $ $
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Recommendation of Factory Point Bancorp Board of Directors (page ___)

The Factory Point Bancorp board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement and the proposed merger. The Factory Point
Bancorp board believes that the merger agreement, including the merger contemplated by the merger agreement, is fair to, and in the best
interests of, Factory Point Bancorp and its shareholders, and therefore unanimously recommends that Factory Point Bancorp shareholders
vote �FOR� the proposal to approve the merger agreement.  In its reaching this decision, Factory Point Bancorp�s board of directors considered
many factors, which are described in the section captioned �Description of the Merger�Factory Point Bancorp�s Reasons for the Merger and
Recommendation of the Board of Directors� beginning on page ___.

Factory Point Bancorp�s Financial Advisor Believes the Merger Consideration is Fair to Shareholders (page ___)

In deciding to approve the merger, Factory Point Bancorp�s board of directors considered the opinion of McConnell, Budd & Romano, Inc. 
McConnell, Budd & Romano which served as financial advisor to Factory Point Bancorp�s board of directors, delivered its opinion dated
___________, 2007, that the merger consideration is fair to the holders of Factory Point Bancorp common stock from a financial point of view. 
A copy of this opinion is included as Annex C to the joint proxy statement/prospectus.  You should read the opinion carefully to understand the
procedures followed, assumptions made, matters considered and limitations of the review conducted by McConnell, Budd & Romano.  Factory
Point Bancorp has agreed to pay McConnell, Budd & Romano fees estimated to total approximately $823,000 for its services in connection with
the merger.

Recommendation of Berkshire Hills Bancorp Board of Directors (page ___)

The Berkshire Hills Bancorp board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement and the proposed merger. The Berkshire Hills
Bancorp board believes that the merger agreement, including the merger contemplated by the merger agreement, is fair to, and in the best
interests of, Berkshire Hills Bancorp and its shareholders, and therefore unanimously recommends that Berkshire Hills Bancorp
shareholders vote �FOR� the proposal to approve the merger agreement.  In reaching this decision, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of
directors considered many factors, which are described in the section captioned �Description of the Merger�Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s Reasons
for the Merger and Recommendation of the Board of Directors� beginning on page ___.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s Financial Advisor Believes the Merger Consideration is Fair to Shareholders (page ___)

In deciding to approve the merger, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors considered the opinion of Sandler O�Neill & Partners, L.P. 
Sandler O�Neill, which served as financial advisor to Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors, delivered its opinion dated May 14, 2007, that
the merger consideration is fair to the holders of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock from a financial point of view.  A copy of this opinion
is included as Annex B to the joint proxy statement/prospectus.  You should read the opinion carefully to understand the procedures followed,
assumptions made, matters considered and limitations of the review conducted by Sandler O�Neill.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp has agreed to pay
Sandler O�Neill fees totaling approximately $400,000 for its services in connection with the merger.

Regulatory Approvals (page ___)

Under the terms of the merger agreement, the merger cannot be completed unless it is first approved by the Massachusetts Board of Bank
Incorporation, the Massachusetts Division of Banks and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp filed the required
applications on _______________, 2007.  As of the date of this document, Berkshire Hills Bancorp has not received any regulatory approvals. 
While Berkshire Hills Bancorp does not know of any reason why it would not be able to obtain this approval in a timely manner, Berkshire Hills
Bancorp cannot be certain when or if it will receive regulatory approval.
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Conditions to the Merger (page ___)

The completion of the merger is subject to the fulfillment of a number of conditions, including:

•  approval of the merger agreement at the special meetings by at least a majority of the
outstanding shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common
stock entitled to vote;

•  approval of the transaction by the appropriate regulatory authorities;

•  receipt by each party of opinions from their respective legal counsel to the effect that the
merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a reorganization within the meaning of
Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code; and

•  the continued accuracy of representations and warranties made on the date of the merger
agreement.

Termination (page ___)

The merger agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp at any time prior to the
completion of the merger.  Additionally, subject to conditions and circumstances described in the merger agreement, either Berkshire Hills
Bancorp or Factory Point Bancorp may terminate the merger agreement if, among other things, any of the following occur:

•  the merger has not been consummated by January 31, 2008;

•  Factory Point Bancorp shareholders do not approve the merger agreement at the Factory
Point Bancorp special meeting;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders do not approve the merger agreement at the
Berkshire Hills Bancorp special meeting;

•  a required regulatory approval is denied or a governmental authority blocks the merger; or

•  there is a breach by the other party of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement
contained in the merger agreement, which cannot be cured, or has not been cured within 30 days
after the giving of written notice to such party of such breach.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp may also terminate the merger agreement if Factory Point Bancorp materially breaches its agreements regarding the
solicitation of other acquisition proposals and the submission of the merger agreement to shareholders or if the board of directors of Factory
Point Bancorp does not recommend approval of the merger in the joint proxy statement/prospectus or withdraws or revises its recommendation
in a manner adverse to Berkshire Hills Bancorp.

Factory Point Bancorp may also terminate the merger agreement if both the average closing price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock
during a measurement period ending ten business days before the closing is less than $28.36 and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock
underperforms the weighted average price of a predetermined list of 17 thrift and bank holding companies between the date of the merger
agreement and the measurement period by more than 20%, unless Berkshire Hills Bancorp agrees to increase the exchange ratio pursuant to a
formula specified in the merger agreement.
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Termination Fee (page ___)

Under certain circumstances described in the merger agreement, Berkshire Hills Bancorp may demand from Factory Point Bancorp a $3,600,000
termination fee in connection with the termination of the merger agreement.  Additionally, if: (1) either party terminates the merger agreement as
a result of the failure of Factory Point Bancorp�s shareholders to approve the merger; or (2) if Berkshire Hills Bancorp terminates the merger
agreement because of Factory Point Bancorp�s willful breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement; and an acquisition proposal
from a third party has been publicly announced, disclosed or communicated before the date of the shareholders meeting in clause (1) above or
before the termination date in clause (2) above, then Factory Point Bancorp must pay 1/3 of the $3,600,000 termination fee.  If within 12 months
after such termination, Factory Point Bancorp consummates or enters into any agreement with respect to an acquisition

8

Edgar Filing: BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC - Form S-4

Termination Fee (page ___) 24



proposal, then it must pay the remainder of the fee.  See �Description of the Merger�Termination Fee� on page ____ for a list of the
circumstances under which a termination fee is payable.

Interests of Officers and Directors in the Merger that are Different from Yours (page ___)

You should be aware that some of Factory Point Bancorp�s directors and officers may have interests in the merger that are different from, or in
addition to, the interests of Factory Point Bancorp shareholders generally.  These include: severance payments that certain officers will receive
under existing change-in-control agreements; consulting, termination and retention agreements that certain officers of Factory Point National
Bank will become subject to upon completion of the merger; the acceleration of stock options and shares of restricted stock; provisions in the
merger agreement relating to indemnification of directors and officers and insurance for directors and officers of Factory Point Bancorp for
events occurring before the merger; and the appointment of one director of Factory Point Bancorp to the board of directors of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp and Berkshire Bank.  Factory Point Bancorp�s board of directors was aware of these interests and took them into account in approving
the merger.  See �Description of the Merger�Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger� on page ___.

Accounting Treatment of the Merger (page ___)

The merger will be accounted for as a purchase transaction in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Certain Differences in Shareholder Rights (page ___)

When the merger is completed, Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who are to receive shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp will become Berkshire
Hills Bancorp shareholders and their rights will be governed by Delaware law and by Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s certificate of incorporation and
bylaws. See �Comparison of Rights of Shareholders� beginning on page ___ for a summary of the material differences between the respective
rights of Factory Point Bancorp and Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders.

Dissenters� Rights (page ___)

Factory Point Bancorp shareholders may dissent from the merger and, upon complying with the requirements of Delaware law, receive cash in
the amount of the fair value of their shares instead of shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and/or the cash consideration specified in
the merger agreement.  A copy of the section of the Delaware General Corporation Law pertaining to dissenters� rights is attached as Annex D to
this joint proxy statement/prospectus. You should read the statute carefully and consult with your legal counsel if you intend to exercise
these rights.

Tax Consequences of the Merger (page ___)

The federal tax consequences of the merger to shareholders of Factory Point Bancorp will depend primarily on whether they exchange
their Factory Point Bancorp common stock solely for Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock, solely for cash or for a combination of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and cash.  Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who exchange their shares solely for Berkshire
Hills Bancorp common stock should not recognize gain or loss except with respect to the cash they receive instead of a fractional share. 
Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who exchange their shares solely for cash should recognize gain or loss on the exchange.  Factory
Point Bancorp shareholders who exchange their shares for a combination of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and cash should
recognize capital gain, but not any loss, on the exchange.  The actual federal income tax consequences to Factory Point Bancorp
shareholders of electing to receive cash, Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock or a combination of cash and stock will not be
ascertainable at the time Factory Point Bancorp shareholders make their election because it will not be known at that time how, or to
what extent, the allocation and proration procedures will apply.

This tax treatment may not apply to all Factory Point Bancorp shareholders.  Determining the actual tax consequences of the merger to
Factory Point Bancorp shareholders can be complicated.  Factory Point
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Bancorp shareholders should consult their own tax advisor for a full understanding of the merger�s tax consequences that are particular
to each shareholder.

To review the tax consequences of the merger to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders in greater detail, please see the section �Description of the
Merger�Tax Consequences of the Merger� beginning on page ___.
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RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus, you should consider carefully the risk factors described
below, which include all known material risks, in deciding how to vote. You should keep these risk factors in mind when you read
forward-looking statements in this document.  Please refer to the section of this joint proxy statement/prospectus titled �Caution About
Forward-Looking Statements� beginning on page ___.

Factory Point Bancorp shareholders may receive a form of consideration different from what they elect.

The consideration to be received by Factory Point Bancorp shareholders in the merger is subject to the requirement that 80% of the shares of
Factory Point Bancorp common stock be exchanged for Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and 20% be exchanged for cash.  The merger
agreement contains proration and allocation methods to achieve this desired result.  If you elect all cash and the available cash is oversubscribed,
then you will receive a portion of the merger consideration in Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.  If you elect all stock and the available
stock is oversubscribed, then you will receive a portion of the merger consideration in cash.  The type of consideration you receive may also be
affected by the requirement that the value of the stock portion of the merger consideration be equal to at least 40% of the total value of merger
consideration.

The price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock might decrease after the merger.

Following the merger, many holders of Factory Point Bancorp common stock will become shareholders of Berkshire Hills Bancorp.  Berkshire
Hills Bancorp common stock could decline in value after the merger. For example, during the twelve-month period ending on ____________,
2007 (the most recent practicable date before the printing of this joint proxy statement/prospectus), the closing price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock varied from a low of $_______ to a high of $_______ and ended that period at $_______.  The market value of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock fluctuates based upon general market economic conditions, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s business and prospects and other
factors.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp may be unable to successfully integrate Factory Point Bancorp�s operations and retain Factory Point Bancorp�s
employees.

The merger involves the integration of two companies that have previously operated independently. The difficulties of combining the operations
of the two companies include:

•  integrating personnel with diverse business backgrounds;

•  combining different corporate cultures; and

•  retaining key employees.

The process of integrating operations could cause an interruption of, or loss of momentum in, the activities of the business and the loss of key
personnel. The integration of the two companies will require the experience and expertise of certain key employees of Factory Point Bancorp
who are expected to be retained by Berkshire Hills Bancorp. Berkshire Hills Bancorp may not be successful in retaining these employees for the
time period necessary to successfully integrate Factory Point Bancorp�s operations with those of Berkshire Hills Bancorp. The diversion of
management�s attention and any delays or difficulties encountered in connection with the merger and the integration of the two companies�
operations could have an adverse effect on the business and results of operation of Berkshire Hills Bancorp following the merger.

The termination fee and the restrictions on solicitation contained in the merger agreement may discourage other companies from trying
to acquire Factory Point Bancorp.

Until the completion of the merger, with some exceptions, Factory Point Bancorp is prohibited from soliciting, initiating, encouraging or
participating in any discussion of or otherwise considering any inquiries or proposals that may lead to an acquisition proposal, such as a merger
or other business combination transaction, with any person other than Berkshire Hills Bancorp. In addition, Factory Point Bancorp has agreed to
pay a termination
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fee to Berkshire Hills Bancorp in specified circumstances. These provisions could discourage other companies from trying to acquire Factory
Point Bancorp even though those other companies might be willing to offer greater value to Factory Point Bancorp�s shareholders than Berkshire
Hills Bancorp has offered in the merger. The payment of the termination fee could also have a material adverse effect on Factory Point Bancorp�s
financial condition.

Certain of Factory Point Bancorp�s officers and directors have interests that are different from, or in addition to, interests of Factory
Point Bancorp�s shareholders generally.

You should be aware that the directors and officers of Factory Point Bancorp have interests in the merger that are different from, or in
addition to, the interests of Factory Point Bancorp shareholders generally.  These include: severance payments that certain officers will
receive under existing change-in-control agreements, consulting or retention agreements that certain officers of Factory Point National
Bank will become subject to upon completion of the merger; the acceleration of stock options; provisions in the merger agreement
relating to indemnification of directors and officers and insurance for directors and officers of Factory Point Bancorp for events
occurring before the merger; and the appointment of one director of Factory Point Bancorp to the board of directors of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp and Berkshire Bank.  For a more detailed discussion of these interests, see �Description of the Merger�Interests of Certain
Persons in the Merger� beginning on page ___.
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CAUTION ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this document that are not historical facts may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (referred to as the Securities Act), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (referred to as the Securities Exchange Act), and are intended to be covered by the safe harbor provisions of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  The sections of this document which contain forward-looking statements include, but are not limited
to, �Questions And Answers About the Merger and the Special Meeting,� �Summary,� �Risk Factors,� �Description of the Merger�Background
of the Merger,� �Description of the Merger�Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s Reasons for the Merger,� and �Description of the Merger�Factory Point
Bancorp�s Reasons for the Merger and Recommendation of the Board of Directors.�  You can identify these statements from the use of the
words �may,� �will,� �should,� �could,� �would,� �plan,� �potential,� �estimate,� �project,� �believe,� �intend,� �anticipate,� �expect,� �target� and similar expressions.

These forward-looking statements are subject to significant risks, assumptions and uncertainties, including among other things, changes in
general economic and business conditions and the risks and other factors set forth in the �Risk Factors� section beginning on page ___.

Because of these and other uncertainties, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s actual results, performance or achievements, or industry results, may be
materially different from the results indicated by these forward-looking statements. In addition, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s and Factory Point
Bancorp�s past results of operations do not necessarily indicate Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s and Factory Point Bancorp�s combined future results.
You should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the dates on which they were made.  Berkshire
Hills Bancorp is not undertaking an obligation to update these forward-looking statements, even though its situation may change in the future,
except as required under federal securities law. Berkshire Hills Bancorp qualifies all of its forward-looking statements by these cautionary
statements.

Further information on other factors which could affect the financial condition, results of operations, liquidity or capital resources of Berkshire
Hills Bancorp before and after the merger is included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus under �Information About Berkshire Hills
Bancorp�Business� and �Information About Berkshire Hills Bancorp�Management�s Results of Operations.�

13

Edgar Filing: BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC - Form S-4

You should be aware that the directors and officers of Factory Point Bancorp have interests in the merger that are different from, or in addition to, the interests of Factory Point Bancorp shareholders generally.  These include: severance payments that certain officers will receive under existing change-in-control agreements, consulting or retention agreements that certain officers of Factory Point National Bank will become subject to upon completion of the merger; the acceleration of stock options; provisions in the merger agreement relating to indemnification of directors and officers and insurance for directors and officers of Factory Point Bancorp for events occurring before the merger; and the appointment of one director of Factory Point Bancorp to the board of directors of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Berkshire Bank.  For a more detailed discussion of these interests, see �Description of the Merger�Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger� beginning on page ___.30



SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables show summarized historical financial data for Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp. You should read this
summary financial information in connection with Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s historical financial information, which is incorporated by reference
into this document, and in connection with Factory Point Bancorp�s historical financial information, which appears elsewhere in this joint proxy
statement/prospectus.

Unaudited consolidated interim financial statements for Berkshire Hills Bancorp at or for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and
2006 and unaudited consolidated interim financial statements for Factory Point Bancorp at or for the three months ended March 31,
2007 and 2006 include normal, recurring adjustments necessary to fairly present the data for those periods.  The unaudited data is not
necessarily indicative of expected results of a full year�s operation.
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Selected Historical Financial Data of Berkshire Hills Bancorp

At or For the Three Months
Ended March 31,

At or For the Year Ended
December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
(unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

FINANCIAL CONDITION DATA
Total assets $ 2,174,573 $ 2,056,333 $ 2,149,642 $ 2,035,553 $ 1,310,115
Securities 229,606 413,475 234,174 420,320 414,363
Loans, net 1,710,408 1,435,415 1,679,617 1,407,229 818,842
Goodwill and other intangibles 121,065 99,163 121,341 99,616 7,254
Deposits 1,535,612 1,450,554 1,521,938 1,371,218 845,789
Borrowings and subordinated debentures 367,102 351,729 360,469 412,917 327,926
Total stockholders� equity 263,087 247,637 258,161 246,066 131,736

OPERATING DATA
Total interest and dividend income $ 31,470 $ 27,070 $ 118,051 $ 87,732 $ 61,081
Total interest expense 16,280 12,462 57,811 36,115 20,724
Net interest income 15,190 14,608 60,240 51,617 40,357
Provision for loan losses 750 290 7,860 1,313 1,565
Service charge and fee income 7,733 3,176 13,539 9,373 5,493
All other non-interest income (expense) 504 915 (1,491 ) 5,550 2,271
Total non-interest expense 15,409 11,225 48,868 48,998 28,977
Provision for income taxes - continuing
operations 2,326 2,366 4,668 8,003 5,639
Net income (loss) from discounted
operations � � 371 � (431 )
Net income $ 4,942 $ 4,818 $ 11,263 $ 8,226 $ 11,509

COMMON SHARE DATA
Basic net income per share $ 0.57 $ 0.57 $ 1.32 $ 1.16 $ 2.18
Diluted net income per share 0.56 0.55 1.29 1.10 2.01
Dividends declared per share 0.14 0.14 0.56 0.52 0.48
Book value per share 29.87 28.79 29.63 28.81 22.43
Weighted average shares - basic 8,662 8,476 8,538 7,122 5,284
Weighted average shares - diluted 8,842 8,755 8,730 7,503 5,731
Shares outstanding - end of period 8,807 8,601 8,713 8,540 5,874

KEY OPERATING RATIOS
Return on average assets 0.92 % 0.94 % 0.53 % 0.47 % 0.89 %
Return on average equity 7.57 7.64 4.40 4.19 9.06
Interest rate spread 2.78 2.87 2.81 3.00 3.10
Net interest margin 3.24 3.27 3.24 3.33 3.37
Non-interest expense to average assets 2.86 2.20 2.31 2.81 2.25
Dividend payout ratio 24.69 24.97 42.92 45.06 22.02
Nonperforming loans to total loans 0.49 0.06 0.45 0.08 0.14
Nonperforming assets to total assets 0.39 0.04 0.35 0.06 0.09
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.14 0.90 1.14 0.92 1.13
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming
loans 2.30 x 14.42 x 2.55 x 10.96 x 8.11 x
Total equity to total assets 12.10 12.04 12.01 12.09 10.06
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Selected Historical Financial Data of Factory Point Bancorp

At or For the Three
Months Ended March 31,

At or For the Year Ended
December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
(unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

FINANCIAL CONDITION DATA
Total assets $ 339,378 $ 328,264 $ 340,499 $ 319,485 $ 304,148
Loans, net 223,901 209,028 225,534 206,670 201,235
Securities available for sale 85,942 91,879 89,090 86,431 74,426
Deposits 274,567 264,125 269,967 270,001 265,264
Total borrowings 32,552 34,874 39,030 20,030 11,405
Shareholders� equity 29,554 26,883 28,824 26,945 25,537

OPERATING DATA
Interest and dividend income $ 5,243 $ 4,689 $ 20,201 $ 16,418 $ 13,696
Interest expense 2,051 1,364 7,007 3,577 2,289
Net interest income 3,192 3,325 13,194 12,841 11,407
Provision for loan losses � 195 390 780 630
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 3,192 3,130 12,804 12,061 10,777
Noninterest income 889 750 3,104 3,302 2,976
Noninterest expense 2,645 2,410 9,890 9,453 8,703
Income before income taxes 1,436 1,470 6,018 5,910 5,050
Income taxes 357 397 1,553 1,510 1,292
Net income $ 1,079 $ 1,072 $ 4,465 $ 4,400 $ 3,758

COMMON SHARE DATA
Basic net income per share $ 0.26 $ 0.26 $ 1.10 $ 1.08 $ 0.93
Diluted net income per share 0.26 0.26 1.08 1.06 0.90
Dividends declared per share 0.17 0.15 0.60 0.54 0.49
Book value per share 7.25 6.60 7.08 6.61 6.28
Weighted average shares - basic 4,077 4,076 4,073 4,063 4,057
Weighted average shares - diluted 4,140 4,157 4,150 4,163 4,157
Shares outstanding - end of period 4,093 4,077 4,074 4,078 4,057

KEY OPERATING RATIOS
Return on average assets 1.29 % 1.35 % 1.35 % 1.41 % 1.23 %
Return on average equity 15.08 16.12 16.29 16.88 15.27
Net interest margin 4.25 4.69 4.50 4.66 4.19
Efficiency ratio 62.05 56.74 58.13 56.41 58.37
Dividend payout ratio 64.20 56.92 54.71 50.29 52.59
Nonperforming loans to total loans 0.47 0.29 0.46 0.34 0.22
Nonperforming assets to total assets 0.31 0.19 0.31 0.25 0.17
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.81 1.80 1.80 1.72 1.43
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 386.57 623.65 392.78 511.02 649.55
Average equity to average assets 8.56 8.40 8.31 8.38 8.03
Total equity to total assets 8.71 8.19 8.47 8.43 8.40
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SUMMARY SELECTED PRO FORMA COMBINED DATA

The following table shows selected financial information on a pro forma combined basis giving effect to the merger as if the merger had become
effective at the end of the periods presented, in the case of balance sheet information, and at the beginning of each period presented, in the case
of income statement information.  The pro forma information reflects the purchase method of accounting.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp anticipates that the merger will provide the combined company with financial benefits that include reduced operating
expenses and the opportunity to earn more revenue.  The pro forma information, while helpful in illustrating the financial characteristics of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp following the merger under one set of assumptions, does not reflect all of these benefits and, accordingly, does not
attempt to predict or suggest future results.  The pro forma information also does not necessarily reflect what the historical results of Berkshire
Hills Bancorp would have been had our companies been combined during these periods.

An exchange ratio of 0.5844 was used in preparing this pro forma information.  You should read this summary pro forma information in
conjunction with the information under �Pro Forma Financial Information� and with the historical information in this document on which it is
based.

Three Months
Ended
March 31, 2007

Year
Ended
December 31, 2006

(In thousands, except per share data)
Pro forma combined income statement data:
Interest income $ 36,863 $ 138,852
Interest expense 18,756 66,518
Net interest income 18,107 72,334
Provision for loan losses 750 8,250
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 17,357 64,084
Non-interest income 9,126 15,152
Non-interest expense 17,704 57,358
Income before income taxes 8,779 21,878
Income tax expense 2,708 6,321
Income from continuing operations 6,071 15,557
Net income from discontinued operations � 371
Net income $ 6,071 $ 15,928

Pro forma per share data:
Basic net income $ 0.57 $ 1.52
Diluted net income 0.56 1.49

March 31, 2007
(In thousands)

Pro forma combined balance sheet data:
Total assets $ 2,571,951
Loans receivable, net 1,929,009
Deposits 1,810,179
Total stockholders� equity 327,641
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COMPARATIVE PER SHARE DATA

The following table shows information about Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s and Factory Point Bancorp�s diluted income per common share, dividends
per share and book value per share, and similar information giving effect to the merger (which we refer to as �pro forma� information).  In
presenting the comparative pro forma information for the time periods shown, we assumed that we had been merged on the dates or at the
beginning of the periods indicated.  See �Pro Forma Financial Information.�

The information listed as �pro forma combined� was prepared using an exchange ratio of 0.5844.  The information listed as �per equivalent Factory
Point Bancorp share� was obtained by multiplying the pro forma amounts by an exchange ratio of 0.5844.  We present this information to reflect
the fact that some Factory Point Bancorp shareholders will receive shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock for each share of Factory
Point Bancorp common stock exchanged in the merger.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp anticipates that the combined company will derive financial
benefits from the merger that include reduced operating expenses and the opportunity to earn more revenue.  The pro forma information, while
helpful in illustrating the financial characteristics of Berkshire Hills Bancorp following the merger under one set of assumptions, does not reflect
these benefits and, accordingly, does not attempt to predict or suggest future results.  The pro forma information also does not necessarily reflect
what the historical results of Berkshire Hills Bancorp would have been had our companies been combined during these periods.

The information in the following table is based on, and should be read together with, the historical financial information that we have presented
in this document.  See �Pro Forma Financial Information.�

Berkshire
Hills Bancorp
Historical

Factory Point
Bancorp
Historical

Pro Forma
Combined
(1)(2)

Per Equivalent
Factory Point
Bancorp Share

Book value per share:
At March 31, 2007 $ 29.87 $ 7.25 $ 30.56 $ 17.86

Cash dividends declared per share:
Three months ended March 31, 2007 $ 0.14 $ 0.17 $ 0.14 $ 0.08
Year ended December 31, 2006 0.56 0.60 0.56 0.33

Diluted net income per share:
Three months ended March 31, 2007 $ 0.56 $ 0.26 $ 0.56 $ 0.33
Year ended December 31, 2006 1.29 1.08 1.49 0.87

(1)  Pro forma dividends per share represent Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s historical dividends per share.

(2)  The pro forma combined book value per share of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock is based upon the pro
forma combined common stockholders� equity for Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp divided by total
pro forma common shares of the combined entities.
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MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock is listed on The NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol BHLB.  Factory Point Bancorp
common stock is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol FAPB.  The following table lists the high and low prices per share for
Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and Factory Point Bancorp common stock and the cash dividends declared by each company for the
periods indicated.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp
Common Stock

Factory Point Bancorp
Common Stock

High Low Dividends High Low Dividends

Quarter Ended

June 30, 2007 (through ___________, 2007) $ $ $ $ $ $
March 31, 2007 34.71 32.59 0.14 15.00 13.40 0.17

December 31, 2006 39.67 33.08 0.14 15.40 13.50 0.15
September 30, 2006 38.44 33.46 0.14 15.50 13.85 0.15
June 30, 2006 36.39 32.77 0.14 16.40 15.10 0.15
March 31, 2006 36.08 32.37 0.14 16.80 15.25 0.15

December 31, 2005 35.57 31.75 0.14 17.16 15.25 0.14
September 30, 2005 35.20 31.90 0.14 17.52 16.40 0.14
June 30, 2005 34.90 30.97 0.12 18.20 16.60 0.14
March 31, 2005 37.64 33.40 0.12 19.20 16.08 0.14

You should obtain current market quotations for Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock, as the market price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock will fluctuate between the date of this document and the date on which the merger is completed, and thereafter. You can get these
quotations from a newspaper, on the Internet or by calling your broker.

As of ______________, 2007, there were approximately _____ holders of record of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock. As of
______________, 2007, there were approximately _____ holders of record of Factory Point Bancorp common stock. These numbers do not
reflect the number of persons or entities who may hold their stock in nominee or �street name� through brokerage firms.

Following the merger, the declaration of dividends will be at the discretion of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors and will be
determined after consideration of various factors, including earnings, cash requirements, the financial condition of Berkshire Hills Bancorp,
applicable state law and government regulations and other factors deemed relevant by Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors.
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SPECIAL MEETING OF FACTORY POINT BANCORP SHAREHOLDERS

Date, Place, Time and Purpose

Factory Point Bancorp�s board of directors is sending you this document to request that you allow your shares of Factory Point Bancorp to be
represented at the special meeting by the persons named in the enclosed proxy card.  At the special meeting, the Factory Point Bancorp board of
directors will ask you to vote on a proposal to approve the merger agreement. You also will be asked to vote on a proposal to adjourn the special
meeting if necessary to permit further solicitation of proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the meeting to approve the merger
agreement.  The special meeting will be held at The Equinox Hotel, 3567 Main Street, Manchester Village, Vermont at __:___ __.m., local time,
on ______________, 2007.

Who Can Vote at the Meeting

You are entitled to vote if the records of Factory Point Bancorp showed that you held shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock as of the
close of business on ______________, 2007.  As of the close of business on that date, a total of _______ shares of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock were outstanding.  Each share of common stock has one vote.  If you are a beneficial owner of shares of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock held by a broker, bank or other nominee (i.e., in �street name�) and you want to vote your shares in person at the meeting, you will
have to get a written proxy in your name from the broker, bank or other nominee who holds your shares.

Quorum; Vote Required

The special meeting will conduct business only if a majority of the outstanding shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock entitled to vote is
represented in person or by proxy at the meeting.  If you return valid proxy instructions or attend the meeting in person, your shares will be
counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, even if you abstain from voting.  Broker non-votes also will be counted for
purposes of determining the existence of a quorum.  A broker non-vote occurs when a broker, bank or other nominee holding shares of Factory
Point Bancorp common stock for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee does not have discretionary
voting power with respect to that item and has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner.

Approval of the merger agreement will require the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of Factory Point Bancorp common
stock entitled to vote at the meeting.  Failure to return a properly executed proxy card or to vote in person will have the same effect as a vote
against the merger agreement.  Broker non-votes and abstentions from voting will have the same effect as voting against the merger agreement.

The affirmative vote of the majority of votes cast is required to approve the proposal to adjourn the meeting if necessary to permit further
solicitation of proxies on the proposal to approve the merger agreement.

Shares Held by Factory Point Bancorp Officers and Directors and by Berkshire Hills Bancorp

As of May 31, 2007, directors and executive officers of Factory Point Bancorp beneficially owned 654,670 shares of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock, not including shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of stock options.  This equals 15.9% of the outstanding shares of
Factory Point Bancorp common stock.  As of the same date, Berkshire Hills Bancorp and its subsidiaries and its directors and executive officers
owned 7,718 shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock.  This equals 0.2% of the total outstanding shares of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock.
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Voting and Revocability of Proxies

You may vote in person at the special meeting or by proxy. To ensure your representation at the special meeting, Factory Point Bancorp
recommends that you vote by proxy even if you plan to attend the special meeting. You can always change your vote at the special meeting.

Factory Point Bancorp shareholders whose shares are held in �street name� by their broker, bank or other nominee must follow the instructions
provided by their broker, bank or other nominee to vote their shares.  Your broker or bank may allow you to deliver your voting instructions via
the telephone or the Internet.

Voting instructions are included on your proxy form. If you properly complete and timely submit your proxy, your shares will be voted as you
have directed. You may vote for, against, or abstain with respect to the approval of the merger agreement and the proposal to adjourn the
meeting.  If you are the record holder of your shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock and submit your proxy without specifying a voting
instruction, your shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock will be voted �FOR� the proposal to adopt the merger agreement and �FOR� the
proposal to adjourn the meeting if necessary to permit further solicitation of proxies on the proposal to approve the merger agreement.  Factory
Point Bancorp�s board of directors recommends a vote �FOR� approval of the merger agreement and �FOR� approval of the proposal to adjourn the
meeting if necessary to permit further solicitation of proxies on the proposal to approve the merger agreement.

You may revoke your proxy before it is voted by:

•  filing with the Secretary of Factory Point Bancorp a duly executed revocation of proxy;

•  submitting a new proxy with a later date; or

•  voting in person at the special meeting.

Attendance at the special meeting will not, in and of itself, constitute a revocation of a proxy. All written notices of revocation and other
communication with respect to the revocation of proxies should be addressed to:

Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.

Edgar T. Campbell, Secretary

4928 Main Street

Manchester Center, Vermont 05255

If any matters not described in this document are properly presented at the special meeting, the persons named in the proxy card will use their
own judgment to determine how to vote your shares.  Factory Point Bancorp does not know of any other matters to be presented at the meeting.

Solicitation of Proxies

Factory Point Bancorp will pay for this proxy solicitation. In addition to soliciting proxies by mail, MacKenzie Partners, Inc., a proxy
solicitation firm, will assist Factory Point Bancorp in soliciting proxies for the special meeting.  Factory Point Bancorp will pay $2,400 for these
services.  Factory Point Bancorp will, upon request, reimburse brokers, banks and other nominees for their expenses in sending proxy materials
to their customers who are beneficial owners and obtaining their voting instructions.  Additionally, directors, officers and employees of Factory
Point Bancorp may solicit proxies personally and by telephone. None of these persons will receive additional or special compensation for
soliciting proxies.
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SPECIAL MEETING OF BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP SHAREHOLDERS

Date, Place, Time and Purpose

Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors is sending you this document to request that you allow your shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp to be
represented at the special meeting by the persons named in the enclosed proxy card.  At the special meeting, the Berkshire Hills Bancorp board
of directors will ask you to vote on a proposal to approve the merger agreement.  You also will be asked to vote on a proposal to adjourn the
special meeting if necessary to permit further solicitation of proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the meeting to approve the
merger agreement.  The special meeting will be held at The Crowne Plaza Hotel, One West Street, Pittsfield, Massachusetts at __:___ __.m.,
local time, on _______________, 2007.

Who Can Vote at the Meeting

You are entitled to vote if the records of Berkshire Hills Bancorp showed that you held shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock as of
the close of business on _______________, 2007.  As of the close of business on that date, a total of _______ shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock were outstanding.  Each share of common stock has one vote.  If you are a beneficial owner of shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock held by a broker, bank or other nominee (i.e., in �street name�) and you want to vote your shares in person at the meeting, you will
have to get a written proxy in your name from the broker, bank or other nominee who holds your shares.

Quorum; Vote Required

The special meeting will conduct business only if a majority of the outstanding shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock entitled to vote
is represented in person or by proxy at the meeting.  If you return valid proxy instructions or attend the meeting in person, your shares will be
counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, even if you abstain from voting.  Broker non-votes also will be counted for
purposes of determining the existence of a quorum.  A broker non-vote occurs when a broker, bank or other nominee holding shares of Berkshire
Hills Bancorp common stock for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee does not have discretionary
voting power with respect to that item and has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner.

Approval of the merger agreement will require the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common
stock entitled to vote at the meeting.  Failure to return a properly executed proxy card or to vote in person will have the same effect as a vote
against the merger agreement.  Broker non-votes and abstentions from voting will have the same effect as voting against the merger agreement.

The affirmative vote of the majority of votes cast is required to approve the proposal to adjourn the meeting if necessary to permit further
solicitation of proxies on the proposal to approve the merger agreement.

Shares Held by Berkshire Hills Bancorp Officers and Directors and by Factory Point Bancorp

As of June 21, 2007, directors and executive officers of Berkshire Hills Bancorp beneficially owned 307,456 shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock, not including shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of stock options.  This equals 3.5% of the outstanding shares of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.  As of the same date, Factory Point Bancorp and its directors and executive officers did not beneficially
own any shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.

Voting and Revocability of Proxies

You may vote in person at the special meeting or by proxy. To ensure your representation at the special meeting, Berkshire Hills Bancorp
recommends that you vote by proxy even if you plan to attend the special meeting. You can always change your vote at the special meeting.
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Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders whose shares are held in �street name� by their broker, bank or other nominee must follow the instructions
provided by their broker, bank or other nominee to vote their shares.  Your broker or bank may allow you to deliver your voting instructions via
the telephone or the Internet.

Voting instructions are included on your proxy form. If you properly complete and timely submit your proxy, your shares will be voted as you
have directed. You may vote for, against, or abstain with respect to the approval of the merger agreement and the proposal to adjourn the
meeting.  If you are the record holder of your shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and submit your proxy without specifying a
voting instruction, your shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock will be voted �FOR� the proposal to adopt the merger agreement and
�FOR� the proposal to adjourn the meeting if necessary to permit further solicitation of proxies on the proposal to approve the merger agreement. 
Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors recommends a vote �FOR� approval of the merger agreement and �FOR� approval of the proposal to
adjourn the meeting if necessary to permit further solicitation of proxies on the proposal to approve the merger agreement.

You may revoke your proxy before it is voted by:

•  filing with the Secretary of Berkshire Hills Bancorp a duly executed revocation of proxy;

•  submitting a new proxy with a later date; or

•  voting in person at the special meeting.

Attendance at the special meeting will not, in and of itself, constitute a revocation of a proxy. All written notices of revocation and other
communication with respect to the revocation of proxies should be addressed to:

Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc.

Gerald A. Denmark, Secretary

24 North Street

Pittsfield, Massachusetts 01201

If any matters not described in this document are properly presented at the special meeting, the persons named in the proxy card will use their
own judgment to determine how to vote your shares.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp does not know of any other matters to be presented at the
meeting.

Solicitation of Proxies

Berkshire Hills Bancorp will pay for this proxy solicitation. In addition to soliciting proxies by mail, MacKenzie Partners, Inc., a proxy
solicitation firm, will assist Berkshire Hills Bancorp in soliciting proxies for the special meeting.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp will pay $9,600 for
these services.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp will, upon request, reimburse brokers, banks and other nominees for their expenses in sending proxy
materials to their customers who are beneficial owners and obtaining their voting instructions.  Additionally, directors, officers and employees of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp may solicit proxies personally and by telephone. None of these persons will receive additional or special compensation
for soliciting proxies.

23

Edgar Filing: BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC - Form S-4

·                  filing with the Secretary of Berkshire Hills Bancorp a duly executed revocation of proxy; 40



RIGHTS OF DISSENTING SHAREHOLDERS

Under Delaware law, holders of Factory Point Bancorp common stock that do not wish to accept the merger consideration may elect to have the
value of their shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock judicially determined and paid in cash, together with a fair rate of interest, if any.
The valuation will exclude any element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger. A stockholder may only exercise
such appraisal rights by complying with the provisions of Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law.

The following summary of the provisions of Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law is not a complete statement of the law
pertaining to appraisal rights under the Delaware General Corporation Law and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of Section
262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, a copy of which is attached to this document as Appendix D and incorporated into this summary
by reference. If you wish to exercise appraisal rights or wish to preserve your right to do so, you should carefully review Section 262 and are
urged to consult a legal advisor before electing or attempting to exercise these rights.

All references in Section 262 and in this summary to a �shareholder� are to the record holder of the shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock
as to which appraisal rights are asserted. A person having a beneficial interest in shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock held of record
in the name of another person, such as a bank, broker or other nominee, must act promptly to cause the record holder to follow properly the steps
summarized below and in a timely manner to perfect appraisal rights.

Under Section 262, where a proposed merger is to be submitted for approval at a meeting of shareholders, as in the case of Factory Point
Bancorp�s special meeting, the corporation, not less than twenty (20) days prior to the meeting, must notify each of its shareholders entitled to
appraisal rights that these appraisal rights are available and include in the notice a copy of Section 262. This document constitutes notice to the
Factory Point Bancorp shareholders of the availability of appraisal rights, and the applicable statutory provisions of the Delaware General
Corporation Law are attached to this document as Appendix D.

Any Factory Point Bancorp shareholder wishing to exercise the right to demand appraisal under Section 262 of the Delaware General
Corporation Law must satisfy each of the following conditions:

•  The shareholder must deliver to Factory Point Bancorp a written demand for appraisal of its
shares before the vote on the merger agreement at Factory Point Bancorp�s special meeting. This demand will be
sufficient if it reasonably informs Factory Point Bancorp of the identity of the shareholder and that the shareholder
intends by that writing to demand the appraisal of its shares.

•  The shareholder must not vote its shares of common stock in favor of the merger agreement. A
proxy that does not contain voting instructions will, unless revoked, be voted in favor of the merger agreement.
Therefore, a Factory Point Bancorp shareholder who votes by proxy and who wishes to exercise appraisal rights must
vote against the merger agreement or abstain from voting on the merger agreement. Voting against, abstaining from
voting on or failing to vote on the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement will not constitute a written
demand for appraisal within the meaning of Section 262. The written demand for appraisal must be made in addition
to and separate from any proxy you deliver or vote you cast in person.

•  The shareholder must continuously hold its shares from the date of making the written demand
through the completion of the merger. A shareholder who is the record holder of shares of common stock on the date
the written demand for appraisal is made but who thereafter transfers those shares prior to the completion of the
merger will lose any right to appraisal in respect of those shares.

Only a shareholder of record of shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock is entitled to assert appraisal rights for those shares registered in
that holder�s name. A demand for appraisal should:

•  be executed by or on behalf of the shareholder of record, fully and correctly, as its name appears
on the stock transfer records of Factory Point Bancorp;
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•  specify the shareholder�s name and mailing address;

•  specify the number of shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock owned by the shareholder;
and

•  specify that the shareholder intends thereby to demand appraisal of its common stock.

If the shares are owned of record by a person in a fiduciary capacity, such as a trustee, guardian or custodian, the demand should be executed in
that capacity. If the shares are owned of record by more than one person as in a joint tenancy or tenancy in common, the demand should be
executed by or on behalf of all owners. An authorized agent, including an agent for two or more joint owners, may execute a demand for
appraisal on behalf of a shareholder; however, the agent must identify the record owner or owners and expressly disclose the fact that, in
executing the demand, the agent is acting as agent for such owner or owners. A record holder such as a bank or broker who holds shares as
nominee for several beneficial owners may exercise appraisal rights with respect to the shares held for one or more beneficial owners while not
exercising these rights with respect to the shares held for one or more other beneficial owners. In this case, the written demand should set forth
the number of shares as to which appraisal is sought, and where no number of shares is expressly mentioned the demand will be presumed to
cover all shares held in the name of the record owner.

Shareholders who hold their shares in brokerage accounts or other nominee forms and who wish to exercise appraisal rights are urged to consult
with their nominees to determine appropriate procedures for the making of a demand for appraisal by such nominee.

A shareholder who elects to exercise appraisal rights pursuant to Section 262 should mail or deliver a written demand to:

Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.
4928 Main Street

Manchester Center, Vermont 05255
Attention: Edgar T. Campbell

Corporate Secretary

Within ten days after the completion of the merger, Berkshire must send a notice as to the completion of the merger to each of Factory Point
Bancorp�s former shareholders who has made a written demand for appraisal in accordance with Section 262 and who has not voted in favor of or
consented to adoption of the merger agreement. Within 120 days after the completion of the merger, but not after that date, either Berkshire or
any shareholder who has complied with the requirements of Section 262 may file a petition in the Delaware Court of Chancery demanding a
determination of the value of the shares of common stock held by all shareholders demanding appraisal of their shares. Berkshire is under no
obligation to, and has no present intent to file a petition for appraisal, and shareholders seeking to exercise appraisal rights should not assume
that Berkshire Hills Bancorp will file a petition or that it will initiate any negotiations with respect to the fair value of the shares. Accordingly,
shareholders who desire to have their shares appraised should initiate any petitions necessary for the perfection of their appraisal rights within
the time periods and in the manner prescribed in Section 262. Since Berkshire Hills Bancorp has no obligation to file a petition, the failure of
affected shareholders to do so within the period specified could nullify any previous written demand for appraisal. Under the merger agreement,
Factory Point Bancorp has agreed to give Berkshire Hills Bancorp prompt notice of any demands for appraisal it receives. Berkshire Hills
Bancorp has the right to participate in all negotiations and proceedings with respect to demands for appraisal. Factory Point Bancorp will not,
except with the prior written consent of Berkshire Hills Bancorp, make any payment with respect to any demands for appraisal, offer to settle, or
settle, any demands.

Within 120 days after the completion of the merger, any shareholder that complies with the provisions of Section 262 to that point in time will
be entitled to receive from Berkshire Hills Bancorp, upon written request, a statement setting forth the aggregate number of shares not voted in
favor of the merger agreement and with respect to which Factory Point Bancorp received demands for appraisal and the aggregate number of
holders of those shares. Berkshire Hills Bancorp must mail this statement to the shareholder by the later of ten days after receipt of the request or
ten days after expiration of the period for delivery of demands for appraisals under Section 262.
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A shareholder who timely files a petition for appraisal with the Delaware Court of Chancery must serve a copy upon Berkshire Hills Bancorp.
Berkshire Hills Bancorp must, within twenty days of receipt of the petition, file with the Delaware Register in Chancery a duly verified list
containing the names and addresses of all shareholders who have demanded appraisal of their shares and who have not reached agreements with
it as to the value of their shares. After notice to shareholders as may be ordered by the Delaware Court of Chancery, the Delaware Court of
Chancery is empowered to conduct a hearing on the petition to determine which shareholders are entitled to appraisal rights. The Delaware
Court of Chancery may require shareholders who have demanded an appraisal for their shares and who hold stock represented by certificates to
submit their certificates to the Register in Chancery for notation on the certificates of the pendency of the appraisal proceedings, and if any
shareholder fails to comply with the requirement, the Delaware Court of Chancery may dismiss the proceedings as to that shareholder. After
determining what shareholders are entitled to an appraisal, the Delaware Court of Chancery will appraise the �fair value� of their shares. This
value will exclude any element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger, but will include a fair rate of interest, if
any, to be paid upon the amount determined to be the fair value. The costs of the action may be determined by the Delaware Court of Chancery
and taxed upon the parties as the Delaware Court of Chancery deems equitable. Upon application of a shareholder, the Delaware Court of
Chancery may also order that all or a portion of the expenses incurred by any shareholder in connection with the appraisal proceeding be
charged pro rata against the value of all of the shares entitled to appraisal. These expenses may include, without limitation, reasonable attorneys�
fees and the fees and expenses of experts. Shareholders considering seeking appraisal should be aware that the fair value of their shares as
determined under Section 262 could be more than, the same as, or less than the merger consideration they would be entitled to receive pursuant
to the merger agreement if they did not seek appraisal of their shares. Shareholders should also be aware that investment banking opinions as to
fairness from a financial point of view are not necessarily opinions as to fair value under Section 262.

In determining fair value and, if applicable, a fair rate of interest, the Delaware Court of Chancery is to take into account all relevant factors. In
Weinberger v. UOP, Inc., the Delaware Supreme Court discussed the factors that could be considered in determining fair value in an appraisal
proceeding, stating that �proof of value by any techniques or methods which are generally considered acceptable in the financial community and
otherwise admissible in court� should be considered, and that �fair price obviously requires consideration of all relevant factors involving the value
of a company.�

Section 262 provides that fair value is to be �exclusive of any element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger.� In
Cede & Co. v. Technicolor, Inc., the Delaware Supreme Court stated that such exclusion is a �narrow exclusion [that] does not encompass known
elements of value,� but which rather applies only to the speculative elements of value arising from such accomplishment or expectation. In
Weinberger, the Delaware Supreme Court construed Section 262 to mean that �elements of future value, including the nature of the enterprise,
which are known or susceptible of proof as of the date of the merger and not the product of speculation, may be considered.� Any shareholder
who has duly demanded an appraisal in compliance with Section 262 will not, after the completion of the merger, be entitled to vote the shares
subject to that demand for any purpose or be entitled to the payment of dividends or other distributions on those shares. However, shareholders
will be entitled to dividends or other distributions payable to holders of record of shares as of a record date prior to the completion of the merger.

Any shareholder may withdraw its demand for appraisal and accept the merger consideration by delivering to Berkshire Hills Bancorp, within
sixty days of the effective date of the merger, a written withdrawal of the shareholder�s demands for appraisal. Any attempt to withdraw made
more than sixty days after the effective date of the merger will require written approval of Berkshire Hills Bancorp. Moreover, no appraisal
proceeding before the Delaware Court of Chancery as to any shareholder shall be dismissed without the approval of the Delaware Court of
Chancery, and such approval may be conditioned upon any terms the Delaware Court of Chancery deems just. If Berkshire Hills Bancorp does
not approve a shareholder�s request to withdraw a demand for appraisal when the approval is required or if the Delaware Court of Chancery does
not approve the dismissal of an appraisal proceeding, the shareholder would be entitled to receive only the appraised value determined in any
such appraisal proceeding. This value could be higher or lower than, or the same as, the value of the merger consideration.

Failure to follow the steps required by Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law for perfecting appraisal rights may result in the
loss of appraisal rights, in which event you will be entitled to receive the
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consideration with respect to your dissenting shares in accordance with the merger agreement. In view of the complexity of the provisions of
Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, if you are a Factory Point Bancorp shareholder and are considering exercising your
appraisal rights under the Delaware General Corporation Law, you should consult your own legal advisor.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MERGER

The following summary of the merger agreement is qualified by reference to the complete text of the merger agreement. A copy of the merger
agreement is attached as Annex A to this joint proxy statement/prospectus and is incorporated by reference into this joint proxy
statement/prospectus. You should read the merger agreement completely and carefully as it, rather than this description, is the legal document
that governs the merger.

General

The merger agreement provides for the merger of Factory Point Bancorp with and into Berkshire Hills Bancorp, with Berkshire Hills Bancorp as
the surviving entity.  Immediately following the merger of Factory Point Bancorp with Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Factory Point National Bank
will merge with and into Berkshire Bank, with Berkshire Bank as the surviving entity.

Background of the Merger

At a regularly scheduled meeting on November 28, 2006, the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors discussed competitive pressures and
other challenges to sustained growth facing Factory Point Bancorp.  The board took note of the drop in Factory Point Bancorp�s stock price from
approximately $17.00 per share a year earlier to the approximate $14.00 per share trading price at the time of the meeting.  David Budd of
McConnell, Budd & Romano, financial advisor to Factory Point Bancorp, presented the board with an analysis of New England and Vermont
peer banks and information on Northeast merger and acquisition transactions.  He reviewed information about potential acquirers of Factory
Point Bancorp and the impact of a potential acquisition on Factory Point Bancorp.  David Budd also presented a present value analysis of
Factory Point Bancorp stock using different growth rates and return on asset benchmarks.  The board discussed the adverse effects on Factory
Point Bancorp of the Vermont economy, shrinking customer loyalty and competition.  As a result of discussions at this November 28 meeting, it
was agreed that management would present a strategic and financial plan at the next board meeting with realistic growth rates for loans, deposits
and earnings.

At a meeting of the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors on January 16, 2007, the board heard presentations from Charles J. Ferry of
Rhoads & Sinon LLP, outside legal counsel to Factory Point Bancorp, on the fiduciary duty of a board of directors and from David Budd on
strategic options, including a confidential controlled market check that could permit the board to test the potential benefits of a strategic plan
against the benefits of a sale transaction.  The Factory Point Bancorp board discussed the unique Factory Point Bancorp shareholder base
comprised of significant blocks of shares held by individual shareholders and the feelings of at least some shareholders that Factory Point
Bancorp should be sold.  It was also noted that a continued strategy of independence posed a risk to the future stock price if Factory Point
Bancorp could not achieve the strategic plan growth targets on which a decision to remain independent would be based.  After discussion of the
pros, cons and limitations of a confidential controlled market check, the Factory Point Bancorp board scheduled a special meeting for January
30, 2007 to continue review and discussion of strategic alternatives and the possibility of a market check.

At a meeting held on January 30, 2007, the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors discussed the characteristics of the Factory Point Bancorp
shareholder base, the board�s belief that future liquidity was important to many of the Factory Point Bancorp shareholders, and the difficult
challenges faced by Factory Point Bancorp in achieving satisfactory future growth in its current markets.  The board was concerned with the
need to maintain control of its strategic planning process, including consideration of strategic alternatives if acceptable future earnings growth
realistically could not be achieved.  After discussion, the board unanimously approved working with David Budd to conduct a confidential
controlled market check while at the same time directing management to develop a three-year strategic plan.  A special meeting of the Factory
Point Bancorp board of directors was called for February 6, 2007.
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At a special board meeting on February 6, 2007, the Factory Point Bancorp board determined that the full board, rather than a committee of the
board, would serve as a �strategic planning committee� to consider strategic alternatives and oversee the controlled market check.  At this meeting,
David Budd advised the board of difficulties Factory Point Bancorp would face in growing by acquisitions, especially in light of the depressed
Factory Point Bancorp stock price and low price/earnings ratio.  He reviewed with the board the procedures to be followed in the confidential
controlled market check approved at the January 30 meeting.  The chief executive officers of selected financial institutions were to be screened
by David Budd for interest in considering an acquisition of Factory Point Bancorp.  If they expressed any interest they would be asked to sign a
confidentiality agreement and then provided with information on Factory Point Bancorp.  If they have an interest in proceeding further, they
would be asked to submit a non-binding indication of interest.  David Budd reviewed for the board the financial institutions he proposed to
contact as part of the market check.  After discussion, the Factory Point Bancorp board agreed on the institutions to be contacted in the market
check.

At a meeting of the Factory Point Bancorp board acting as the strategic planning committee on March 20, 2007, David Budd reported on the
results of the market check.  Of the eleven financial institutions contacted, nine had signed confidentiality agreements and requested additional
information, three had submitted written non-binding expressions of interest and one had submitted an oral non-binding expression of interest. 
David Budd reviewed for the board the financial terms of the expressions of interest and how the indicated parties compared to the potential
return to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders of the Factory Point Bancorp stock price and dividend stream over the next five years using
different assumed growth rates and discount values.  Charles Ferry reviewed for the board the non-financial terms and conditions of the written
expressions of interest.  Upon the recommendation of David Budd, the Factory Point Bancorp board determined to narrow the list of potential
acquirers to two (one of which was Berkshire Hills Bancorp), invite them to resubmit their proposals and invite the chief executive officers of
the two potential acquirers to make presentations to the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors, after which negotiations could proceed if so
determined by the Factory Point Bancorp board.

On March 29, 2007, the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors, acting as the strategic planning committee, heard separate presentations from
the CEO�s of the two finalists, including Michael P. Daly of Berkshire Hills Bancorp.  David Budd presented a comparison of the two
expressions of interest.  At the conclusion of the meeting, all of the directors present (one director was absent) unanimously indicated a
preference for Berkshire Hills Bancorp and requested that David Budd attempt to negotiate a higher price from Berkshire Hills Bancorp than the
$19.00, with 75% stock and 25% cash, proposed by Berkshire Hills Bancorp.

The Factory Point Bancorp board of directors met as the strategic planning committee again on April 5, 2007 to consider a revised offer from
Berkshire Hills Bancorp.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp had increased its original offer of $19.00 per share, 75% stock and 25% cash, to $19.50, with
80% stock and 20% cash, with a fixed exchange ratio to be fixed as of the date of execution of the definitive merger agreement.  After
discussion, the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors, with one abstention, authorized management to move forward with due diligence on
Berkshire Hills Bancorp and negotiation of a definitive merger agreement with Berkshire Hills Bancorp.

Factory Point Bancorp�s management and legal and financial advisors then proceeded to conduct due diligence and engage in negotiations of a
definitive merger agreement with Berkshire Hills Bancorp and its advisors.  Factory Point Bancorp and its advisors completed a due diligence
review of Berkshire Hills Bancorp during April 2007.  During this period, negotiations took place concerning the terms of the definitive merger
agreement, including, among others, how the price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock would be set for purposes of the proposed fixed
exchange ratio equal to $19.50 per share in value, severance benefits for Factory Point Bancorp employees who would not be retained by
Berkshire Hills Bancorp after the transaction, the respective rights of the parties to terminate the merger agreement under specified
circumstances and the size of the breakup or termination fee to be paid by Factory Point Bancorp under certain circumstances involving another
acquisition proposal considered superior by Factory Point Bancorp.

On May 2, 2007, Berkshire Hills Bancorp submitted a revision to its non-binding expression of interest proposing to fix the exchange ratio at
0.5844 shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock per share of Factory Point Bancorp common stock based on the average closing price
of Berkshire Hills Bancorp over the prior 30 days.  This proposal was incorporated into the draft definitive merger agreement.
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A special meeting of the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors was held on May 14, 2007.  At this time, the board considered the draft
definitive merger agreement with Berkshire Hills Bancorp that had been negotiated.  David Budd and Thomas Romano of McConnell, Budd &
Romano presented to the board of directors McConnell, Budd & Romano�s analysis of the proposed transaction and rendered McConnell, Budd
& Romano�s oral opinion that the consideration to be received by Factory Point Bancorp shareholders in the proposed merger with Berkshire
Hills Bancorp was fair, from a financial point of view, to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders.  Charles Ferry reviewed for the board of directors
the terms of the draft merger agreement and related documents, including voting and affiliates agreements that Berkshire Hills Bancorp was
requesting be signed by certain directors.  After discussion, the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors unanimously approved the merger
agreement with Berkshire Hills Bancorp and recommended approval of the agreement by the Factory Point Bancorp shareholders.

The Berkshire Hills Bancorp board of directors had previously unanimously approved the definitive merger agreement and related
documents and authorized the execution of the merger agreement. After the close of the financial markets on May 14, 2007, Berkshire
Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp executed the merger agreement and, before the opening of the financial markets on May 15,
2007, issued a joint press release publicly announcing the transaction.

Factory Point Bancorp�s Reasons for the Merger and Recommendation of the Board of Directors

At its meeting on May 14, 2007, the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors determined that the terms of the merger agreement and the merger
transaction with Berkshire Hills Bancorp were advisable and in the long-term best interests of the Factory Point Bancorp shareholders. In
making this determination, the board concluded that the merger with Berkshire Hills Bancorp was preferable to the other alternatives available to
Factory Point Bancorp and to the prospects of continuing to operate Factory Point Bancorp as an independent community-focused banking
institution.

In the course of reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement, the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors consulted with McConnell,
Budd & Romano, its financial adviser, and Rhoads & Sinon, its legal counsel. The board considered, among other things, the factors described
above and the following:

•  the terms of the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated by the merger;

•  the historical trading ranges and dividends for Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and the consideration
to be received by Factory Point Bancorp shareholders in the merger;

•  the board�s review of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s business prospects and financial condition, including its future
prospects;

•  the historical trading ranges and dividends for Factory Point Bancorp common stock;

•  the opinion of McConnell, Budd & Romano that the consideration in the merger was fair to Factory Point
Bancorp�s shareholders from a financial point of view;

•  the board�s understanding of the limitations of further growth prospects of Factory Point Bancorp if it
remained independent;

•  the response to the controlled market check undertaken by Factory Point Bancorp;

•  the alternatives of Factory Point Bancorp continuing as an independent community-focused banking
company or combining with other potential merger partners, as compared to the effect of Factory Point Bancorp
combining with Berkshire Hills Bancorp pursuant to the merger agreement;

•  the potential for long-term appreciation in the price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock;
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•  the liquidity offered by Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock compared to the lack of liquidity of Factory
Point Bancorp�s common stock;

•  the ability of Berkshire Hills Bancorp to pay the merger consideration;

•  the opportunity to broaden products and services offered to customers by combining with a larger institution;

•  the compatibility of the cultures of the two companies;

•  the fact that 20% of the merger consideration will be composed of cash at $19.50 per share, thereby
permitting Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who wished to receive cash as opposed to Berkshire Hills Bancorp
stock to elect an all cash exchange or an exchange composed of part Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and part
cash, subject to the election, allocation and proration provisions of the merger agreement;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s agreement that one director from Factory Point Bancorp�s board of directors will be
appointed to the Berkshire Hills Bancorp board and the Berkshire Bank board;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s agreement that one director from Factory Point would be recommended for
appointment to Berkshire Hills Foundation that will make contributions to organizations and programs in the markets
served by the combined company;

•  the relatively low level of cost savings that Berkshire Hills Bancorp will need to generate to make the
transaction accretive to earnings of the combined company;

•  the fact that Factory Point Bancorp employees who did not continue as Berkshire Hills Bancorp employees
will be entitled to receive a minimum of four weeks and a maximum of 52 weeks of severance pay;

•  the significant number of Factory Point Bancorp employees that were expected to be retained by the
combined company after consummation of the merger;

•  the prices, multiples of earnings per share and premiums over book value and market value paid in other
recent acquisitions of financial institutions in the New England and Northeast region;

•  the customer orientation of Berkshire Hills Bancorp;

•  the pro forma financial effects of the proposed transaction, including the potential cost savings (resulting
from efficiencies, consolidations and other cost savings) and enhanced revenue anticipated from the transaction and
the effects of the transaction on the risk-based and leverage capital of the combined institution;

•  the fact that Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who receive stock will have the ability to continue to
participate in the growth of the combined company on a tax-deferred basis and also will benefit as a result of the
significantly greater liquidity of the trading market for Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock;

•  the provision of the merger agreement permitting the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors to terminate
the merger agreement if both the average closing price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock during a
measurement period ending ten businesses days before the closing is less than $28.36 and the Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock underperforms a weighted average price of a predetermined list of 17 thrift and bank holding
companies between the date of the merger agreement and the measurement period by 20%, unless Berkshire Hills
Bancorp agrees to increase the exchange ratio pursuant to a formula specified in the merger agreement;
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•  the provision of the merger agreement permitting the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors to consider a
superior acquisition proposal under specified conditions; and

•  the fact that the termination fee provision of the merger agreement requiring Factory Point Bancorp to pay
Berkshire Hills Bancorp $3,600,000 upon the occurrence of certain triggering events could have the effect of
discouraging superior proposals for a business combination of Factory Point Bancorp and a third party.

The foregoing discussion of the information and factors considered by the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors is not intended to be
exhaustive but is believed to include all material factors considered by the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors. In reaching its
determination to approve and recommend the transaction, the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors did not assign any relative or specific
weights to the foregoing factors and individual directors may have given differing weights to different factors.

After deliberating with respect to the merger transaction with Berkshire Hills Bancorp, considering, among other things, the matters discussed
above and the opinion of McConnell, Budd & Romano referred to above, the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors unanimously approved
and adopted the merger agreement and the merger transaction with Berkshire Hills Bancorp.

Opinion of Factory Point Bancorp�s Financial Advisor

On May 14, 2007, McConnell, Budd & Romano, Factory Point Bancorp�s financial advisor, delivered its oral opinion to the board of directors of
Factory Point Bancorp that as of that date, the merger consideration to be received by Factory Point Bancorp shareholders was fair, from a
financial point of view, to the shareholders of Factory Point Bancorp.  The oral opinion was subsequently confirmed in writing and is attached to
this document as Annex C.

Pursuant to the merger agreement, Factory Point Bancorp shareholders will receive 0.5844 shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock in
exchange for each share of Factory Point Bancorp common stock or cash in the amount of $19.50 per share.  The exchange ratio is not subject to
adjustment other than to the limited extent that Berkshire Hills Bancorp has an option to increase the exchange ratio if Factory Point Bancorp
exercises its right to terminate the merger agreement.  Because the exchange ratio has been fixed, the market value of the stock portion of the
consideration to be paid to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders will fluctuate daily with changes in the stock price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp
from the time of announcement up until the closing (see Fluctuating Value of Stock Portion of Consideration).  The value of the cash
consideration remains fixed at $19.50 per share and will not fluctuate.  It is not possible to predict whether the market value of the fixed
exchange ratio common stock consideration will be greater than, equal to or less than $19.50 per share as of the closing date.  To the extent a
shareholder of Factory Point Bancorp elects to exchange their shares for Berkshire common stock, they will, in effect, become a proxy
shareholder of Berkshire as of the time they elect and are allocated Berkshire common stock.  Factory Point Bancorp shareholders also need to
be aware of the potentially different tax treatment that may result from the receipt of common stock as compared to cash.  Each shareholder is
encouraged to consult with their tax advisor in connection with this matter.

On an aggregate basis, using 4,096,273 Factory Point Bancorp shares outstanding as of April 30, 2007, the closing market price of Berkshire
Hills Bancorp of $32.95 on May 11, 2007 (the last trading day before the merger agreement was signed), and assuming 80% of outstanding
shares receive stock, the amount of stock consideration equates to a value of approximately $63,102,201.  Assuming 20% of outstanding shares
receive cash, the aggregate amount of cash consideration to be paid to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders is approximately $15,975,465.  This
equates to a total transaction value of approximately $79,077,665, or a blended (stock and cash) per share value of $19.30, not including option
shares.  The total approximate transaction value, including the economic value of outstanding Factory Point Bancorp options, is $81,458,671
(assuming 318,914 options with a weighted average exercise price of $11.79 per share as of April 30, 2007).
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The opinion of McConnell, Budd & Romano as to the fairness of the merger consideration was based on a number of factors, including the
following:

•  an analysis of the historical and projected future contributions to taxable recurring earnings by the parties;

•  an analysis of the possible future earnings per share for the parties on both a combined and a stand-alone basis
using the purchase method of accounting;

•  consideration of the anticipated dilutive or accretive effects of the prospective transaction on future earnings
per share equivalent of Berkshire Hills Bancorp;

•  consideration of the prospects for the parties to achieve certain operational cost savings as a result of the
transaction;

•  consideration of the total equity capitalization, the tangible equity capitalization, the current risk based capital
adequacy and the projected adequacy thereof for the combined company;

•  the composition of loan portfolios and the methodology of creating reserves for loan and lease losses used by
the parties;

•  respective management opinions of the apparent adequacy of the reserves for loan and lease losses, as of a
point in time for each of the parties;

•  the apparent relative asset quality of the respective loan portfolios as disclosed by the parties;

•  a review of the composition and maturity structure of the deposit bases of each of the parties;

•  consideration of the liquidity position and liquidity strategy being pursued by each of the parties;

•  analysis of the historical trading range, trading patterns, institutional ownership, and apparent relative liquidity
of the common shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp;

•  consideration of the pro forma market capitalization of the anticipated combination; and

•  contemplation of other factors, including certain intangible factors.

With respect to the pending merger with Berkshire Hills Bancorp, McConnell, Budd & Romano participated directly and indirectly in
negotiations during the months of February through May 2007.  McConnell, Budd & Romano participated in the due diligence process during
April 2007 and presented its findings to the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors on May 14, 2007.  On May 14, 2007, McConnell, Budd &
Romano issued its oral fairness opinion to the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors that the total merger consideration to be received from
Berkshire Hills Bancorp was fair, from a financial point of view, to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders.  McConnell, Budd & Romano has acted
on a contractual basis as a financial advisor to Factory Point Bancorp since August 1999.

McConnell, Budd & Romano was retained based on its qualifications and experience in the financial analysis of financial services holding
companies, banking and thrift institutions generally, its knowledge of the Northeast regional banking market in particular and of the Eastern
United States banking markets in general, as well as its experience with merger and acquisition transactions involving financial institutions.  As
a part of this investment banking business, McConnell, Budd & Romano is regularly engaged in the valuation of financial institutions and their
securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions, private placements, and valuations for investment, corporate, estate and other purposes.
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McConnell, Budd & Romano maintains an affiliation with each of Highlander Capital Group, Inc., a registered broker-dealer, and Highlander
Capital Management, LLC, a registered investment advisory firm (together, �Highlander�), pursuant to which certain employees of McConnell,
Budd & Romano are also employees or associated persons of Highlander.  In the ordinary course of its business, Highlander may, from time to
time, own the securities of Berkshire Hills Bancorp or Factory Point Bancorp for its own account, for the accounts of its customers and the
customers of McConnell, Budd & Romano, and for the accounts of the individual employees of Highlander and/or McConnell, Budd &
Romano.  Accordingly, Highlander and/or McConnell, Budd & Romano and their respective employees may, from time to time, have a long or
short position in, and buy or sell debt or equity securities of, Berkshire Hills Bancorp or Factory Point Bancorp.  David Budd, a principal of
McConnell, Budd & Romano, owns 21,000 share of Factory Point Bancorp common stock.

The full text of McConnell, Budd & Romano�s opinion, which sets forth assumptions made, matters considered and limits on the review
undertaken by McConnell, Budd & Romano, is attached to this document as Annex C.  McConnell, Budd & Romano urges Factory
Point Bancorp shareholders to read both the opinion in its entirety and this document in its entirety.  The opinion of McConnell,
Budd & Romano is directed to the financial fairness of the consideration offered to Factory Point Bancorp
shareholders in the transaction as provided and described in the merger agreement dated as of May 14, 2007, and does
not constitute a recommendation to any holder of Factory Point Bancorp common stock as to how such holder should
vote at the Factory Point Bancorp shareholders meeting.  The summary of the opinion and the matters considered in
McConnell, Budd & Romano�s analysis set forth in this document are qualified in their entirety by reference to the text
of the opinion itself.  The opinion is necessarily based upon conditions as of the date of the opinion and upon
information made available to McConnell, Budd & Romano through the date of the opinion.  In terms of the analytical
process followed, no limitations were imposed by the Factory Point Bancorp board upon McConnell, Budd &
Romano with respect to the investigations made, matters considered or procedures followed in the course of rendering
the opinion.

In arriving at its opinion, McConnell, Budd & Romano considered the following:

•  the draft merger agreement by and between Factory Point Bancorp and Berkshire Hills Bancorp presented to
the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors at its meeting of May 14, 2007;

•  Factory Point Bancorp�s annual reports to shareholders for 2006, 2005 and 2004;

•  Factory Point Bancorp�s internal financial statements as provided by management for the first calendar
quarter of 2007;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s annual reports to shareholders for 2006, 2005 and 2004;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s annual reports on Form 10-K for 2006, 2005 and 2004;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the first calendar quarter of 2007;

•  discussions relating to the business, earnings expectations, assets, liabilities, reserves for loan and lease
losses and general prospects of the respective companies;

•  the recent historical record of reported prices, trading volume and trading patterns for Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock;

•  the recent historical record of cash and stock dividend payments for the respective companies;

•  discussions with certain members of the senior management of the companies concerning the past and
current results of their respective operations and current financial condition and management�s opinion of future
prospects;
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•  anecdotal information, supplemented by the analysis of certain available demographic data, with request to
the current state of and future prospects for the economy of the Northeastern United States generally and the relevant
market areas for Factory Point Bancorp and Berkshire Hills Bancorp in particular; and

•  such other studies and analyses as McConnell, Budd & Romano considered appropriate under the
circumstances associated with this particular transaction.

McConnell, Budd & Romano�s opinion takes into account its assessment of general economic, market and financial conditions and its experience
in other transactions, as well as its experience in securities valuation and its knowledge of the financial services industry generally.  For purposes
of rendering its opinion, McConnell, Budd & Romano has assumed and relied upon the accuracy and completeness of the information provided
to it by Factory Point Bancorp and Berkshire Hills Bancorp and does not assume any responsibility for the independent verification of such
information.  In the course of rendering its opinion, McConnell, Budd & Romano has not completed any independent valuation or appraisal of
any of the assets or liabilities of either Factory Point Bancorp or Berkshire Hills Bancorp and has not been provided with such valuations or
appraisals from any other source.  With respect to any forecasts considered by McConnell, Budd & Romano in the course of rendering its
opinion, McConnell, Budd & Romano has assumed without independent verification that such forecasts have been reasonably prepared to reflect
the best currently available estimates and judgments of the parties making such forecasts.

The following is a summary of the material analyses employed by McConnell, Budd & Romano in connection with rendering its opinion.  Given
that it is a summary, it is not a complete and comprehensive description of all of the analyses performed, or an enumeration of all the matters
considered by McConnell, Budd & Romano in arriving at its opinion.  The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complicated process, involving
a determination as to the most appropriate and relevant methods of financial analysis and the application of those methods to the circumstances
associated with a specific transaction.  Therefore, such an opinion is not readily susceptible to a summary description.  In arriving at its fairness
opinion, McConnell, Budd & Romano did not attribute any particular weight to any one specific analysis or factor considered by it and made a
number of qualitative as well as quantitative judgments as to the significance of each analysis and factor.  Therefore, McConnell, Budd &
Romano recommends that its analyses must be considered as a whole and feels that attributing undue weight to any single analysis or factor
considered could create a misleading or incomplete view of the process leading to the formation of its opinion.  In its analyses, McConnell, Budd
& Romano has made certain assumptions with respect to banking industry performance, general business and economic conditions and other
factors, many of which are beyond the control of management of Factory Point Bancorp, Berkshire Hills Bancorp and McConnell, Budd &
Romano.  Any estimates which are referred to in McConnell, Budd & Romano�s analyses are not necessarily indicative of actual values or
predictive of future results or values.  Future results and values may vary significantly from any estimates set forth.

Fluctuating Value of Stock Portion of Consideration

The exchange ratio at which Factory Point Bancorp shareholders will exchange Factory Point Bancorp common stock for Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock is fixed at 0.5844, although pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement, Berkshire Hills Bancorp does have an option
to increase the exchange ratio in response to a termination notice from Factory Point Bancorp as a result of a price decline.  Consequently, the
total value of the stock portion of the consideration will fluctuate with fluctuations in the price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock. 
McConnell, Budd & Romano analyzed potential total transaction values for Factory Point Bancorp using various prices for Berkshire Hills
Bancorp.  The following table illustrates these potential transaction values in the aggregate, with the total transaction value for any given
Berkshire Hills Bancorp market price exclusive of the economic value of the conversion of outstanding Factory Point Bancorp option shares.
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Potential Aggregate Transaction Values to be Received by Factory Point Bancorp Shareholders

Berkshire 
Hills Bancorp
Stock Price

Fixed
Exchange
Ratio

Stock Portion 
Value per
Share

Cash Portion 
Value per
Share

Total Transaction
Value (1)

Total Transaction
Value Per Share 
(2)

$40.04 0.5844 $ 23.40 $ 19.50 $ 92,663,311 $ 22.62
38.38 0.5844 22.43 19.50 89,467,984 21.84
36.71 0.5844 21.45 19.50 86,272,657 21.06
33.37 0.5844 19.50 19.50 79,882,003 19.50
30.03 0.5844 17.55 19.50 73,491,349 17.94
28.36 0.5844 16.58 19.50 70,296,022 17.16
26.70 0.5844 15.60 19.50 67,100,695 16.38

(1)  Exclusive of value of converted options.  Based on 4,096,273 shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock
outstanding as of April 30, 2007 and assumes 80% are exchanged for Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock at the
fixed exchange ratio and 20% are exchanged for $19.50 per share in cash.

(2)  Calculated by dividing the total transaction value in the previous column by 4,096,273, the number of shares
of Factory Point Bancorp common stock outstanding as of April 30, 2007.

The examples above are intended to be illustrative only.  The per share value of the merger consideration that you actually receive will be based
on the price of  Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock at the time of closing times the exchange ratio, plus the percentage of cash received at
$19.50 per share.  Therefore, if the price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp stock is above $33.37, the stock value per share of Factory Point Bancorp
will be greater than $19.50.  If the price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp is less than $33.37, the stock value per share of Factory Point Bancorp will
be less than $19.50.

If at any time during the five day period commencing with the last day of the measurement period (as defined in the merger agreement) the price
of Berkshire Hills Bancorp stock is less than $28.36 and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock underperforms a bank peer index, as defined in
the merger agreement, by more than 20%, Factory Point Bancorp has the right to terminate the transaction.  In the event Factory Point Bancorp
elects to terminate, Berkshire Hills Bancorp will have the option to increase the fixed exchange ratio to equal the lesser of (x) a number obtained
by dividing (A) the product of $28.36 and the exchange ratio by (B) the Berkshire Hills Bancorp price and (y) a number obtained by dividing
(A) the product of the Index Ratio (as defined in the merger agreement) and the exchange ratio by (B) the Berkshire Hills Bancorp Bancorp
Ratio (as defined in the merger agreement).  The per share cash value of the consideration is fixed at $19.50 and will not fluctuate.

As of June 4, 2007, a date proximate to the date of this document, Berkshire Hills Bancorp closing price was $32.76, equating to a stock value
per share of $19.14 (0.5844 x $32.76) and an aggregate transaction value (exclusive of the value of converted options) of approximately
$78,713,798.

Upstream Analysis

McConnell, Budd & Romano examined the hypothetical competitive acquisition capacity of other potential buyers in the New England and New
York marketplaces that would logically be interested in acquiring Factory Point Bancorp across a range of purchase prices and transaction
structures.  The customary measures of financial impact of a potential merger were evaluated, including but not limited to, earnings per share
dilution or accretion, book value and tangible book value dilution or accretion, the earnings impact of core deposit intangible amortization
expense, resultant tangible capital ratios and reasonable levels of cost savings that may be achieved.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp represented a
competitive buyer in this regard, and compared favorably against other potential buyers for all of these measures.
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Forecasted Pro Forma Financial Analysis

McConnell, Budd & Romano analyzed the estimated financial impact of the merger on Berkshire Hill Bancorp�s earnings per share for 2007 and
book value and tangible book value per share.  For the purpose of this analysis, McConnell, Budd & Romano used the mean earnings per share
estimate for Berkshire Hills Bancorp for 2007 and management�s internal projection for forecasted earnings per share for Factory Point Bancorp. 
McConnell, Budd & Romano assumed that the merger will result in cost savings.  The analysis indicated that the transaction is expected to be
accretive within the first full year of combined operations.

With respect to pro forma capital adequacy, the analysis indicated that Berkshire Bank�s leverage ratio, tier one risk based capital ratio and total
risk based capital ratio would all remain above regulatory minimums for well-capitalized institutions.

Discounted Earnings Stream and Terminal Value Analysis

McConnell, Budd & Romano conducted an analysis that estimated the present value of a future stream of after-tax earnings of Factory Point
Bancorp through December 31, 2011, utilizing various assumptions and earnings projections provided by Factory Point Bancorp management, in
order to value the company on a stand-alone basis going forward.  The purpose of this analysis is to compare the discounted present values at the
end of five years with the per share consideration value of the merger.  In evaluating Factory Point Bancorp�s projected earnings stream across a
five year time horizon, McConnell, Budd & Romano utilized internal forecasted net income for 2007, a 4% growth rate in earnings for
subsequent years, and a 50% constant dividend payout ratio.

To approximate the terminal value of Factory Point Bancorp common stock at December 31, 2011, McConnell, Budd & Romano applied a range
of price/earnings multiples, focusing on 14 x to 18 x.  The earnings stream was then discounted to present values using a range of discount rates,
focusing on 9% to 11%.  A discount rate is applied to future earnings streams, consisting of essentially a risk-free rate of return, such as the 10
year treasury bond, plus an additional risk premium.  The discount rate on this basis equals approximately 10.0%  The lower the discount rate,
the higher the present value; the higher the discount rate, the lower the present value.  McConnell, Budd & Romano examined the following
present values per share:

Price/Earnings Multiple
Discount Rate 14 x 15 x 16 x 17 x 18 x
9.0% $ 14.85 $ 15.74 $ 16.62 $ 17.51 $ 18.39
10.0 14.23 15.08 15.93 16.77 17.62
11.0 13.65 14.46 15.26 16.07 16.88

The resulting calculated values across the range of price/earnings multiples and discount rates, as illustrated in the above table, range from
$13.65 to $18.39.  Using the closing market price of $32.95 for Berkshire Hills Bancorp stock on May 11, 2007 and the fixed exchange ratio of
0.5844, the implied blended (stock and cash) per share value in the merger, excluding the economic value of converted stock options, is $19.30. 
This value falls above the range of calculated values for Factory Point Bancorp on a stand-alone basis, suggesting that Factory Point Bancorp
shareholders� interests are better served by completing the proposed transaction than they might be remaining independent based on the
assumptions used.  As of June 4, 2007, a date proximate to the mailing of this document, the implied blended per share value in the merger is
$19.22, using a closing price of $32.76 for Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock on the same date.  This value also falls above the range of
calculated values for Factory Point Bancorp on a stand-alone basis.

McConnell, Budd & Romano emphasizes that terminal value analysis is a widely used valuation methodology, but the results of such
methodology are dependent upon the numerous assumptions made.  The results of such analysis may not be indicative of actual values or future
results.
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Analysis of Comparable Transactions

McConnell, Budd & Romano is reluctant to place excessive emphasis on the analysis of comparable transactions as a valuation methodology
due to what it considers to be inherent limitations of the application of the results to specific cases.  McConnell, Budd & Romano believes that
this analysis frequently fails to adequately take into consideration such factors as:

•  differences in the underlying capitalization of the comparable institutions which are being acquired;

•  differences in the historic earnings (or loss) patterns recorded by the compared institutions which can depict
a very different trend than might be implied by examining only recent financial results;

•  failure to exclude non-recurring profit or loss items from the last twelve months� earnings streams of target
companies which can distort apparent earnings multiples;

•  differences in the form or forms of consideration used to complete the transaction; and

•  such less accessible factors as the relative population, business and economic demographics of the acquired
entities� markets as compared or contrasted to such factors for the markets in which comparable companies are doing
business.

With these reservations in mind, McConnell, Budd & Romano nonetheless examined statistics associated with other merger and acquisition
transactions.  The following criteria were utilized to create the sample:

•  commercial banks;

•  announcement dates of June 30, 2006 through May 10, 2007; and

•  northeast region of the United States.

The above criteria generated a list of 21 transactions as follows:

Buyer Seller
Seller
State

Date
Announced

Deal Value
($M)

Susquehanna Bancshares Inc. Community Banks Inc. PA 04/30/2007 852.3
New Hampshire Thrift Bancshares First Community Bank VT 04/16/2007   16.8
Bradford Bancorp Inc. Patapsco Bancorp Inc. MD 03/19/2007   45.3
BankFive MHC New Bedford Community Bancorp MA 02/20/2007   12.5
Chittenden Corp. Merrill Merchant Bancshares ME 01/18/2007 109.6
UCBH Holdings Inc. CAB Holding LLC DE 01/10/2007 130.7
Community Bank System Inc. TLNB Financial Corp. NY 01/09/2007   17.6
Northwest Bancorp Inc. (MHC) Penn Laurel Financial Corp. PA 01/04/2007   32.7
Citizens & Northern Corp. Citizens Bancorp Inc. PA 12/21/2006   29.1
Merrimack Bancorp MHC Bow Mills Bank & Trust NH 12/14/2006   22.4
New Hampshire Thrift Bancshares First Brandon Financial Corp. VT 12/14/2006   21.2
Butler Bancorp MHC Marlborough Bancorp MA 12/13/2006    NA
Sandy Spring Bancorp Inc. CN Bancorp Inc. MD 12/13/2006   44.2
New England Bancshares First Valley Bancorp, Inc. CT 11/21/2006   25.6
Provident Financial Services First Morris Bank & Trust NJ 10/15/2006 124.2
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. Capital Crossing Bank MA 09/19/2006 210.1
Community Banks Inc. East Prospect State Bank PA 09/12/2006   21.5
Conestoga Bancorp Inc. PSB Bancorp Inc. PA 08/30/2006   93.9
Community Bank System Inc. ONB Corporation NY 08/02/2006   15.7
Gardiner Savings Institution FSB First Citizens Bank ME 07/26/2006   20.9
New Alliance Bancshares Inc. Westbank Corp. MA 07/18/2006 116.5

Edgar Filing: BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC - Form S-4

The Berkshire Hills Bancorp board of directors had previously unanimously approved the definitive merger agreement and related documents and authorized the execution of the merger agreement. After the close of the financial markets on May 14, 2007, Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp executed the merger agreement and, before the opening of the financial markets on May 15, 2007, issued a joint press release publicly announcing the transaction.59



Source:  SNL Financial
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The table that follows illustrates the resultant multiples on customary measures of transaction value and compares them to the proposed merger
between Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp.  McConnell, Budd & Romano assumed a transaction value of $19.30 per share for
Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp, which represents the blended (stock and cash) transaction value per share, excluding stock
options, and based on the closing market price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp on May 11, 2007.  In addition, considering Factory Point Bancorp�s
historical and current high level of profitability (based on ROAA and ROAE), it was appropriate to evaluate average multiples for the specific
transactions in which the seller was �high performing� (ROAA > = 1.00%).  McConnell, Budd & Romano found this group of transactions to be
most comparable to Berkshire Hills Bancorp/Factory Point Bancorp.  An important element of this analysis is to recognize that a transaction
with an underperforming bank seller will often result in an artificially inflated price/earnings multiple.

Transaction Multiples

Transactions Announced Between 06/30/06 through 05/10/07

Seller

Deal 
Value
($M)

Price/Trailing 12 
Months
Earnings (x)

Price/Tang.
Book Value
(%)

Price/
Assets
(%)

Core Deposit
Premium (%)

Community Banks Inc. 852.3   19.86    NA   23.48    NA
First Community Bank   16.8    NM 205.96   20.11   15.27
Patapsco Bancorp Inc.   45.3   30.26 277.78   18.35   17.95
New Bedford Community Bancorp   12.5   18.68 168.37   18.07     9.27
Merrill Merchants Bancshares 109.6   17.70 295.27   24.63    NA
CAB Holding LLC 130.7   48.57 334.36   40.64   44.10
TLNB Financial Corp.   17.6   33.08 242.22   16.99   14.92
Penn Laurel Financial Corp.   32.7   15.90 180.97   15.17     9.52
Citizens Bancorp Inc.   29.1   20.14 159.41   20.38   11.93
Bow Mills Bank & Trust   22.4   25.29 221.10   18.00   11.37
First Brandon Financial Corp.   21.2   16.98 200.69   21.33   13.33
Marlborough Bancorp    NA    NA    NA    NA    NA
CN Bancorp Inc.   44.2   30.10 209.78   29.23   20.40
First Valley Bancorp, Inc.   25.6   26.49 226.99   13.84   10.40
First Morris Bank & Trust 124.2   46.79 327.61   21.76   18.74
Capital Crossing Bank 210.1   12.99 205.20   19.90    NM
East Prospect State Bank   21.5   20.38 153.17   37.40   19.49
PSB Bancorp Inc.   93.9    NM    NA   16.69    NA
ONB Corporation   15.7   20.98 167.85   16.41     8.38
First Citizens Bank   20.9   27.31 166.03   15.47     7.56
Westbank Corp. 116.5   24.21 304.23   14.17   16.75

Mean   98.1   25.32 224.83   21.10   15.59
Median   30.9   22.60 207.87   19.13   14.13

Factory Point Bancorp Bancorp   80.4   17.71 304.42   23.30   19.87

Mean High Performing Banks(1) 204.5 17.77 204.54   24.14 14.03
Median High Performing Banks(1) 65.6 18.19 200.69   22.41 13.33

(1)  High Performing Bank = ROAA > = 1.00%                                             Source:  SNL Financial
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To gain additional perspective and to further highlight the �high performing� bank targets that comprise the averages in the above table,
McConnell, Budd & Romano compared the underlying financial characteristics of the target companies to Factory Point Bancorp:

Selected Financial Data for Target Companies at Time of Announcement

Transactions Announced Between 06/30/06 through 05/10/07 - Northeast Region

Seller(1)

Target 
Assets
($000)

Target Tangible 
Equity/Assets 
(%)

Target 
ROAA
(%)

Target 
ROAE
(%)

Target Non-
Performing 
Assets/Assets
(%)

Community Banks Inc. 3,629,386    NA 1.09   7.93 0.43
First Community Bank      83,308   9.76 0.20   1.91 0.00
Patapsco Bancorp Inc.    246,814   6.48 0.60   7.62 0.20
New Bedford Community Bancorp      69,159 10.54 1.01   9.84 0.00
Merrill Merchants Bancshares    444,952   8.28 1.40 16.82  NA
CAB Holding LLC    321,597 12.36 0.83   6.07 0.49
TLNB Financial Corp.    103,575   7.21 0.52   6.33 1.41
Penn Laurel Financial Corp.    215,471   8.40 0.83   8.49 1.36
Citizens Bancorp Inc.    142,663 12.79 0.99   7.58  NA
Bow Mills Bank & Trust    124,295   8.14 0.65   8.34 0.85
First Brandon Financial Corp.      99,526 10.75 1.46 14.11 0.56
Marlborough Bancorp      86,386 10.54 (0.03)  (0.30) 0.00
CN Bancorp Inc.    151,250 13.58 0.96   7.26  NA
First Valley Bancorp, Inc.    184,753   5.74 0.57   9.37 0.14
First Morris Bank & Trust    570,554   6.65 0.26   3.81 0.00
Capital Crossing Bank 1,055,947   7.12 1.45 19.17  NA
East Prospect State Bank      57,479 24.42 2.63 10.30 0.00
PSB Bancorp Inc.    562,371    NA (2.30) (26.16) 0.53
ONB Corporation      95,457   9.78 0.87   8.66 0.22
First Citizens Bank    134,892   9.29 0.57   6.07 0.23
Westbank Corp.    821,836   4.43 0.45   7.76 0.24

Mean 438,175 9.80 0.71 6.71 0.39
Median 151,250 9.29 0.83 7.76 0.23

Berkshire Hills Bancorp/ Factory Point
Bancorp 339,378 8.09 1.34 15.95 0.31

Mean High Performing Banks(2)    892,742 12.22 1.51 13.03 0.25
Median High Performing Banks(2)    272,239 10.54 1.43 12.21 0.22

Source:  SNL Financial

(1)  Financial data for seller as of most recently reported financial date at time of announcement.

(2)  High Performing Bank = ROAA > = 1.00%

The transaction multiples compare favorably with the high-performing mean and median multiples.  On a price to last twelve months earnings
basis, the transaction multiple of 17.71 x is approximately equivalent to the mean for the high-performing group, but below the median for this
measure.  In terms of price as a percentage of book and tangible book value, 266.27% and 288.56%, respectively, are significantly above both
the means and medians for both of these measures for the group.  A core deposit premium of 20.79% is significantly above the mean and median
for this measure and total price as a percentage of assets is below the mean for the group, but above the median.  Underlying financial data for
Factory Point Bancorp is as of or through March 31, 2007.
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Conclusion

Based on the whole of McConnell, Budd & Romano�s various analyses and taking into consideration the various factors which McConnell, Budd
& Romano believes are relevant to the circumstances surrounding the proposed transaction and subject to the limitations and qualifications
enumerated above, McConnell, Budd & Romano delivered its written opinion to the board of directors of Factory Point Bancorp that the merger
consideration to be received by Factory Point Bancorp shareholders is fair from a financial point of view.  McConnell, Budd & Romano�s signed
and dated written opinion appears in Annex C of this proxy statement-prospectus.

Compensation of McConnell, Budd & Romano

Pursuant to a letter agreement with Factory Point Bancorp dated April 11, 2007, McConnell, Budd & Romano received a fixed cash fee of
$10,000 for its services in soliciting non-binding, non-disclosable expressions of interest in a possible transaction from a selected group of
financial institutions.  In addition, McConnell, Budd & Romano will receive a cash transaction fee contingent upon the following events: (1)
$200,000 upon the execution and public announcement of a definitive agreement with respect to the transaction; (2) $300,000 upon mailing of
this document containing McConnell, Budd & Romano�s written opinion; and (3) a final fee of 1.00% of the aggregate �fair market value� of the
consideration to be paid to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders (including the value of in the money stock options converted in the merger),
contingent on closing of the transaction, minus $510,000 in fees previously paid.  For purposes of the final fee, �fair market value� of stock
consideration is to be determined based on the average closing price for Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock for the 15 business days ended
one business day prior to the closing date.  The fair market value of the in the money converted options is to be based on the difference between
the fair market value of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and the weighted average exercise price of all outstanding options as of the same
date.  Based on outstanding shares and options of Factory Point Bancorp as of April 30, 2007 and assuming a fair market value of the merger
consideration of $19.50 per share, the aggregate fees to be received by McConnell, Budd & Romano in connection with the merger are estimated
to be approximately $823,000.

The transaction fee payable to McConnell, Budd & Romano represents compensation for services rendered in connection with the solicitation of
indications of interest, analysis of the transaction, support of the negotiations, participation in the drafting of documentation, and for the
rendering of McConnell, Budd & Romano�s opinion.  Factory Point Bancorp has also agreed to reimburse McConnell, Budd & Romano for its
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the merger.  Factory Point Bancorp has also agreed to indemnify McConnell,
Budd & Romano and its directors, officers and employees against certain losses, claims, damages and liabilities relating to or arising out of its
engagement, including liabilities under the federal securities laws.

During 2006, McConnell, Budd & Romano received aggregate fees of $35,000 to render financial advisory and investment banking services to
Factory Point Bancorp to include, but not limited to, evaluating the range of strategic opportunities available to Factory Point Bancorp.  Of this
amount, $15,000 represented fees for general financial advisory services rendered in 2005.

McConnell, Budd & Romano has filed a written consent with the Securities and Exchange Commission relating to the inclusion of its fairness
opinion and the reference to such opinion and to McConnell, Budd & Romano in the registration statement in which this document is included. 
In giving such consent, McConnell, Budd & Romano did not admit that it comes within the category of persons whose consent is required under
Section 7 of the Securities Act of 1933 or the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission thereunder, nor did McConnell,
Budd & Romano thereby admit that it is an expert with respect to any part of such registration statement within the meaning of the term �expert�
as used in the Securities Act of 1933, or the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission thereunder.
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Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s Reasons for the Merger and Recommendation of the Board of Directors

Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors believes that the merger is in the best interests of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and its shareholders.  In
deciding to approve the merger, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors considered a number of factors, including:

•  its understanding of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s business, operations, financial
condition, earnings and prospects and of Factory Point Bancorp�s business, operations, financial
condition, earnings and prospects;

•  its understanding of the current and prospective environment in which Berkshire
Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp operate, including national and local economic
conditions, the competitive environment for financial institutions generally and continuing
consolidation in the financial services industry, and the likely effect of these factors on Berkshire
Hills Bancorp in light of, and in absence of, the proposed transactions;

•  the scale, scope, strength and diversity of operations, product lines and delivery
systems that could be achieved by combining Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp;

•  achievement of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s long-standing objective to enter into
the Southern Vermont market;

•  the strength of Factory Point Bancorp�s franchise, including its strong asset
quality and performance metrics;

•  that the acquired equity will provide surplus capital for stock repurchases or
other general corporate purposes;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s historic performance in similar markets;

•  the reports of Berkshire Hills Bancorp management and the financial presentation
by Sandler O�Neill to Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors concerning, among other things,
the operations, financial condition and prospects of Factory Point Bancorp and the expected
financial impact of the merger on the combined company, including pro form assets, earnings,
deposits and regulatory capital ratios;

•  the historical and current market prices of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock
and Factory Point Bancorp common stock, as well as the financial analyses prepared by Sandler
O�Neill;

•  the opinion delivered to the Berkshire Hills Bancorp board of directors by
Sandler O�Neill to the effect that, as of the date of the opinion and based upon and subject to the
considerations described in its opinion and other matters as Sandler O�Neill considered relevant,
the merger consideration to be paid to the shareholders in the merger was fair, from a financial
point of view, to Berkshire Hills Bancorp and its shareholders;

•  the review by the Berkshire Hills Bancorp board of directors with its
management and legal and financial advisors of the structure of the merger and the financial and
other terms of the merger, the consideration to be paid to Factory Point shareholders and the
expectation of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s legal advisors that the merger will qualify as a transaction
of a type that is generally tax-free to Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point shareholders for
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U.S. federal income tax purposes;

•  the fact that Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s management team will remain intact
following the merger and that Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Berkshire Bank�s boards of directors
will be increased to accommodate the addition of the one current member of the Factory Point
Bancorp board of directors;
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•  the complementary nature of the business, market areas and corporate cultures
of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp;

•  that the combined company will have an attractive commercial and community
banking franchise;

•  the Factory Point brings a strong business and wealth management
demographic to complement Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s franchise;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s belief that the combination of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp�s and Factory Point will help create a powerful regional financial services provider;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s expectation that it will achieve cost savings equal to
25% of Factory Point Bancorp�s current annualized non-interest expenses; and

•  for 2008, the first full year of combined operations, Berkshire Hills Bancorp
expects the transaction to be accretive to its earnings per share.

While Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors considered these and other factors, the board of directors did not assign any specific or
relative weights to the factors considered and did not make any determination with respect to any individual factor.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s
board of directors collectively made its determination with respect to the merger based on the conclusion reached by its members, based on the
factors that each of them considered appropriate, that the merger is in the best interests of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s shareholders.  The terms of
the merger were the result of arm�s-length negotiations between representatives of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and representatives of Factory Point
Bancorp.  The Berkshire Hills Bancorp board of directors recommends that Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s shareholders vote to approve the merger
agreement and the related transactions.

Opinion of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s Financial Advisor

By letter dated April 12, 2007, Berkshire Hills Bancorp retained Sandler O�Neill to act as its financial advisor in connection with a possible
business combination involving Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp.  Sandler O�Neill is a nationally recognized investment
banking firm whose principal business specialty is financial institutions.  In the ordinary course of its investment banking business, Sandler
O�Neill is regularly engaged in the valuation of financial institutions and their securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions and other
corporate transactions.

Sandler O�Neill acted as financial advisor to Berkshire Hills Bancorp in connection with the proposed transaction and participated in certain of
the negotiations leading to the execution of a definitive merger agreement on May 14, 2007.  At the May 11, 2007 meeting at which Berkshire
Hills Bancorp�s board considered and approved the merger agreement, subject to satisfactory resolution of certain outstanding issues, Sandler
O�Neill delivered to the board its opinion in writing, that, as of such date, the merger consideration was fair to Berkshire Hills Bancorp from a
financial point of view.  The full text of Sandler O�Neill�s opinion is attached as Annex B to this joint proxy statement/prospectus. The
opinion outlines the procedures followed, assumptions made, matters considered and qualifications and limitations on the review
undertaken by Sandler O�Neill in rendering its opinion.  The description of the opinion set forth below is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the opinion.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s shareholders are urged to read the entire opinion carefully in connection with their
consideration of the proposed merger.

Sandler O�Neill�s opinion speaks only as of the date of the opinion.  The opinion was directed to the Berkshire Hills Bancorp board and is
directed only to the fairness of the merger consideration to Berkshire Hills Bancorp from a financial point of view.  It does not address
the underlying business decision of Berkshire Hills Bancorp to engage in the merger or any other aspect of the merger and is not a
recommendation to any Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholder as to how such shareholder should vote at the special meeting with respect
to the merger or any other matter.
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In connection with rendering its May 14, 2007 opinion, Sandler O�Neill reviewed and considered, among other things:

(1)  the merger agreement;

(2)  certain publicly available financial statements and other historical financial information of Berkshire
Hills Bancorp that Sandler O�Neill deemed relevant;

(3)  certain publicly available financial statements and other historical financial information of Factory
Point Bancorp that Sandler O�Neill deemed relevant;

(4)  publicly available earnings per share estimates for Berkshire Hills Bancorp for the years ending
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008 as published by I/B/E/S and reviewed with senior management of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp;

(5)  internal financial projections for Factory Point Bancorp for the year ending December 31, 2007
furnished by senior management of Factory Point Bancorp and adjusted by senior management of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp and an estimated earnings growth rate for the years thereafter;

(6)  to the extent publicly available, the financial terms of certain recent business combinations in the
commercial banking industry;

(7)  the current market environment generally and the commercial banking environment in particular;
and

(8)  such other information, financial studies, analyses and investigations and financial, economic and
market criteria as Sandler O�Neill considered relevant.

Sandler O�Neill also discussed with certain members of senior management of Berkshire Hills Bancorp the business, financial condition, results
of operations and prospects of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and held similar discussions with certain members of senior management of Factory
Point Bancorp regarding the business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects of Factory Point Bancorp.

                In performing its reviews and analyses and in rendering its opinion, Sandler O�Neill relied upon the accuracy and completeness of all
the financial and other information that was available to them from public sources, that was provided to Sandler O�Neill by Berkshire Hills
Bancorp or Factory Point Bancorp or their respective representatives or that was otherwise reviewed by Sandler O�Neill and have assumed such
accuracy and completeness for purposes of rendering this opinion.  Sandler O�Neill further relied on the assurances of the management of each
Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp that they are not aware of any facts or circumstances that would make any of such
information inaccurate or misleading.  Sandler O�Neill has not been asked to undertake, and has not undertaken, an independent verification of
any of such information and Sandler O�Neill does not assume any responsibility or liability for the accuracy or completeness thereof.  Sandler
O�Neill did not make an independent evaluation or appraisal of the specific assets, the collateral securing the assets or the liabilities (contingent
or otherwise) of Berkshire Hills Bancorp or Factory Point Bancorp or any of their subsidiaries, or the collectibility of any such assets, nor has
Sandler O�Neill been furnished with any such evaluations or appraisals.  Sandler O�Neill did not make an independent evaluation of the adequacy
of the allowance for loan losses of Berkshire Hills Bancorp or Factory Point Bancorp nor has Sandler O�Neill reviewed any individual credit files
relating to Berkshire Hills Bancorp or Factory Point Bancorp.  Sandler O�Neill assumed, with Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s consent, that the
respective allowances for loan losses for both Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp were adequate to cover such losses.
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The consensus earnings per share estimates for Berkshire Hills Bancorp for the years ending December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008 as
published by I/B/E/S and the internal budgets and estimates for growth used and relied upon by Sandler O�Neill in its analyses of Factory Point
Bancorp were discussed with Berkshire Hills Bancorp senior management and Factory Point Bancorp, respectively, who confirmed to Sandler
O�Neill that those budgets and estimates reflected the best currently available estimates and judgments of the future financial performance of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp.  With respect to the internal budgets and growth estimates for Factory Point Bancorp,
Sandler O�Neill used and relied on the budgets provided by the senior management, of Factory Point Bancorp, as adjusted by and discussed with
Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s senior management and those budgets and estimates reflected best currently available estimates and judgments of the
future financial performance of Factory Point Bancorp.  All projections of transaction costs, purchase accounting adjustments and expected cost
savings related to the merger were provided by or reviewed with senior management of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and such senior management
confirmed to Sandler O�Neill that those projections reflected to best currently available estimates and judgments of such senior management.  
Sandler O�Neill assumed that the financial performances reflected in all budgets, estimates and projections used by it in its analyses would be
achieved.  Sandler O�Neill expressed no opinion as to such budgets, estimates or projections or the assumptions on which they were based.
Sandler O�Neill also assumed that there has been no material change in the assets, financial condition, results of operations, business or prospects
of Berkshire Hills Bancorp or Factory Point Bancorp since the date of the last financial statements made available to them and that Berkshire
Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp will remain as going concerns for all periods relevant to the analyses.

With respect to the merger agreement, Sandler O�Neill assumed that all of the representations and warranties contained in the merger agreement
and all related agreements are true and correct, that each party to such agreements will perform all of the covenants required to be performed by
such party under the agreements, that the conditions precedent in the merger agreement are not waived and that the merger will be a tax-free
reorganization for federal income tax purposes. Finally, with Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s consent, Sandler O�Neill relied upon the advice received
from Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s legal, accounting and tax advisors as to all legal, accounting and tax matters relating to the merger agreement and
the other transactions contemplated by the agreement.

Sandler O�Neill�s opinion was necessarily based upon market, economic and other conditions as they existed on, and could be evaluated as of, the
date of its opinion. Events occurring after the date of the opinion could materially affect the opinion.  Sandler O�Neill has not undertaken to
update, revise, reaffirm or withdraw its opinion or otherwise comment upon events occurring after the date hereof.  Sandler O�Neill expressed no
opinion as to what the value of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock will be when issued to Factory Point Bancorp�s shareholders pursuant to
the Agreement or the prices at which the common stock of Berkshire Hills Bancorp may trade at any time.

In rendering its May 14, 2007 opinion, Sandler O�Neill performed a variety of financial analyses.  The following is a summary of the material
analyses performed by Sandler O�Neill, but is not a complete description of all the analyses underlying Sandler O�Neill�s opinion.  The summary
includes information presented in tabular format.  In order to fully understand the financial analyses, these tables must be read together
with the accompanying text.  The tables alone do not constitute a complete description of the financial analyses.  The preparation of a
fairness opinion is a complex process involving subjective judgments as to the most appropriate and relevant methods of financial analysis and
the application of those methods to the particular circumstances. The process, therefore, is not necessarily susceptible to a partial analysis or
summary description. Sandler O�Neill believes that its analyses must be considered as a whole and that selecting portions of the factors and
analyses to be considered without considering all factors and analyses, or attempting to ascribe relative weights to some or all such factors and
analyses, could create an incomplete view of the evaluation process underlying its opinion.  Also, no company included in Sandler O�Neill�s
comparative analyses described below is identical to Berkshire Hills Bancorp or Factory Point Bancorp and no transaction is identical to the
merger. Accordingly, an analysis of comparable companies or transactions involves complex considerations and judgments concerning
differences in financial and operating characteristics of the companies and other factors that could affect the public trading values or merger
transaction values, as the case may be, of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp and the companies to which they are being
compared.

In performing its analyses, Sandler O�Neill also made numerous assumptions with respect to industry performance, business and economic
conditions and various other matters, many of which cannot be predicted and are beyond the control of Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Factory Point
Bancorp and Sandler O�Neill.  The analysis performed by Sandler O�Neill is not necessarily indicative of actual values or future results, both of
which may be
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significantly more or less favorable than suggested by such analyses.  Sandler O�Neill prepared its analyses solely for purposes of rendering its
opinion and provided such analyses to Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board at the board�s May 14, 2007 meeting.  Estimates on the values of
companies do not purport to be appraisals or necessarily reflect the prices at which companies or their securities may actually be sold.  Such
estimates are inherently subject to uncertainty and actual values may be materially different.  Accordingly, Sandler O�Neill�s analyses do not
necessarily reflect the value of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock or the prices at which Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock may be
sold at any time. The combined analysis of Sandler O�Neill and the opinions provided by each were among a number of factors taken into
consideration by Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board in making its determination to adopt the plan of merger contained in the merger agreement and
the analyses described below should not be viewed as determinative of the decision of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board or management with
respect to the fairness of the merger.

At the May 14, 2007 meeting of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors, Sandler O�Neill presented certain financial analyses of the merger. 
The summary below is not a complete description of the analyses underlying the opinions of Sandler O�Neill or the presentation made by Sandler
O�Neill to Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board, but is instead a summary of the material analyses performed and presented in connection with the
opinion.

In arriving at its opinion, Sandler O�Neill did not attribute any particular weight to any analysis or factor that it considered.  Rather it made
qualitative judgments as to the significance and relevance of each analysis and factor.  The financial analyses summarized below include
information presented in tabular format.  Sandler O�Neill did not form an opinion as to whether any individual analysis or factor (positive or
negative) considered in isolation supported or failed to support their respective opinions; rather Sandler O�Neill made its determination as to the
fairness of the per share consideration on the basis of its experience and professional judgment after considering the results of all their analyses
taken as a whole.  Accordingly, Sandler O�Neill believes that the analysis and the summary of the analysis must be considered as a whole and
that selecting portions of the analysis and factors or focusing on the information presented below in tabular format, without considering all
analyses and factors or the full narrative description of the financial analyses, including methodologies and assumptions underlying the analyses,
could create a misleading or incomplete view of the process underlying their analyses and opinions.  The tables alone do not constitute complete
descriptions of the financial analyses presented in such tables.

Summary of Proposal.  Sandler O�Neill reviewed the financial terms of the proposed transaction.  Using the fixed
exchange ratio of 0.5844 shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock for each share of Factory Point Bancorp�s
common stock, based upon Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s average stock price for 30 days as of April 30, 2007 of $33.37,
and a per share cash value of $19.50, Sandler O�Neill calculated a transaction value of $19.50 per share, or an
aggregate transaction value of approximately $81.9 million.  Based upon financial information for Factory Point
Bancorp as or for the twelve month period ended March 31, 2007, Sandler O�Neill calculated the following transaction
ratios:

Transaction Ratios

Transaction Value/Last Twelve Months� Net Income 17.9 x
Transaction Value/Tangible Book Value 291 %
Tangible Book Premium/ Core Deposits(1) 20.9 %
Premium over Current Market Price 39.3 %

(1)  Core deposits exclude time deposits with account balances greater than $100,000.   Tangible book
premium/core deposits calculated by dividing the excess of the aggregate transaction value of $81.9 million over
tangible book value by core deposits.

The aggregate transaction value was approximately $81.9 million, based upon the offer price per share of $19.50, 4,096,273 Factory Point
Bancorp common shares outstanding and the offer value for Factory Point Bancorp�s stock options of $19.50 for 318,909 options of Factory
Point Bancorp common stock at a weighted-average exercise price of $11.79.
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Comparable Company Analysis.  Sandler O�Neill used publicly available information to perform a comparison of selected
financial and market trading information for Berkshire Hills Bancorp and selected financial information and market
trading information for Factory Point Bancorp.

Sandler O�Neill used publicly available information to compare selected financial and market trading information for Factory Point Bancorp and
a group of financial institutions selected by Sandler O�Neill.  The Factory Point Bancorp peer group consisted of the following publicly traded
commercial banks headquartered in New England with total assets between $200 million and $500 million:

Beverly National Corporation Grand Bank Corporation
Centrix Bank & Trust Katahdin Bankshares Corporation
Citizens National Bancorp Ledyard National Bank
CNB Financial Corp. Middlebury National Corporation
Community Bancorp Peoples Trust Company of St. Albans
Community Bank & Trust Company Salisbury Bancorp, Inc.
Connecticut River Bancorp, Inc. SBT Bancorp, Inc.
First Ipswich Bancorp Union Bankshares, Inc.

The analysis compared publicly available financial information for Factory Point Bancorp and the median financial and market trading data for
the Factory Point Bancorp peer group as of and for the twelve months ended March 31, 2007.  The table below sets forth the data for Factory
Point Bancorp as of and for the twelve months ended March 31, 2007 and the median data for the Factory Point Bancorp�s peer group as of and
for the twelve months ended March 31, 2007, with pricing data as of May 11, 2007.

Comparable Group Analysis

Factory Point Bancorp
Comparable Group
Median Result

Total Assets (in millions) $ 339 $ 310
Tangible Equity / Tangible Assets 8.09 % 8.63 %
Net Loans / Total Assets 66.6 % 71.9 %
Gross Loans / Total Deposits 83.1 % 89.8 %
Net Interest Margin 4.12 % 4.23 %
Efficiency Ratio 62.1 % 69.8 %
Return on Average Assets 1.34 % 0.94 %
Return on Average Equity 16.0 % 11.2 %
Price / Tangible Book Value 210 % 179 %
Price / Last Twelve Months Earnings per Share 12.8 x 15.5 x
Market Capitalization (in millions) $ 57.3 $ 55.1

Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s peer group consisted of the following publicly traded savings institutions headquartered in New England and the
Mid-Atlantic with total assets between $800 million and $4.0 billion and Tangible Equity / Tangible Assets less than 10.0%:

Benjamin Franklin Bancorp, Inc. Parkvale Financial Corporation
Dime Community Bancshares, Inc. Partners Trust Financial Group, Inc.
ESB Financial Corporation Provident New York Bancorp
Flushing Financial Corporation TrustCo Bank Corp NY
KNBT Bancorp, Inc. Willow Financial Bancorp, Inc.
OceanFirst Financial Corp. WSFS Financial Corporation

The analysis compared publicly available financial and market trading information for Berkshire Hills Bancorp and the high, low, mean, and
median data for Berkshire Hills Bancorp peer group as of and for the twelve months ended March 31, 2007.  The table below sets forth the data
for Berkshire Hills Bancorp and the median data for Berkshire Hills Bancorp peer group as of and for the twelve months ended March 31, 2007,
with pricing data as of May 11, 2007.
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Comparable Group Analysis

Berkshire Hills Bancorp
Comparable Group
Median Result

Total Assets (in millions) $ 2,175 $ 2,854
Tangible Equity / Tangible Assets 6.92 % 6.97 %
Net Loans / Total Assets 78.9 % 67.2 %
Gross Loans / Total Deposits 112.7 % 96.6 %
Net Interest Margin 3.24 % 2.84 %
Efficiency Ratio 59.2 % 64.1 %
Return on Average Assets 0.53 % 0.71 %
Return on Average Equity 4.4 % 7.3 %
Price / Tangible Book Value 197 % 187 %
Price / Last Twelve Months� Earnings per Share 24.6 x 17.3 x
Price / 2007 Estimated Earnings per Share(1) 14.7 x 20.0 x
Price / 2008 Estimated Earnings per Share(1) 13.1 x 14.8 x
Market Capitalization (in millions) $ 280.0 $ 373.4

(1)  Based on I/B/E/S consensus estimates outstanding

Stock Trading History. Sandler O�Neill also reviewed the history of the publicly reported trading prices of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp�s common stock for the one-year period ended May 9, 2007 and the three-year period ended May 9, 2007.
Sandler O�Neill also reviewed the history of the reported trading prices and volume of Factory Point Bancorp�s
common stock for the one year and the three year periods ended May 9, 2007. Sandler O�Neill then compared the
relationship between the movements in the price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock against the movements in
the prices of the Standard & Poor�s 500 Index, the NASDAQ Bank Index, the Standard & Poor�s Bank Index and the
median performance of a composite peer group - a weighted average (by market capitalization) composite of publicly
traded comparable depository institutions selected by Sandler O�Neill. Sandler O�Neill also compared the relationship
between the movements in the prices of Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock to movements in the prices of the
Nasdaq Bank Index, S&P Bank Index, and S&P 500 Index and the median performance of a composite peer group - a
weighted average (by market capitalization) composite of publicly traded comparable depository institutions selected
by Sandler O�Neill.   The composition of the peer group for Berkshire Hills Bancorp is discussed under the relevant
section under �Comparable Group Analysis� above. The composition of the peer group for Factory Point Bancorp is
discussed under the relevant section under �Comparable Group Analysis� above.

During the one-year period ended May 9, 2007, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock underperformed the indices to which it was compared.
During the one-year period ended May 9, 2007, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock outperformed the peer group to which it was compared.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s One-Year Stock Performance

Beginning Index Value Ending Index Value
May 9, 2006 May 9, 2007

Berkshire Hills Bancorp 100.0 % 98.0 %
Selected Peer Group(1) 100.0 92.7
NASDAQ Bank Index 100.0 100.6
S&P Bank Index 100.0 104.5
S&P 500 Index 100.0 114.1

During the three-year period ended January 9, 2007, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock underperformed the various indices and
outperformed the peer group to which it was compared.
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Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s Three-Year Stock Performance

Beginning Index Value Ending Index Value
May 7, 2004 May 9, 2007

Berkshire Hills Bancorp 100.0 % 101.9 %
Selected Peer Group(1) 100.0 94.8
NASDAQ Bank Index 100.0 119.5
S&P Bank Index 100.0 127.1
S&P 500 Index 100.0 137.7

(1)  Refers to the peer group outlined in the Comparable Group Analysis section above.

During the one-year period ended May 9, 2007, Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock underperformed the indices and peer group to which it
was compared.

Factory Point Bancorp�s One-Year Stock Performance

Beginning Index Value Ending Index Value
May 9, 2006 May 9, 2007

Factory Point Bancorp 100.0 % 90.2 %
Selected Peer Group(1) 100.0 108.4
NASDAQ Bank Index 100.0 100.6
S&P Bank Index 100.0 104.5
S&P 500 Index 100.0 114.1

During the three-year period ended January 9, 2007, Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock underperformed the various indices and the peer
group to which it was compared.

Factory Point Bancorp�s Three-Year Stock Performance

Beginning Index Value Ending Index Value
May 7, 2004 May 9, 2007

Factory Point Bancorp 100.0 % 94.1 %
Selected Peer Group(1) 100.0 113.1
NASDAQ Bank Index 100.0 119.5
S&P Bank Index 100.0 127.1
S&P 500 Index 100.0 137.7

(1)  Refers to the peer group outlined in the Comparable Group Analysis section above.

Analysis of Selected Merger Transactions. Sandler O�Neill reviewed 174 merger transactions announced nationwide from
January 1, 2006 through May 11, 2007 involving banks as acquired institutions with announced transaction values
greater than $15 million and less than $250 million.  Sandler O�Neill reviewed twelve (12) merger transactions
announced from January 1, 2005 through May 11, 2007 involving New England-based commercial banks as the
acquired institution with a transaction value greater than $15 million and less than $250 million.  Sandler O�Neill
reviewed the following multiples: transaction price at announcement to last twelve months� net income, transaction
value to tangible book value, tangible book premium to core deposits and premium to market price and then computed
high, low, mean, median multiples and premiums for the transactions. The median multiples were applied to Factory
Point Bancorp�s financial information as of and for the twelve months ended March 31, 2007. As illustrated in the
following tables, Sandler O�Neill derived an imputed range of values for a share of Factory Point Bancorp�s common
stock of $13.68 to $23.22 based upon the median multiples for the New England transactions and an imputed range of
values for a share of Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock of $16.93 to $25.22 based upon the median multiples for
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the Nationwide transactions.  Sandler O�Neill calculated an actual transaction value of $19.50 per share.
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Transaction Multiples

New England Nationwide
Median Implied Median Implied
Multiple Value Multiple Value

Price per Share / Last twelve months Net Income 21.3 x $ 23.22 23.1 x $ 25.22
Price per Share / Tangible Book Value 206 % $ 13.68 255 % $ 16.93
Core Deposit Premium(1) 15.3 % $ 15.61 21.9 % $ 19.39
Market Premium 21.7 % $ 17.03 25.1 % $ 17.52

(1)  Core deposits are defined as total deposits less time deposits over $100,000. The core deposit premium is
calculated by taking transaction value, less tangible book value, divided by core deposits.

Net Present Value Analysis.  Sandler O�Neill performed an analysis that estimated the net present value per share of
Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock under various circumstances.  In the analysis, Sandler O�Neill assumed Factory
Point Bancorp performed in accordance with the 2007 net income projection provided by Factory Point Bancorp
management, as adjusted by Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s senior management.  To approximate the terminal value of
Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock at December 31, 2010, Sandler O�Neill applied price to last twelve months
earnings multiples of 12.0x to 20.0x and multiples of tangible book value ranging from 150% to 275%.  The terminal
values were then discounted to present values using different discount rates ranging from 11.0% to 14.0% chosen to
reflect different assumptions regarding required rates of return of holders or prospective buyers of Factory Point
Bancorp�s common stock.  In addition, the net present value of Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock at December 31,
2006 was calculated using the same range of price to last twelve months earnings multiples (12.0x � 20.0x) applied to a
range of discounts and premiums to budget projections.  The range applied to the budgeted net income was 25% under
budget to 25% over budget, using a discount rate of 13.0% for the analysis.

As illustrated in the following tables, the analysis indicated an imputed range of values per share for Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock of
$12.62 to $21.59 when applying the price/earnings multiples to the matched budget, $10.35 to $18.88 when applying multiples of tangible book
value to the matched budget, and $10.30 to $24.78 when applying the price/earnings multiples to the -25% / +25% budget range.

Earnings Per Share Multiples

Discount Rate 12.0x 14.0x 16.0x 18.0x 20.0x
11.00% $ 13.85 $ 15.78 $ 17.72 $ 19.65 $ 21.59
11.50 13.63 15.53 17.44 19.34 21.24
12.00 13.42 15.29 17.16 19.03 20.90
12.50 13.21 15.05 16.89 18.73 20.57
13.00 13.01 14.82 16.63 18.44 20.25
13.50 12.81 14.59 16.37 18.15 19.93
14.00 12.62 14.37 16.12 17.87 19.62
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Earnings Per Share Multiples

Budget Variance 12.0x 14.0x 16.0x 18.0x 20.0x
(25.0%) $ 10.30 $ 11.66 $ 13.01 $ 14.37 $ 15.73
(20.0) 10.84 12.29 13.74 15.19 16.63
(15.0) 11.38 12.92 14.46 16.00 17.54
(10.0) 11.93 13.56 15.19 16.82 18.45
(5.0) 12.47 14.19 15.91 17.63 19.35
0.0 13.01 14.82 16.63 18.45 20.26
5.0 13.56 15.46 17.36 19.26 21.16
10.0 14.10 16.09 18.08 20.07 22.07
15.0 14.64 16.73 18.81 20.89 22.97
20.0 15.19 17.36 19.53 21.70 23.88
25.0 15.73 17.99 20.26 22.52 24.78

Tangible Book Value Per Share Multiples

Discount Rate 150% 175% 200% 225% 275%
11.00% $ 11.34 $ 12.85 $ 14.36 $ 15.86 $ 18.88
11.50 11.17 12.65 14.13 15.61 18.58
12.00 11.00 12.45 13.91 15.37 18.29
12.50 10.83 12.26 13.70 15.13 18.00
13.00 10.67 12.08 13.49 14.90 17.72
13.50 10.51 11.89 13.28 14.67 17.44
14.00 10.35 11.71 13.08 14.44 17.17

Sandler O�Neill also performed an analysis that estimated the net present value per share of Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock under various
circumstances and assuming after-tax cost savings of $1,957 million in 2008, $2,085 in 2009, and $2,221 in 2010 based on Berkshire Hills
Bancorp management�s guidance of 25% cost savings.  In the analysis we assumed Factory Point Bancorp�s performed in accordance with the
2007 net income projection provided by Factory Point Bancorp management, as adjusted by Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s senior management.  To
approximate the terminal value of Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock at December 31, 2010, Sandler O�Neill applied price to last twelve
months earnings multiples of 12.0x to 20.0x and multiples of tangible book value ranging from 150% to 275%.  The terminal values were then
discounted to present values using different discount rates ranging from 11.0% to 14.0% chosen to reflect different assumptions regarding
required rates of return of holders or prospective buyers of Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock.  In addition, the net present value of Factory
Point Bancorp�s common stock at December 31, 2006 was calculated using the same range of price to last twelve months earnings multiples
(12.0x - 20.0x) applied to a range of discounts and premiums to budget projections.  The range applied to the budgeted net income was 25%
under budget to 25% over budget, using a discount rate of 13.0% for the analysis.

As illustrated in the following tables, the analysis indicated an imputed range of values per share for Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock of
$16.63 to $28.60 when applying the price/earnings multiples to the matched budget, $11.50 to $20.68 when applying multiples of tangible book
value to the matched budget, and $13.54 to $32.87 when applying the price/earnings multiples to the -25% / +25% budget range.
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Earnings Per Share Multiples

Discount Rate 12.0x 14.0x 16.0x 18.0x 20.0x
11.00% $ 18.27 $ 20.86 $ 23.44 $ 26.02 $ 28.60
11.50 17.99 20.53 23.06 25.60 28.14
12.00 17.70 20.20 22.70 25.19 27.69
12.50 17.43 19.88 22.34 24.79 27.25
13.00 17.16 19.57 21.99 24.40 26.82
13.50 16.89 19.27 21.64 24.02 26.39
14.00 16.63 18.97 21.31 23.64 25.98

Earnings Per Share Multiples

Budget Variance 12.0x 14.0x 16.0x 18.0x 20.0x
(25.0%) $ 13.54 $ 15.35 $ 17.16 $ 18.98 $ 20.79
(20.0) 14.26 16.20 18.13 20.06 21.99
(15.0) 14.99 17.04 19.10 21.15 23.20
(10.0) 15.71 17.89 20.06 22.24 24.41
(5.0) 16.44 18.73 21.03 23.32 25.62
0.0 17.16 19.58 21.99 24.41 26.83
5.0 17.89 20.42 22.96 25.50 28.03
10.0 18.61 21.27 23.93 26.58 29.24
15.0 19.34 22.12 24.89 27.67 30.45
20.0 20.06 22.96 25.86 28.76 31.66
25.0 20.79 23.81 26.83 29.85 32.87

Tangible Book Value Per Share Multiples

Discount Rate 150% 175% 200% 225% 275%
11.00% $ 12.59 $ 14.21 $ 15.83 $ 17.45 $ 20.68
11.50 12.40 13.99 15.58 17.17 20.35
12.00 12.21 13.78 15.34 16.91 20.03
12.50 12.03 13.57 15.11 16.64 19.72
13.00 11.85 13.36 14.87 16.39 19.41
13.50 11.67 13.16 14.65 16.14 19.11
14.00 11.50 12.96 14.43 15.89 18.82

Sandler O�Neill performed an analysis that estimated the net present value per share of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock under various
circumstances, assuming (i) Berkshire Hills Bancorp performed in accordance with the consensus earnings per share estimates for the years
ending December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008 as published by I/B/E/S and reviewed with management of Berkshire Hills Bancorp.  To
approximate the net present value of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock at December 31, 2010, Sandler O�Neill applied price to last twelve
months earnings multiples of 12.0x to 20.0x and multiples of tangible book value ranging from 125% to 225%.  The and terminal values were
then discounted to present values using different discount rates ranging from 10.0% to 13.0% chosen to reflect different assumptions regarding
required rates of return of holders or prospective buyers of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.  In addition, the net present value of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock at December 31, 2010 was calculated using the same range of price to last twelve months earnings
multiples (12.0x � 20.0x) applied to a range of discounts and premiums to management�s budget projections.  The range applied to the budgeted
net income was 25.0% under budget to 25.0% over budget, using a discount rate of 10.65% for the tabular analysis.  As illustrated in the
following tables, this analysis indicated an imputed range of values per share for Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock of $22.74 to $40.60
when applying the price to earnings multiples to the matched budget, $20.89 to $39.88 when applying multiples of tangible book value to the
matched budget, and $19.04 to $49.06 when applying the price/earnings multiples to the -25.0% / +25.0% budget range.
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Earnings Per Share Multiples

Discount Rate 12.0x 14.0x 16.0x 18.0x 20.0x
10.0% $ 25.24 $ 29.08 $ 32.92 $ 36.76 $ 40.60
10.5 24.80 28.57 32.34 36.11 39.89
11.0 24.37 28.07 31.78 35.48 39.19
11.5 23.95 27.59 31.22 34.86 38.50
12.0 23.54 27.11 30.69 34.26 37.83
12.5 23.14 26.65 30.16 33.67 37.18
13.0 22.74 26.19 29.64 33.09 36.54

Earnings Per Share Multiples

Budget Variance 12.0x 14.0x 16.0x 18.0x 20.0x
(25.0%) $ 19.04 $ 21.85 $ 24.67 $ 27.48 $ 30.30
(20.0) 20.17 23.17 26.17 29.17 32.17
(15.0) 21.29 24.48 27.67 30.86 34.05
(10.0) 22.42 25.79 29.17 32.55 35.93
(5.0) 23.54 27.11 30.67 34.24 37.80
0.0 24.67 28.42 32.17 35.93 39.68
5.0 25.79 29.73 33.67 37.61 41.55
10.0 26.92 31.05 35.18 39.30 43.43
15.0 28.05 32.36 36.68 40.99 45.31
20.0 29.17 33.67 38.18 42.68 47.18
25.0 30.30 34.99 39.68 44.37 49.06

Tangible Book Value Per Share Multiples

Discount Rate 125% 150% 175% 200% 225%
10.0% $ 23.17 $ 27.34 $ 31.52 $ 35.70 $ 39.88
10.5 22.76 26.87 30.97 35.07 39.18
11.0 22.37 26.40 30.43 34.46 38.49
11.5 21.99 25.95 29.90 33.86 37.82
12.0 21.61 25.50 29.39 33.28 37.16
12.5 21.25 25.06 28.88 32.70 36.52
13.0 20.89 24.64 28.39 32.14 35.89

In connection with its analyses, Sandler O�Neill considered how the present value analyses would be affected by changes in the underlying
assumptions, including variations with respect to net income.  Sandler O�Neill noted that the terminal value analysis is a widely used valuation
methodology, but the results of such methodology are highly dependent upon the numerous assumptions that must be made, and the results
thereof are not necessarily indicative of actual values or future results

Pro Forma Merger Analysis.  Sandler O�Neill analyzed certain potential pro forma effects of the merger, assuming the
following: (1) the merger closes in the 4th quarter of 2007; (2)  the deal value per share is equal to $19.50 per Factory
Point Bancorp share; (3) options for Factory Point Bancorp�s stock will be converted into cash; (4) Factory Point
Bancorp performed in accordance with 2007 net income projections and earnings per share provided by Factory Point
Bancorp�s management and adjusted by Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s senior management; (5)  consensus earnings per
share estimates for Berkshire Hills Bancorp for the years ending December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008 as
published by I/B/E/S and reviewed with management of Berkshire Hills Bancorp. The analyses indicated that for the
year ending December 31, 2008, the merger would be accretive to Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s projected earnings per
share and, at December 31, 2008 the merger would be dilutive to Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s tangible book value per
share.  From the standpoint of a Factory Point Bancorp stockholder, for the year ending December 31, 2008, the
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merger would be accretive to tangible book value per share.  The actual results achieved by the combined company may vary from projected
results and the variations may be material

Miscellaneous.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp has agreed to pay Sandler O�Neill a transaction fee in connection with the
merger of approximately $400,000, of which $150,000 became due when Sandler O�Neill rendered their opinion, and
the balance of which is contingent, and payable, upon closing of the merger.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp has also agreed
to reimburse certain of Sandler O�Neill reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with its engagement
and to indemnify Sandler O�Neill and its affiliates and their respective partners, directors, officers, employees, agents,
and controlling persons against certain expenses and liabilities, including liabilities under the securities laws.

In the ordinary course of their respective broker and dealer businesses, Sandler O�Neill may purchase securities from and sell securities to
Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp and their affiliates.  Sandler O�Neill may also actively trade the debt and/or equity securities
of Berkshire Hills Bancorp or their affiliates for their own accounts and for the accounts of their customers and, accordingly, may at any time
hold a long or short position in such securities.

Consideration to be Received in the Merger

When the merger becomes effective, each share of Factory Point Bancorp common stock issued and outstanding immediately before the
completion of the merger will automatically be converted into the right to receive, at the holder�s election, either (a) $19.50 in cash without
interest or (b) 0.5844 shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and cash instead of fractional shares.

Although shareholders of Factory Point Bancorp are being given the choice of whether to receive cash or Berkshire Hills Bancorp common
stock in exchange for their shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock, all cash and stock elections will be subject to the allocation and
proration procedures as well as other provisions in the merger agreement.

If Berkshire Hills Bancorp declares a stock dividend or distribution on shares of its common stock or subdivides, splits, reclassifies or combines
the shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock prior to the effective time of the merger, then the exchange ratio will be adjusted to provide
Factory Point Bancorp shareholders with the same economic effect as contemplated by the merger agreement prior to any of these events.

Factory Point Bancorp shareholders will not receive fractional shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock. Instead, Factory Point Bancorp
shareholders will receive a cash payment for any fractional shares in an amount equal to the product of (i) the fraction of a share of Berkshire
Hills Bancorp common stock to which such shareholder is entitled multiplied by (ii) the average closing price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock during the ten consecutive trading days ending on the day that is ten business days before the closing date of the merger.

Assumption of Factory Point Bancorp Stock Options

At the effective time of the merger, each option to purchase shares Factory Point Bancorp common stock granted under Factory Point Bancorp�s
stock option plans that is outstanding and unexercised immediately before the closing of the merger will cease to represent a right to acquire
shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock and will be converted automatically into an option to purchase shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock and Berkshire Hills Bancorp will assume each Factory Point Bancorp stock option, in accordance with the terms of the Factory
Point Bancorp stock option plan and stock option agreement by which it is evidenced, including without limitation all terms pertaining to the
acceleration and vesting of the holder�s option exercise rights, except that from and after the effective time of the merger:

•  each Factory Point Bancorp stock option assumed by Berkshire Hills Bancorp will be exercisable
solely for shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock;

•  the number of shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock subject to such Factory Point
Bancorp stock option will be equal to the number of shares of Factory Point Bancorp common
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 stock subject to such Factory Point Bancorp stock option immediately before the effective time
of the merger multiplied by the exchange ratio, rounded to the nearest whole share; and

•  the per share exercise price under each Factory Point Bancorp stock option will be adjusted by
dividing the per share exercise price under such Factory Point Bancorp stock option by the exchange ratio, rounded to
the nearest whole cent.

Pursuant to the merger agreement, Berkshire Hills Bancorp agreed to register under the Securities Act of 1933 the shares of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock issuable upon exercise of the substitute stock options to be issued pursuant to the merger agreement as soon as
practicable after consummation of the merger.

Cash or Stock Election

Under the terms of the merger agreement, Factory Point Bancorp shareholders may elect to convert their shares into cash, Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock or a mixture of cash and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.  All elections of Factory Point Bancorp shareholders
are further subject to the allocation and proration procedures described in the merger agreement.  These procedures provide that the number of
shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock to be converted into Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock in the merger must be 80% of the
total number of shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock issued and outstanding on the date of the merger and that the total value of the
stock portion of the merger consideration must be equal to at least 40% of the merger consideration.  Neither Berkshire Hills Bancorp nor
Factory Point Bancorp is making any recommendation as to whether Factory Point Bancorp shareholders should elect to receive cash or
Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock in the merger.  Holders of Factory Point Bancorp common stock must make their own decisions with
respect to such election.

It is unlikely that elections will be made in the exact proportions provided for in the merger agreement.  As a result, the merger agreement
describes procedures to be followed if Factory Point Bancorp shareholders in the aggregate elect to receive more or less of the Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock than Berkshire Hills Bancorp has agreed to issue. These procedures are summarized below.

• If Stock Is Oversubscribed:  If Factory Point Bancorp shareholders elect to receive more Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock than Berkshire Hills Bancorp has agreed to issue in the merger, then all Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who have elected to
receive cash or who have made no election will receive cash for their Factory Point Bancorp shares and all shareholders who elected to receive
Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock will receive a pro rata portion of the available Berkshire Hills Bancorp shares plus cash for those shares
not converted into Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.

• If Stock Is Undersubscribed: If Factory Point Bancorp shareholders elect to receive fewer shares of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock than Berkshire Hills Bancorp has agreed to issue in the merger, then all Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who have
elected to receive Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock will receive Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and those shareholders who
elected to receive cash or who have made no election will be treated in the following manner:

• If the number of shares held by Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who have made no election is sufficient to make up
the shortfall in the number of Berkshire Hills Bancorp shares that Berkshire Hills Bancorp is required to issue, then all Factory Point Bancorp
shareholders who elected cash will receive cash, and those shareholders who made no election will receive both cash and Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock in whatever proportion is necessary to make up the shortfall.

• If the number of shares held by Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who have made no election is insufficient to make
up the shortfall, then all Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who made no election will receive Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and
those Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who elected to receive cash will receive
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cash and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock in whatever proportion is necessary to make up the shortfall.

Notwithstanding these rules, as described under ��Tax Consequences of the Merger,� it may be necessary for Berkshire Hills Bancorp to reduce
the number of shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock that will be converted into the right to receive cash and correspondingly increase
the number of shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock that will be converted into Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.  If this
adjustment is necessary, shareholders who elect to receive cash or a mixture of cash and stock may be required on a pro rata basis to receive a
greater amount of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock than they otherwise would have received.

No guarantee can be made that Factory Point Bancorp shareholders will receive the amounts of cash and/or stock they elect.  As a result
of the allocation procedures and other limitations outlined in this document and in the merger agreement, Factory Point Bancorp
shareholders may receive Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock or cash in amounts that vary from the amounts they elect to receive.

Election Procedures; Surrender of Stock Certificates

An election form is being mailed with this joint proxy statement/prospectus to holders of shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock.  Each
election form entitles the holder of the Factory Point Bancorp common stock to elect to receive cash, Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock, or
a combination of cash and stock, or make no election with respect to the merger consideration he or she wishes to receive.

To make an effective election, Factory Point Bancorp shareholders must submit a properly completed election form, along with their
Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates representing all shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock covered by the election form
(or an appropriate guarantee of delivery), to Registrar and Transfer Company on or before 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, on
_______________, 2007.  Registrar and Transfer Company will act as exchange agent in the merger and in that role will
process the exchange of Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates for cash and/or Berkshire Hills Bancorp common
stock.  The exchange agent will allocate cash and stock among Factory Point Bancorp shareholders, consistent with
their elections and the allocation and proration procedures.  If Factory Point Bancorp shareholders do not submit an
election form, Factory Point Bancorp shareholders will receive instructions from the exchange agent on where to
surrender their Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates after the merger is completed.  In any event, Factory Point
Bancorp shareholders should not forward their Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates with their proxy
cards.

Factory Point Bancorp shareholders may change their election at any time before the election deadline by written notice accompanied by a
properly completed and signed later dated election form received by the exchange agent before the election deadline or by withdrawal of their
stock certificates by written notice before the election deadline. All elections will be revoked automatically if the merger agreement is
terminated.  If Factory Point Bancorp shareholders have a preference for receiving either Berkshire Hills Bancorp stock and/or cash for their
Factory Point Bancorp stock, they should complete and return the election form.  If Factory Point Bancorp shareholders do not make an election,
they will be allocated Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and/or cash depending on the elections made by other shareholders.

Neither Berkshire Hills Bancorp nor Factory Point Bancorp makes any recommendation as to whether Factory Point Bancorp shareholders
should elect to receive cash, stock or a combination of cash and stock in the merger.  Factory Point Bancorp shareholders must make their own
decision with respect to their election.  Generally, the merger will be a tax-free transaction for Factory Point Bancorp shareholders to the extent
they receive Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.  See ��Tax Consequences of the Merger.�

If certificates for Factory Point Bancorp common stock are not immediately available or Factory Point Bancorp shareholders are unable to send
the election form and other required documents to the exchange agent before the election deadline, Factory Point Bancorp shares may be
properly exchanged, and an election will be effective, if:
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• such exchanges are made by or through a member firm of a registered national securities exchange or of the National
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., or by a commercial bank or trust company having an office, branch or agency in the United States;

• the exchange agent receives, before the election deadline, a properly completed and duly executed notice of guaranteed
delivery substantially in the form provided with the election form (delivered by hand, mail, telegram, telex or facsimile transmission); and

• the exchange agent receives, within three business days after the election deadline, the certificates for all exchanged
Factory Point Bancorp shares, or confirmation of the delivery of all such certificates into the exchange agent�s account with The Depository Trust
Company in accordance with the proper procedures for such transfer, together with a properly completed and duly executed election form and
any other documents required by the election form.

Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who do not submit a properly completed election form or revoke their election form before the election
deadline and do not submit a new properly completed election form before the election deadline will have their shares of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock designated as non-election shares.  Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates represented by elections that have been revoked will
be promptly returned without charge to the Factory Point Bancorp shareholder revoking the election upon written request.

After the completion of the merger, the exchange agent will mail to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders who do not submit election forms or
who have revoked such forms a letter of transmittal, together with instructions for the exchange of their Factory Point Bancorp common stock
certificates for the merger consideration.  Until Factory Point Bancorp shareholders surrender their Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates for
exchange after completion of the merger, Factory Point Bancorp shareholders will not be paid dividends or other distributions declared after the
merger with respect to any Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock into which their Factory Point Bancorp shares have been converted.  When
Factory Point Bancorp shareholders surrender their Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates, Berkshire Hills Bancorp will pay any unpaid
dividends or other distributions, without interest.  After the completion of the merger, there will be no further transfers of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock.  Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates presented for transfer after the completion of the merger will be canceled and
exchanged for the merger consideration.

If their Factory Point Bancorp stock certificates have been either lost, stolen or destroyed, Factory Point Bancorp shareholders will have to prove
your ownership of these certificates and that they were lost, stolen or destroyed before they receive any consideration for your shares.  The
election form includes instructions on how to provide evidence of ownership.

Accounting Treatment

Berkshire Hills Bancorp will account for the merger under the �purchase� method of accounting in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Using the purchase method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of Factory Point Bancorp will be recorded by
Berkshire Hills Bancorp at their respective fair values at the time of the completion of the merger. The excess of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s
purchase price over the net fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed will then be allocated to identified intangible assets, with any
remaining unallocated cost recorded as goodwill.

Tax Consequences of the Merger

General.  The following summary discusses the material anticipated U.S. federal income tax consequences of the
merger applicable to a holder of shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock who surrenders all of the
shareholder�s common stock for shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and/or cash in the merger. This
discussion is based upon the Internal Revenue Code, Treasury Regulations, judicial authorities, published positions of
the Internal Revenue Service (�IRS�), and other applicable authorities, all as in effect on the date of this document and
all of which are subject to change or differing interpretations (possibly with retroactive effect).  This discussion is
limited to U.S. residents and citizens who hold their shares as capital assets for U.S. federal income tax purposes
(generally, assets held for investment). No attempt has been made to comment on all U.S. federal income
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tax consequences of the merger and related transactions that may be relevant to holders of shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock. This
discussion also does not address all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to a particular person or the tax consequences that may be
relevant to persons subject to special treatment under U.S. federal income tax laws (including, among others, tax-exempt organizations, dealers
in securities or foreign currencies, banks, insurance companies, financial institutions or persons who hold their shares of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock as part of a hedge, straddle, constructive sale or conversion transaction, persons whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar,
holders that exercise dissenters� rights, persons that are, or hold their shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock through, partnerships or
other pass-through entities, or persons who acquired their shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock through the exercise of an employee
stock option or otherwise as compensation). In addition, this discussion does not address any aspects of state, local, non-U.S. taxation or U.S.
federal taxation other than income taxation. No ruling has been requested from the IRS regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of
the merger. No assurance can be given that the IRS would not assert, or that a court would not sustain, a position contrary to any of the tax
consequences set forth below.

Factory Point Bancorp shareholders are urged to consult their tax advisors as to the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the
merger, as well as the effects of state, local, non-U.S. tax laws and U.S. tax laws other than income tax laws.

Opinion Conditions.  It is a condition to the obligations of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp that
Berkshire Hills Bancorp receive an opinion by Muldoon Murphy & Aguggia LLP and that Factory Point Bancorp
receive an opinion by Rhoads & Sinon LLP to the effect that the merger will constitute a �reorganization� for U.S.
federal income tax purposes within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code. Berkshire
Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp both expect to be able to obtain the tax opinions if, as expected:

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp are able to deliver customary
representations to Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s and Factory Point Bancorp�s respective tax counsel;
and

•  there is no adverse change in U.S. federal income tax law.

Although the merger agreement allows both Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp to waive the condition that tax opinions be
delivered by Muldoon Murphy & Aguggia LLP and Rhoads & Sinon LLP, neither party currently anticipates doing so.  However, if this
condition were waived, Factory Point Bancorp would re-solicit the approval of its shareholders before completing the merger.

In addition, in connection with the filing of the registration statement of which this joint proxy statement/prospectus forms a part, Muldoon
Murphy & Aguggia LLP and Rhoads & Sinon LLP have delivered their opinions to Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp,
respectively, dated as of the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, that the merger will qualify as a �reorganization� within the meaning of
Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.  Copies of these opinions have been filed as Exhibits 8.1 and 8.2 to the registration statement.  
Such opinions have been rendered on the basis of facts, representations and assumptions set forth or referred to in such opinions and factual
representations contained in certificates of officers of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp, all of which must continue to be true
and accurate in all material respects as of the effective time of the merger.

If any of the representations or assumptions upon which the opinions are based are inconsistent with the actual facts, the tax consequences of the
merger could be adversely affected. The determination by tax counsel as to whether the proposed merger will be treated as a �reorganization�
within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code will depend upon the facts and law existing at the effective time of the
proposed merger. The following discussion assumes that the merger will constitute a �reorganization� for U.S. federal income tax purposes within
the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Exchange Solely for Berkshire Hills Bancorp Common Stock.  No gain or loss will be recognized by a Factory Point Bancorp
shareholder who receives solely shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock (except for cash received in lieu of
fractional shares, as discussed below) in exchange for all of his or her shares of Factory
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Point Bancorp common stock. The tax basis of the shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock received by a Factory Point Bancorp
shareholder in such exchange will be equal (except for the basis attributable to any fractional shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock,
as discussed below) to the basis of the Factory Point Bancorp common stock surrendered in exchange for the Berkshire Hills Bancorp common
stock.  The holding period of the Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock received will include the holding period of shares of Factory Point
Bancorp common stock surrendered in exchange for the Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock, provided that such shares were held as capital
assets of the Factory Point Bancorp shareholder at the effective time of the merger.

Exchange Solely for Cash.  A Factory Point Bancorp shareholder who receives solely cash in exchange for all of his or her
shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock (and is not treated as constructively owning Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock after the merger under the circumstances referred to below under ��Possible Dividend Treatment�)
will recognize gain or loss for federal income tax purposes equal to the difference between the cash received and such
shareholder�s tax basis in the Factory Point Bancorp common stock surrendered in exchange for the cash. Such gain or
loss will be a capital gain or loss, provided that such shares were held as capital assets of the Factory Point Bancorp
shareholder at the effective time of the merger. Such gain or loss will be long-term capital gain or loss if the Factory
Point Bancorp shareholder�s holding period is more than one year.  The Internal Revenue Code contains limitations on
the extent to which a taxpayer may deduct capital losses from ordinary income.

Exchange for Berkshire Hills Bancorp Common Stock and Cash.  A Factory Point Bancorp shareholder who receives a
combination of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and cash in exchange for his or her Factory Point Bancorp
common stock will not be permitted to recognize any loss for federal income tax purposes.  Such a shareholder will
recognize gain, if any, equal to the lesser of (1) the amount of cash received or (2) the amount of gain �realized� in the
transaction. The amount of gain a Factory Point Bancorp shareholder �realizes� will equal the amount by which (a) the
cash plus the fair market value at the effective time of the merger of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock received
exceeds (b) the shareholders� basis in the Factory Point Bancorp common stock to be surrendered in the exchange for
the cash and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock. Any recognized gain could be taxed as a capital gain or a
dividend, as described below. The tax basis of the shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock received by such
Factory Point Bancorp shareholder will be the same as the basis of the shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock
surrendered in exchange for the shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock, adjusted as provided in Section
358(a) of the Internal Revenue Code for the cash received in exchange for such shares of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock. The holding period for shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock received by such Factory
Point Bancorp shareholder will include such shareholder�s holding period for the Factory Point Bancorp common stock
surrendered in exchange for the Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock, provided that such shares were held as capital
assets of the shareholder at the effective time of the merger.

A Factory Point Bancorp shareholder�s federal income tax consequences will also depend on whether his or her shares of Factory Point Bancorp
common stock were purchased at different times at different prices. If they were, the Factory Point Bancorp shareholder could realize gain with
respect to some of the shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock and loss with respect to other shares.  Such Factory Point Bancorp
shareholder would have to recognize such gain to the extent such shareholder receives cash with respect to those shares in which the
shareholder�s adjusted tax basis is less than the amount of cash plus the fair market value at the effective time of the merger of the Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock received, but could not recognize loss with respect to those shares in which the Factory Point Bancorp shareholder�s
adjusted tax basis is greater than the amount of cash plus the fair market value at the effective time of the merger of the Berkshire Hills Bancorp
common stock received. Any disallowed loss would be included in the adjusted basis of the Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.  Such a
Factory Point Bancorp shareholder is urged to consult his or her own tax advisor respecting the tax consequences of the merger to that
shareholder.

Possible Dividend Treatment.  In certain circumstances, a Factory Point Bancorp shareholder who receives solely cash or a
combination of cash and Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock in the merger may receive ordinary income, rather
than capital gain, treatment on all or a portion of the gain recognized by that shareholder if the receipt of cash �has the
effect of the distribution of a dividend.�  The determination of whether a cash payment has such effect is based on a
comparison of the Factory Point Bancorp shareholder�s proportionate interest in Berkshire Hills Bancorp after the
merger with the proportionate interest the shareholder would have had if the shareholder had received solely Berkshire
Hills Bancorp common stock in the merger.  This could happen because of your purchase
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(or the purchase by a family member) of additional Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock or a repurchase of shares by Berkshire Hills
Bancorp.  For purposes of this comparison, the Factory Point Bancorp shareholder may be deemed to constructively own shares of Berkshire
Hills Bancorp common stock held by certain members of the shareholder�s family or certain entities in which the shareholder has an ownership or
beneficial interest and certain stock options may be aggregated with the shareholder�s shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.  The
amount of the cash payment that may be treated as a dividend is limited to the shareholder�s ratable share of the accumulated earnings and profits
of Factory Point Bancorp at the effective time of the merger. Any gain that is not treated as a dividend will be taxed as a capital gain, provided
that the shareholder�s shares were held as capital assets at the effective time of the merger.  Because the determination of whether a cash payment
will be treated as having the effect of a dividend depends primarily upon the facts and circumstances of each Factory Point Bancorp shareholder,
shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors regarding the tax treatment of any cash received in the merger.

Cash in Lieu of Fractional Shares. A Factory Point Bancorp shareholder who holds Factory Point Bancorp common stock
as a capital asset and who receives in the merger, in exchange for such stock, solely Berkshire Hills Bancorp common
stock and cash in lieu of a fractional share interest in Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock will be treated as having
received such cash in full payment for such fractional share of stock and as capital gain or loss, notwithstanding the
dividend rules discussed above.

Backup Withholding. Unless an exemption applies under the backup withholding rules of Section 3406 of the Internal
Revenue Code, the exchange agent shall be required to withhold, and will withhold, 28% of any cash payments to
which a Factory Point Bancorp shareholder is entitled pursuant to the merger, unless the Factory Point Bancorp
shareholder signs the substitute Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 enclosed with the letter of transmittal sent by the
exchange agent. Unless an applicable exemption exists and is proved in a manner satisfactory to the exchange agent,
this completed form provides the information, including the Factory Point Bancorp shareholder�s taxpayer
identification number, and certification necessary to avoid backup withholding.

Tax Treatment of the Entities.  No gain or loss will be recognized by Berkshire Hills Bancorp or Factory Point Bancorp as
a result of the merger.

Regulatory Matters Relating to the Merger

Holding Company Merger.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp is required to file an application to become a bank holding company
with the Massachusetts Board of Bank Incorporation.  In its review of the merger, the Board of Bank Incorporation is
required to consider, among other things, whether or not competition among banking institutions will be unreasonably
affected and whether or not public convenience and advantage will be promoted.  In making such determination, the
commissioner will consider, but not be limited to, a showing of net new benefits meaning initial capital investments,
job creation plans, consumer and business services, commitments to maintain and open branch offices within a bank�s
delineated local community and such other matters as the board may determine.  In addition, Massachusetts law
provides that the board cannot approve the merger until it has received notice from the Massachusetts Housing
Partnership Fund that arrangements satisfactory to the fund have been made for Berkshire Hills Bancorp to make
0.9% of its assets located in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts following the merger available for call by the fund
for a period of ten years for purposes of funding various affordable housing programs.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp filed
an application with the Massachusetts Board of Bank Incorporation on _______, 2007.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp also filed a notice with the Federal Reserve Board on ____________, 2007, requesting confirmation that it may acquire
Factory Point Bancorp without its approval.  Pursuant to applicable regulations, formal application to the Federal Reserve Board is not required
if: (1)  the bank merger occurs simultaneously with the acquisition of the shares of the acquired bank holding company and the acquired bank is
not operated as a separate entity; (2) the transaction requires the prior approval of a federal supervisory agency under the Bank Merger Act; (3)
the transaction does not involve the acquisition of any non-bank company requiring approval under the Bank Holding Company Act; (4) both
before and after the transaction, the acquired bank holding company meets the Federal Reserve Board�s capital adequacy guidelines; and (5) the
acquiring bank holding company provides the Federal Reserve Board at least ten days prior written notice of the transaction, including a
description of the transaction and a copy of the application made to the appropriate federal regulatory agency.
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The Bank Merger.  Immediately following the merger of Factory Point Bancorp with and into Berkshire Hills Bancorp,
Berkshire Hills Bancorp expects to merge Factory Point National Bank with and into Berkshire Bank. The bank
merger is subject to the approval by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation under the Bank Merger Act.  In
granting its approval under the Bank Merger Act, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation must consider the
financial and managerial resources and future prospects of the existing and proposed institutions and the convenience
and needs of the communities to be served.

The bank merger is also subject to approval by the Massachusetts Commissioner of Banks under the bank merger provisions of the
Massachusetts General Laws. The regulatory standards for the bank merger are similar to those applicable to the merger.  The bank merger
cannot be completed until arrangements satisfactory to the Massachusetts Depositors� Insurance Fund, which insures the deposits of
Massachusetts-chartered savings banks in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation deposit insurance limits, have been made.

Berkshire Bank filed the requisite application for the bank merger with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on _____________, 2007 and
with the Massachusetts Commissioner of Banks on ______________________, 2007.

In addition, a period of 15 to 30 days must expire following approval by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation before completion of the
merger is allowed, within which period the United States Department of Justice may file objections to the merger under the federal antitrust
laws.  While Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp believe that the likelihood of objection by the Department of Justice is remote
in this case, there can be no assurance that the Department of Justice will not initiate proceedings to block the merger, or that the Attorney
General of the State will not challenge the merger, or if any proceeding is instituted or challenge is made, as to the result of the challenge.

The merger cannot proceed in the absence of the requisite regulatory approvals.  See �Description of the Merger�Conditions to Completion of
the Merger� and ��Termination.�  There can be no assurance that the requisite regulatory approvals will be obtained, and if obtained, there can
be no assurance as to the date of any approval.  There can also be no assurance that any regulatory approvals will not contain a condition or
requirement that causes the approvals to fail to satisfy the condition set forth in the merger agreement and described under �Description of the
Merger�Conditions to Completion of the Merger.�

The approval of any application merely implies the satisfaction of regulatory criteria for approval, which does not include review of the merger
from the standpoint of the adequacy of the cash consideration or the exchange ratio for converting Factory Point Bancorp common stock to
Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock.  Furthermore, regulatory approvals do not constitute an endorsement or recommendation of the merger.

Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger

Share Ownership.  On the record date for the Factory Point Bancorp special meeting, Factory Point Bancorp�s directors
and officers beneficially owned, in the aggregate, __________ shares of Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock
(excluding shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of stock options), representing approximately _____% of the
outstanding shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock.

As described below, certain of Factory Point Bancorp�s officers and directors have interests in the merger that are in addition to, or different
from, the interests of Factory Point Bancorp�s shareholders generally. Factory Point Bancorp�s board of directors was aware of these conflicts of
interest and took them into account in approving the merger.

Change in Control/Termination Agreements.   Each of Guy H. Boyer, President of Factory Point Bancorp and President and
Chief Executive Officer of Factory Point National Bank, Paul J. Beaulieu, Vice President of Factory Point Bancorp
and Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Factory Point National Bank, Daniel X. Stannard, Senior
Vice President of Factory Point Bancorp and Senior Lending Officer of Factory Point National Bank, Timothy J.
Kononan, Vice President and Senior Retail Officer of Factory Point National Bank, Katherine P. Mosenthal, Vice
President and Trust Administrative Officer of Factory Point National Bank, and Sheri A. Savage, Vice President and
Trust Investment Officer of Factory Point National Bank, has entered into a change in
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control agreement with Factory Point National Bank and Factory Point Bancorp.  Under the agreements, upon the executive�s termination of
employment pursuant to a change in control, which is defined to include the parties execution of the merger agreement, Factory Point Bancorp
will pay to the executive three times (two times in the case of Ms. Mosenthal and Ms. Savage and one times in the case of Mr. Kononan) the
greater of: (1) the executive�s base salary in effect immediately before the termination pursuant to a change in control, plus any cash bonuses and
annual incentive cash compensation earned by the executive with respect to the calendar year immediately preceding the change in control; or
(2) executive�s base salary in effect immediately before the change in control, plus any cash bonuses and annual incentive cash compensation
earned by the executive with respect to the calendar year immediately preceding the change in control.  The agreements also provide for life,
disability and accident and health insurance coverages for three years (two years in the case of Ms. Mosenthal and Ms. Savage and one year in
the case of Mr. Kononan) following the date of the executive�s termination of employment.  The agreements provide that if any payment to
Executive would not be deductible as a result of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code and a reduction in such payment or benefit of no
greater than 5% would result in full deductibility of all payments and benefits, then such payment or benefit shall be reduced up to the maximum
amount necessary to achieve full deductibility.  If a 5% reduction is not sufficient to achieve full deductibility, then no reduction shall be made. 
In addition, if any required payments to the executive are deemed to constitute �excess parachute payments� within the meaning of Section 280G
of the Internal Revenue Code and would cause the executive to incur an excise tax under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code, Factory
Point Bancorp shall pay to the executive an amount such that after payment of all federal, state and local income tax and any additional excise
tax, the executive will be fully reimbursed for the amount of such excise tax.  �Excess parachute payments� generally are payments in excess of
three times the recipient�s average annual compensation from the employer includable in the recipient�s gross income during the most recent five
taxable years ending before the date of a change in control of the employer (the �base amount�).  Recipients of excess parachute payment are
subject to a 20% excise tax on the amount by which such payments exceed one times the base amount, in addition to regular income taxes, and
payments in excess of the base amount are not deductible by the employer as compensation expense for federal income tax purposes.

In connection with the execution of the merger agreement, each of the above-mentioned executives each entered into a Termination Agreement
with Factory Point Bancorp and Berkshire Hills Bancorp under which each person�s existing change in control agreement was terminated in
exchange for the right to receive certain cash payments.  The Termination Agreements provide for a payment of $614,702, $378,359, $286,322,
$93,953, $203,381 and $212,069 to be paid to Messrs. Boyer, Beaulieu, Stannard, Kononan, Ms. Mosenthal and Ms. Savage, respectively, at the
effective time of the merger.  Each payment is subject to such person remaining employed with Factory Point Bancorp through the closing of the
merger.  Additionally, Mr. Kononan�s agreement provides that for one year after the completion of the merger, he will not:  (1) work for a
financial institution located within Bennington, Rutland or Windsor Counties, Vermont that offers competing products or services with those of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp; (2) interfere with the relationship of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and any of its employees, agents, or representatives; or
(3) solicit any customer of Berkshire Hills Bancorp.

Consulting Agreements.  In connection with the execution of the merger agreement, Messrs. Boyer and Beaulieu each
entered into a consulting agreement with Berkshire Hills Bancorp, which provides, among other things, that:

•  Messrs. Boyer and Beaulieu will provide consulting and other relevant services and advice as
Berkshire Hills Bancorp will reasonably request, including, but not limited to, assisting with the integration of Factory
Point Bancorp and Factory Point National into Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Berkshire Bank during the six-month
period following consummation of the merger;

•  during the one-year period following the consummation of the merger, Messrs. Boyer and Beaulieu
will not work for another financial institution that offers products or services competing with those offered by
Berkshire Hills Bancorp from any office within thirty-five miles from the main office or any branch of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp; (2) interfere with the relationship of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and any of its employees, agents, or
representatives; or (3) solicit any customer of Berkshire Hills Bancorp; and
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•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp will pay Messrs. Boyer and Beaulieu $208,057 and $107,329,
respectively, half of which is to be received on the closing date of the merger and the remainder on a monthly basis
over the term of the agreement, in consideration for his consulting services and his other obligations under the
consulting agreement.

Retention Agreement.  In connection with the execution of the merger agreement, Mr. Stannard entered into a retention
agreement with Berkshire Bank, which provides, among other things, that:

•  Mr. Stannard will provide specified duties as an employee of Berkshire Bank during the one-year
period following the closing of the merger;

•  Mr. Stannard will receive $45,225 on the closing date of the merger and a salary equal to his
salary immediately before the closing of the merger plus $45,525 to be paid over the term of the agreement, in
consideration for his services under the agreement.

Equity-Based Awards.  Pursuant to Factory Point Bancorp existing stock-based plans, all unvested options to purchase
shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock will become vested and exercisable upon consummation of the
merger.  In addition, all outstanding shares of restricted stock will become fully vested at such time.  The following
table sets forth the number of unvested options and number of unvested shares of restricted stock which were held by
the executive officers of Factory Point Bancorp and all non-employee directors of Factory Point Bancorp as a group as
of the date of this document.

Name

Number of
Unvested
Stock Options

Weighted
Average Exercise
Price

Number of
Unvested
Shares of
Restricted Stock

Guy H. Boyer 22,500 $ 11.23 4,393
Paul J. Beaulieu 10,200 11.40 2,800
Tamara E. Heaton 1,300 11.59 1,331
Daniel X. Stannard 4,350 11.35 2,500
Timothy J. Kononan 450 13.28 �
Katherine P. Mosenthal 700 11.18 1,162
Sheri A. Savage 800 10.79 1,825
All non-employee directors as a group � � �

The merger agreement provides that upon completion of the merger, each outstanding and unexercised option to acquire shares of Factory Point
common stock will cease to represent the right to acquire shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock and will become a right to acquire
Berkshire Hills Bancorp.  The number of shares and the exercise price subject to the converted options will be adjusted for the exchange ratio in
the merger, and the duration and other terms of the new Berkshire Hills Bancorp options will be the same as the prior Factory Point Bancorp
options.  See ��Assumption of Factory Point Bancorp Stock Options.�

Appointment of a Director to the Berkshire Hills Bancorp Board of Directors.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp will appoint one of Factory
Point Bancorp�s directors to the boards of directors of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Berkshire Bank.  That person will
be Susan M. Hill.

Continued Director and Officer Liability Coverage.  For a period of six years following the effective time of the merger,
Berkshire Hills Bancorp has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless the current and former officers and directors of
Factory Point Bancorp and its subsidiaries against any costs or expenses incurred in connection with any claim, action,
suit, proceeding or investigation that is a result of matters that existed or occurred at or before the effective time of the
merger to the same extent as Factory Point Bancorp currently provides for indemnification of its officers and
directors.  For a period of six years following the effective time of the merger, Berkshire Hills Bancorp has also
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prior to the effective time of the merger under the directors� and officers� liability insurance policy currently maintained by Factory Point Bancorp
or under a policy with comparable or better coverage.

Employee Matters

Each person who is an employee of Factory Point National Bank as of the closing of the merger (whose employment is not specifically
terminated upon the closing) will become an employee of Berkshire Bank.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp will make available employer provided
health and other employee welfare benefit plans to each continuing employee on the same basis that it provides such coverage to Berkshire Hills
Bancorp employees except that any pre-existing condition, eligibility waiting period or other limitations or exclusion otherwise applicable under
such plans to new employees will not apply to a continuing employee or their covered dependents who were covered under a similar Factory
Point Bancorp plan at the closing of the merger.  Former employees of Factory Point National Bank will be treated as new employees for
purposes of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s 401(k) plan; provided, however, that continuing employees will receive credit for service with Factory
Point Bancorp for purposes of vesting and determination of eligibility to participate in Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s 401(k) plan, but not accrual of
benefits. Each continuing employee with sufficient Factory Point Bancorp service credit to satisfy the Berkshire Hills Bancorp 401(k) eligibility
service requirement who has also reached the requisite plan participation age will be eligible to participate in the Berkshire Hills Bancorp 401(k)
on the effective time of the merger.  Before the consummation of the merger, Factory Point National will make its 2007 budgeted discretionary
contribution to the Factory Point National Bank 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan.

Before the consummation of the merger, Factory Point Bancorp may make payouts to Factory Point Bancorp employees under its incentive
compensation plan and discretionary bonus fund consistent with its 2007 budget in an amount not to exceed $284,000.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp will pay each employee of Factory Point Bancorp who is not otherwise covered by a specific change in control
agreement whose employment is terminated (other than for cause) on or within one year after the effective time of the merger a lump sum cash
payment equal to two weeks of such employee�s then current base salary for each full year of service with Factory Point Bancorp, with a
minimum of four weeks base pay and a maximum of 52 weeks base pay.  Additionally, Berkshire Hills Bancorp will provide customary
outplacement services to all employees of Factory Point Bancorp, including executive officers, whose employment is terminated in connection
with the merger.

Employees of Factory Point Bancorp are eligible to receive a �retention� bonus from Factory Point Bancorp in an amount determined by the
President of Factory Point Bancorp (with the approval of the President of Berkshire Hills Bancorp) if such employee remains an employee of
Factory Point Bancorp until the date the systems conversion occurs (or such other date established or adjusted by Berkshire Hills Bancorp not to
exceed forty-five 45 days following the date the system conversion occurs) or is terminated before the date of the systems conversion, but after
the effective time of the merger and satisfactorily fulfills his or her duties and responsibilities through the employee�s termination date.

Operations of Berkshire Bank after the Merger

After the merger of Berkshire Bank and Factory Point National Bank, the former offices of Factory Point National Bank will operate as branch
offices of Berkshire Bank under the name �Berkshire Bank.�

Restrictions on Resale of Shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp Common Stock

All shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock issued to Factory Point Bancorp�s shareholders in connection with the merger will be freely
transferable, except that shares received by persons deemed to be �affiliates� of Factory Point Bancorp under the Securities Act at the time of the
Factory Point Bancorp special meeting may be resold only in transactions permitted by Rule 145 under the Securities Act or otherwise permitted
under the Securities Act. This joint proxy statement/prospectus does not cover any resales of the shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common
stock to be received by Factory Point Bancorp�s shareholders upon completion of the merger, and no person may use this joint proxy
statement/prospectus in connection with any resale. Based on the number of shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock anticipated to be
received in the merger, it is expected
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that Rule 145 will limit the amount of shares that certain affiliates of Factory Point Bancorp will be able to sell into the market. Persons who
may be deemed affiliates of Factory Point Bancorp for this purpose generally include directors, executive officers and the holders of 10% or
more of the outstanding shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock.

Time of Completion

Unless the parties agree otherwise and unless the merger agreement has otherwise been terminated, the closing of the merger will take place on a
date designated by Berkshire Hills Bancorp that is no later than 30 days following the date on which all of the conditions to the merger contained
in the merger agreement are satisfied or waived.  See ��Conditions to Completion of the Merger.�  On the closing date, Berkshire Hills Bancorp
will file a certificate of merger with the Delaware Secretary of State merging Factory Point Bancorp into Berkshire Hills Bancorp.  The merger
will become effective at the time stated in the certificate of merger.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp are working to complete the merger quickly.  It is currently expected that the merger will be
completed at the end of the third calendar quarter of 2007 or the beginning of the fourth quarter.  However, because completion of the merger is
subject to regulatory approvals and other conditions, the parties cannot be certain of the actual timing.

Conditions to Completing the Merger

Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s and Factory Point Bancorp�s obligations to consummate the merger are conditioned on the following:

•  approval of the merger agreement by each of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp
shareholders;

•  receipt of all required regulatory approvals without any materially adverse conditions and the
expiration of all statutory waiting periods;

•  no party to the merger being subject to any legal order, decree or injunction that prohibits
consummating any part of the transaction, no governmental entity having instituted any proceeding to block the
transaction and the absence of any statute, rule or regulation that prohibits completion of any part of the transaction;

•  the registration statement of which this joint proxy statement/prospectus forms a part being
declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission, the absence of any pending or threatened proceeding
by the Securities and Exchange Commission to suspend the effectiveness of the registration statement and the receipt
of all required state �blue sky� approvals;

•  receipt by each party of all consents and approvals from third parties (other than those required
from government agencies) required to complete the merger, unless failure to obtain those consents or approvals
would not have a material adverse effect on Berkshire Hills Bancorp after completion of the merger;

•  receipt by each party of opinions from their respective legal counsel to the effect that the merger
will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code;

•  the other party having performed in all material respects its obligations under the merger
agreement, the other party�s representations and warranties being true and correct as of the date of the merger
agreement and as of the closing date, and receipt of a certificate signed by the other party�s chief executive officer and
chief financial officer to that effect; and
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•  to the extent required, the shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock issuable pursuant to
the merger being approved for listing on The NASDAQ Global Select Market.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp cannot guarantee whether all of the conditions to the merger will be satisfied or waived by
the party permitted to do so.

Conduct of Business Before the Merger

Factory Point Bancorp has agreed that, until completion of the merger and unless permitted by Berkshire Hills Bancorp, neither it nor its
subsidiaries will:

General Business

•  conduct its business other than in the regular, ordinary and usual course consistent with past
practice;

•  fail to maintain and preserve intact its business organization, properties, leases, employees and
advantageous business relationships and retain the services of its officers and key employees;

•  take any action that would adversely affect or delay its ability to perform its obligations under the
merger agreement or to consummate the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement;

Indebtedness

•  incur, modify, extend or renegotiate any indebtedness for borrowed money or, assume, guarantee,
endorse or otherwise as an accommodation become responsible for the obligations of any person or entity, other than
(a) the creation of deposit liabilities in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; and (b) advances
from the Federal Home Loan Bank with a maturity of not more than one year;

•  prepay any such indebtedness so as to cause itself to incur a prepayment penalty thereunder;

Capital Stock

•  adjust, split, combine or reclassify its capital stock;

•  pay any cash or stock dividends or make any other distribution on its capital stock, except for
regular quarterly cash dividends at a rate not exceeding $0.17 per share of Factory Point Bancorp common stock and
dividends paid by any of Factory Point Bancorp�s subsidiaries to enable Factory Point Bancorp to pay such dividends;

•  grant any stock appreciation rights or grant any third party a right to acquire any of its shares of
capital stock;

•  issue any additional shares of capital stock or any securities or obligations convertible or
exercisable for any shares of its capital stock, except pursuant to the exercise of outstanding stock options;

•  except in connection with the exercise of stock options or withholdings of taxes under any of the
Factory Point Bancorp stock-based incentive plans, redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire any shares of its capital
stock;
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Dispositions

•  dispose of any of its material assets or cancel, release or assign any indebtedness, other than in the
ordinary course of business or pursuant to commitments existing as of the date of the merger agreement;

Investments

•  make any equity investment or purchase any property or assets other than pursuant to
commitments existing as of the date of the merger agreement;

Contracts

•  enter into, renew, amend or terminate any contract or agreement, or make any change in any of its
leases or contracts, other than with respect to those involving the payment of less than $10,000 per year, and those
specifically permitted by the merger agreement;

Loans

•  make, renegotiate, renew, increase, extend, modify or purchase any loans, leases, advances, credit
enhancements or extensions, other than existing loan commitments or those in conformity with lending policies in
effect as of the date of the merger agreement, in amounts not to exceed an aggregate of $500,000 with respect to any
one borrower;

•  make or increase any loan or extension of credit or commit to make or increase any such loan or
extension of credit to any director or executive officer of Factory Point Bancorp or Factory Point National Bank,
except for loans or extensions of credit on terms made available to the general public and other than renewals of
existing loans or commitments to loan;

Employees

•  increase the compensation or fringe benefits of any of its employees or directors, except in the
ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and pursuant to policies currently in effect;

•  pay any bonus, pension, retirement allowance or contribution not required by any existing plan or
agreement to any employees or directors; provided, however, that Factory Point Bancorp may make payouts to
employees under its incentive compensation plan and discretionary bonus fund before the consummation of the
merger consistent with its 2007 budget and in an amount not to exceed $284,000;

•  become a party to, amend or commit to any benefit plan or employment agreement;

•  voluntarily accelerate the vesting or the lapsing of any restrictions with respect to any stock
options or other stock-based compensation;

•  elect any new senior executive officer or director;

•  hire any employee with an annual total compensation in excess of $30,000;

Settling Claims
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•  settle any claim against it for more than $20,000 or impose or agree to material restrictions on its
operations;
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Governing Documents

•  amend its certificate of incorporation or bylaws;

Investment in Debt Securities

•  restructure or make any material change to its investment securities portfolio or interest rate risk
position, through purchases, sales or otherwise, or in the manner in which the portfolio is classified;

•  make any investment in any debt security, including mortgage-backed and mortgage-related
securities, other than U.S. government and U.S. government agency securities with final maturities not greater than
one year;

Capital Expenditures

•  other than certain capital expenditures previously disclosed by Factory Point Bancorp, make any
capital expenditures other than pursuant to binding commitments existing of the date of the merger agreement and
other than expenditures necessary to maintain existing assets in good repair or to make payment of necessary taxes;

Branches

•  establish or commit to establish any new branch or other office or file an application to relocate or
terminate the operation of an existing banking office;

Accounting

•  change its method of accounting, except as required by changes in generally accepted accounting
principles or regulatory guidelines;

Merger Agreement

•  take any action that is intended or expected to result in any of its representations and warranties
under the merger agreement being or becoming untrue in any material respect or in the conditions to the merger not
being satisfied or in a violation of a provision of the merger agreement;

•  knowingly take any action that would prevent or impede the merger from qualifying as a
reorganization under Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code; or

Other Agreements

•  agree to take, commit to take any or adopt any resolutions in support of any of the foregoing
actions.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp has agreed that, until the completion of the merger and unless permitted by Factory Point Bancorp, it will not:

•  take any action that would adversely affect or delay its ability to perform its obligations under the
merger agreement or to consummate the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement;

•  take any action that is intended or expected to result in any of its representations and warranties
under the merger agreement being or becoming untrue in any material respect or in the conditions to the merger not

Edgar Filing: BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC - Form S-4

·                  there is no adverse change in U.S. federal income tax law. 102



being satisfied or in a violation of a provision of the merger agreement;

67

Edgar Filing: BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC - Form S-4

·                  there is no adverse change in U.S. federal income tax law. 103



•  knowingly take any action that would prevent or impede the merger from qualifying as a
reorganization under Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code; or

•  agree to take, commit to take or adopt any resolutions in support of any of the foregoing actions.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp also agreed that it would not:

•  enter into any definitive merger agreement, purchase and assumption agreement or similar
document involving Berkshire Hills Bancorp or any of its subsidiaries without the prior notification by written, oral or
electronic means to the Board of Directors or Chief Executive Officer of Factory Point Bancorp; or

•  issue or agree to issue any additional shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock or any
securities convertible into Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock, except for existing and future grants under
Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s stock-based benefit plans, without the prior notification by written, oral or electronic means
to the Board of Directors or Chief Executive Officer of Factory Point Bancorp.

Covenants of Factory Point Bancorp and Berkshire Hills Bancorp in the Merger Agreement

Agreement Not to Solicit Other Proposals.  Factory Point Bancorp and its officers, directors, employees and representatives
have agreed not to: (1) solicit, initiate, encourage or facilitate any acquisition proposal by a third party; (2) participate
in discussions or negotiations regarding an acquisition proposal; (3) enter into any agreement requiring it to abandon
or terminate the merger agreement with Berkshire Hills Bancorp; (4) make any statement critical of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp, its board of directors, its management or the merger; or (5) join with or assist any person or entity in
opposing the merger.  An acquisition proposal includes the following:

•  any merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, or other similar transaction
involving Factory Point Bancorp or its subsidiaries;

•  any sale, lease, exchange, mortgage, pledge, transfer or other disposition of 25% or more of the
assets of Berkshire Hills Bancorp;

•  any tender offer or exchange offer for 25% or more of the outstanding shares of capital stock of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp; and

•  any public announcement of a proposal, plan or intention to do any of the foregoing or any
agreement to engage in any of the foregoing.

Despite the agreement of Factory Point Bancorp not to solicit other acquisition proposals, Factory Point Bancorp may generally negotiate or
have discussions with, or provide information to, a third party who makes an unsolicited, written, bona fide acquisition proposal, provided that
the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors:

•  after consultation with and receipt of advice from outside legal counsel, in good faith deems such
action to be necessary for the proper discharge of its fiduciary duties to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders under
applicable law; and

•  (1) after consultation with its outside legal counsel and its financial advisor, determines in good
faith that the transaction presented by such unsolicited acquisition proposal, taking into account all legal, financial and
regulatory aspects of the proposal, the person making the proposal and the prospects and interests of Factory Point
Bancorp and its shareholders, is a more favorable transaction than the transactions contemplated by the merger
agreement with Berkshire Hills Bancorp; (2) is not conditioned on obtaining financing; (3) is for all of Factory Point
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 more favorable to Factory Point shareholders from a financial point of view than the
transactions contemplated by the merger agreement with Berkshire Hills Bancorp (a �superior proposal�).

If Factory Point Bancorp receives a proposal or information request from a third party or enters into negotiations with a third party regarding a
superior proposal, Factory Point Bancorp must immediately notify Berkshire Hills Bancorp and provide Berkshire Hills Bancorp with
information about the third party and its proposal.

Certain Other Covenants.  The merger agreement also contains other agreements relating to the conduct of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp before consummation of the merger, including the following:

•  each party will give the other party reasonable access during normal business hours to its
property, books, records and personnel and furnish all information the other party may reasonably request;

•  Factory Point Bancorp will promptly provide Berkshire Hills Bancorp with a copy of all
documents filed with its banking regulators, each management report provided to its board of directors and each
public press release;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp will promptly provide Factory Point Bancorp with a copy of each report
filed with its banking regulators;

•  Factory Point Bancorp will meet with Berkshire Hills Bancorp on a regular basis to discuss and
plan for the conversion of Factory Point Bancorp�s data processing and related electronic information systems;

•  Factory Point Bancorp will invite a non-voting designee of Berkshire Hills Bancorp to attend all
regular and special board of directors or senior management committee meetings of Factory Point Bancorp or Factory
Point National Bank except that Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s designee will not attend portions of any meeting during
which there is being discussed: (a) matters involving the merger; (b) information or material that Factory Point
Bancorp or Factory Point National Bank must keep confidential under applicable laws or regulations or policies or
procedures of Factory Point Bancorp or Factory Point National Bank; or (c) pending or threatened litigation or
investigations, if in the opinion of counsel to Factory Point Bancorp, the presence of such designee might adversely
affect the confidential nature of or any privilege relating to matters being discussed;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp will use their reasonable best efforts to submit
all necessary applications, notices, and other filings with any governmental entity, the approval of which is required to
complete the merger and related transactions;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp will use their reasonable best efforts to obtain
all third party consents necessary to consummate the merger;

•  Factory Point Bancorp will take any necessary action to exempt Berkshire Hills Bancorp and this
transaction from any anti-takeover provisions contained in Factory Point Bancorp�s certificate of incorporation or
bylaws or federal or state law;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp will use all reasonable efforts to take all
actions necessary to consummate the merger and the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp will file a registration statement, of which this joint proxy
statement/prospectus forms a part, with the Securities and Exchange Commission registering the shares of Berkshire
Hills Bancorp common stock to be issued in the merger to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders;
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•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp will issue a joint press release announcing the
merger and will consult with one another prior to issuing any press release or otherwise making public statements with
respect to the merger;

•  Factory Point Bancorp and Berkshire Hills Bancorp will each take all actions necessary to
convene a meeting of its respective shareholders to vote on the merger agreement.  The Factory Point Bancorp and the
Berkshire Hills Bancorp board of directors will each recommend at its respective shareholder meeting that the
shareholders vote to approve the merger and will use its reasonable best efforts to solicit shareholder approval. 
However, the Factory Point Bancorp board of directors may change or withdrawal its recommendation if: (1) Factory
Point Bancorp has properly called its meeting of shareholders; (2) has received a superior proposal; and (3) Factory
Point Bancorp�s board of directors, after consultation with and based on the advice of counsel, determines, in good
faith, that making such a recommendation would result in a violation of its fiduciary duties under applicable law;

•  before completion of the merger, Berkshire Hills Bancorp will notify The NASDAQ Global
Market of the additional shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock that Berkshire Hills Bancorp will issue in
exchange for shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock;

•  Factory Point Bancorp will use its reasonable best efforts to cause each person who is an affiliate
of it under Rule 145 of the Securities Act to deliver to Berkshire Hills Bancorp a letter to the effect that such person
will comply with Rule 145;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp will notify each other of any material contract
defaults and any events that would reasonably be likely to result in a material adverse effect on the other.  They also
will notify each other of any communication from a third party regarding the need to obtain that party�s consent in
connection with the merger;

•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp will take all steps required to cause any acquisitions of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock in the merger by persons subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act to be exempt under Rule 16b-3; and

•  each of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp will coordinate with each other the
payment of dividends to ensure that the holders of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock and Factory Point Bancorp
common stock will not receive two dividends, or fail to receive one dividend, for any single quarter.

Representations and Warranties Made by Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp in the Merger Agreement

Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp have made certain customary representations and warranties to each other in the merger
agreement relating to their businesses.  For information on these representations and warranties, please refer to the merger agreement attached as
Annex A.  The representations and warranties must be true in all material respects through the completion of the merger unless the change does
not have a material negative impact on the parties� business, financial condition or results of operations.  See ��Conditions to Completion of the
Merger.�

The representations and warranties contained in the merger agreement were made only for purposes of such agreement and are made as of
specific dates, were solely for the benefit of the parties to such agreement, and may be subject to limitations agreed to by the contracting parties,
including being qualified by disclosures between the parties.  These representations and warranties may have been made for the purpose of
allocating risk between the parties to the agreement instead of establishing these matters as facts, and may be subject to standards of materiality
applicable to the contracting parties that differ from those applicable to investors as statements of factual information.
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Terminating the Merger Agreement

The merger agreement may be terminated at any time before the completion of the merger, either before or after approval of the merger
agreement by Factory Point Bancorp or Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders, as follows:

•  by the written mutual consent of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp;

•  by either party, if the shareholders of Factory Point Bancorp fail to approve the merger agreement
(provided that Factory Point Bancorp will only be entitled to terminate for this reason if it has complied with its
obligations under the merger agreement with respect to its shareholder meeting);

•  by either party, if the shareholders of Berkshire Hills Bancorp fail to approve the merger
agreement (provided that Berkshire Hills Bancorp will only be entitled to terminate for this reason if it has complied
with its obligations under the merger agreement with respect to its shareholder meeting);

•  by either party, if a required regulatory approval, consent or waiver is denied or any governmental
entity prohibits the consummation of the merger or the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement;

•  by either party, if the merger is not consummated by January 31, 2008, unless failure to complete
the merger by that time is due to a misrepresentation, breach of a warranty or failure to fulfill a covenant by the party
seeking to terminate the agreement;

•  by either party, if the other party makes a misrepresentation, breaches a warranty or fails to fulfill
a covenant that has not been cured within 30 days following written notice to the party in default;

•  by Berkshire Hills Bancorp, if Factory Point Bancorp materially breaches its agreements
regarding the solicitation of other acquisition proposals or the submission of the merger agreement to shareholders, or
if the board of directors of Factory Point Bancorp does not recommend approval of the merger in the joint proxy
statement/prospectus or withdraws or revises its recommendation in a manner adverse to Berkshire Hills Bancorp; or

•  by Berkshire Hills Bancorp, if the both average closing price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common
stock during a measurement period ending ten business days before the closing is less than $28.36 and Berkshire Hills
Bancorp common stock underperforms the weighted average price of a predetermined list of 17 thrift and bank
holding companies between the date of the merger agreement and the measurement period by 20%, unless Berkshire
Hills Bancorp agrees to increase the exchange ratio pursuant to a formula specified in the merger agreement that
would increase the value of the stock portion of the merger consideration to $28.36 or eliminate the underperformance
in the index, whichever is less.

Termination Fee

The merger agreement requires Factory Point Bancorp to pay Berkshire Hills Bancorp a fee of $3,600,000 if the merger agreement is terminated
in certain circumstances that involve a competing offer.

Specifically, Factory Point Bancorp must pay the termination fee if Berkshire Hills Bancorp terminates the merger agreement as a result of a
breach by Factory Point Bancorp of its covenant regarding the solicitation of competing offers or its obligation to call a shareholder meeting or if
Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors fails to recommend approval of the merger or upon the withdrawal, qualification or revision of its
recommendation to approve the merger.
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If either party terminates the Merger Agreement as a result of the failure of Factory Point Bancorp�s shareholders to approve the merger and an
acquisition proposal from a third party has been publicly announced, disclosed or communicated before the date of the shareholders meeting,
then Factory Point Bancorp must pay 1/3 of the termination fee.  If Berkshire Hills Bancorp terminates the Merger Agreement because of a
material breach by Berkshire Hills Bancorp, and an acquisition proposal from a third party has been publicly announced, disclosed or
communicated before the date of termination, then Factory Point Bancorp must pay 1/3 of the termination fee. If within 12 months after such
termination, Factory Point Bancorp consummates or enters into any agreement with respect to an acquisition proposal, then it must pay the
remainder of the fee.

Under no circumstances will Factory Point Bancorp be required to pay more than $3,600,000 in the aggregate under the termination fee
provisions.

Expenses

Each of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp will pay its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with the merger.

Changing the Terms of the Merger Agreement

Before the completion of the merger, Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp may agree to waive, amend or modify any provision of
the merger agreement.  However, after the vote by Factory Point Bancorp shareholders, Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp can
make no amendment or modification that would reduce the amount or alter the kind of consideration to be received by Factory Point Bancorp�s
shareholders under the terms of the merger.
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PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed combined balance sheet as of March 31, 2007 and the unaudited pro forma
consolidated condensed combined statements of income for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and the year ended December 31, 2006 give
effect to the pending merger.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed combined financial information is based on the historical consolidated financial statements of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp under the assumptions and adjustments set forth in the accompanying notes.  The unaudited
pro forma consolidated condensed combined balance sheet gives effect to the merger as if the merger had been consummated at March 31,
2007.  The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed combined statements of income give effect to the merger as if the merger had been
completed at the beginning of the periods presented.

You should read the unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed combined financial statements in conjunction with the historical consolidated
financial statements of Berkshire Hills Bancorp that are incorporated by reference into this document and of Factory Point Bancorp that appear
elsewhere in this document.  The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the combined financial position or the results of
operations in the future or of the combined financial position or the results of operations that would have been realized had the merger been
consummated during the periods or as of the dates for which the pro forma information is presented.

Pro forma per share amounts for the combined company are based on exchange ratio of 0.5844.
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Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. and Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.

Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2007

Historical
Berkshire Hills Factory Point Pro Forma Pro Forma

(in thousands) Bancorp Bancorp Adjustments Combined
Assets
Cash and securities $ 257,173 $ 99,034 $ � $ 356,207
Net loans 1,710,408 223,901 (5,300 )(2) 1,929,009
Goodwill 104,923 2,299 56,200  (3) 163,422
Other intangibles 16,142 � 8,400  (4) 24,542
Other assets 85,927 14,144 (1,300 )(5) 98,771
Total assets $ 2,174,573 $ 339,378 $ 58,000 $ 2,571,951

Liabilities and stockholders�equity
Deposits $ 1,535,612 $ 274,567 $ � $ 1,810,179
Borrowings 351,638 32,552 � 384,190
Subordinated debentures 15,464 � 23,000  (6) 38,464
Other liabilities 8,772 2,705 � 11,477
Total liabilities 1,911,486 309,824 23,000 2,244,310

Common stock 106 4,102 (4,083 )(7) 125
Additional paid-in capital 201,542 18,731 45,804  (7) 266,077
Unearned compensation (2,724 ) � �  (7) (2,724 )
Retained earnings 109,275 6,986 (6,986 )(7) 109,275
Net accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) 249 (131 ) 131  (7) 249
Treasury stock at cost (45,361 ) (134 ) 134  (7) (45,361 )
Total stockholders� equity 263,087 29,554 35,000 327,641
Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 2,174,573 $ 339,378 $ 58,000 $ 2,571,951

See Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Combined Financial Statements
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Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. and Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.
Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Combined Statement of Income

Three Months Ended March 31, 2007

Historical

(In thousands, except per share data)
Berkshire Hills
Bancorp

Factory Point
Bancorp

Pro Forma
Adjustments

Pro Forma
Combined

Interest and dividend income
Loans $ 28,522 $ 4,263 $ 150 (2) $ 32,935
Investments and other 2,948 980 � 3,928
Total interest and dividend income 31,470 5,243 150 36,863
Interest expense
Deposits 11,949 1,540 � 13,489
Borrowings 4,331 511 425 (6) 5,267
Total interest expense 16,280 2,051 425 18,756
Net interest income 15,190 3,192 (275 ) 18,107
Non-interest income
Fee income 7,733 646 � 8,379
Gain on securities 81 � � 81
Other non-interest income 423 243 � 666
Total non-interest income 8,237 889 � 9,126
Total net revenue 23,427 4,081 (275 ) 27,233
Provision for loan losses 750 � � 750
Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee benefits 8,511 1,390 (400 ) 9,501
Occupancy and equipment 2,486 474 � 2,960
Non-recurring expense 153 � � 153
Other non-interest expense 4,259 781 50 (8) 5,090
Total non-interest expense 15,409 2,645 (350 ) 17,704
Income before income taxes 7,268 1,436 75 (8) 8,779
Income tax expense 2,326 357 25 2,708
Net income $ 4,942 $ 1,079 $ 50 $ 6,071
Basic earnings per share $ 0.57 $ 0.26 $ 0.57
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.56 $ 0.26 $ 0.56
Weighted average common shares
Basic 8,662 4,077 1,914 10,576
Diluted 8,842 4,140 1,978 10,819

See Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Combined Financial Statements
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Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. and Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.
Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Combined Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Historical
(In thousands, except per share data) Berkshire Hills Factory Point Pro Forma Pro Forma

Bancorp Bancorp Adjustments Combined

Loans $ 100,836 $ 16,312 $ 600  (2) $ 117,748
Investments and other 17,215 3,889 � 21,104
Total interest and dividend income 118,051 20,201 600 138,852
Interest expense
Deposits 41,044 5,064 � 46,108
Borrowings 16,767 1,943 1,700  (6) 20,410
Total interest expense 57,811 7,007 1,700 66,518
Net interest income 60,240 13,194 (1,100 ) 72,334
Non-interest income
Fee income 13,539 2,846 � 16,385
Loss on securities (3,130 ) � � (3,130 )
Other non-interest income 1,639 258 � 1,897
Total non-interest income 12,048 3,104 � 15,152
Total net revenue 72,288 16,298 (1,100 ) 87,486
Provision for loan losses 7,860 390 � 8,250
Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee benefits 24,708 5,148 (1,600 )(8) 28,256
Occupancy and equipment 7,699 1,733 � 9,432
Non-recurring expense 1,510 � � 1,510
Other non-interest expense 14,951 3,009 200  (8) 18,160
Total non-interest expense 48,868 9,890 (1,400 ) 57,358
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 15,560 6,018 300  (8) 21,878
Income tax expense 4,668 1,553 100 6,321
Income from continuing operations 10,892 4,465 200 15,557
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes 606 � � 606
Income tax expense 235 � � 235
Net income from discontinued operations 371 � � 371
Net income $ 11,263 $ 4,465 $ 200 $ 15,928
Basic earnings per share
Continuing operations $ 1.28 $ 1.10 $ 1.49
Discontinued operations 0.04 � 0.04
Total $ 1.32 $ 1.10 $ 1.52
Diluted earnings per share
Continuing operations $ 1.25 $ 1.08 $ 1.45
Discontinued operations 0.04 � 0.03
Total $ 1.29 $ 1.08 $ 1.49
Weighted average common shares
Basic 8,538 4,073 1,914 10,452
Diluted 8,730 4,150 1,978 10,708

See Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Combined Financial Statements
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Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. and Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated
Condensed Combined Financial Statements

Note 1

The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed combined (�pro forma combined�) balance sheet of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point
Bancorp at March 31, 2007 has been prepared as if the merger had been consummated on that date. The pro forma combined statements of
income for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and year ended December 31, 2006 have been prepared as if the merger had been
consummated at the beginning of the periods presented. The pro forma combined financial statements are based on the historical financial
statements of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Factory Point Bancorp and give effect to the merger under the purchase method of accounting and the
assumptions and adjustments in the notes that follow.

Certain reclassifications have been made to Factory Point Bancorp�s financial information to conform to Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s financial
information.

Note 2

The only material estimated purchase accounting adjustment to record the existing assets and liabilities of Factory Point Bancorp at fair value is
a $5.3 million estimated discount for net loans based on the Factory Point Bancorp financial statements at December 31, 2006.  This estimated
fair value and resulting net discount, for purposes of these pro forma combined financial statements, is being accreted to interest income on a
straight line basis over approximately nine years.  The actual discount will be accreted to interest income to produce a constant yield to maturity.

Note 3

The components of the purchase price of Factory Point Bancorp are as follows:

(in thousands, except per share data)

Purchase Price of Factory Point Bancorp
Factory Point Bancorp common stock outstanding 4,093 (a)
Exchange ratio (80% stock consideration converted at 0.5844 exchange ratio) 0.4675
Total Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock to be issued 1,914

Purchase price per Berkshire Hills Bancorp common shares $ 61,814 (b)
Estimated value of converted Factory Point stock options 2,740
Cash payment to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders (20% cash consideration at $19.50 per share) 15,964
Estimated transaction costs, net of 33% tax 7,036 (c)
Total purchase price $ 87,554

(a)  Based on shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock outstanding as of March 31, 2007.

(b)  Based on the $32.30 average per share closing price of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock from May 11,
2007 through May 17, 2007.

(c)  Estimated transaction costs include severance, contract terminations and professional fees.

Goodwill is calculated as the difference between the total purchase price and the net fair value of assets and liabilities acquired.
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The pro forma combined financial statements do not include indirect merger costs which are estimated at $1.0 million, after tax effects, for
systems conversion and integration expenses.  It is anticipated that these expenses will be accrued as of the merger date.

Note 4

Other intangibles include an estimated core deposit intangible of $8.0 million, and the value of non-compete agreements and other intangible
assets of $0.4 million.  The core deposit intangible is estimated to have an estimated useful life of eight years and is amortized over this
estimated useful life on a straight-line basis.  The other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over a three year period.

Note 5

The adjustment to other assets is the estimated change in the net deferred tax asset based on the other pro forma adjustments.

Note 6

The increase in subordinated debentures is based on a projected issuance of $23.0 million in junior subordinated debentures to finance the $16.0
million cash consideration to shareholders and the $7.0 million in estimated direct costs of the merger, net of taxes.  Interest expense includes the
estimated interest cost of this financing.  The actual form of this financing may be different from this assumption, based on capital market
conditions.

Note 7

Under the purchase method of accounting, the equity accounts of Factory Point are eliminated.  Common stock is adjusted to include the $19
thousand par value of the $1.9 million common shares to be issued as part of the purchase consideration.  Additional paid-in capital is adjusted
for the value of the common stock issued, in excess of the par value, along with the $2.7 million estimated value of Berkshire Hills Bancorp
stock options issued in exchange for Factory Point Bancorp options.

Note 8

It is anticipated that there will be operating cost savings approximating $2.5 million, which will be partially offset by $1.1 million in increased
amortization related to increased intangible assets.  The allocation of operating cost savings is an estimate subject to further change.  The net tax
rate related to merger related changes in net income is estimated at approximately 33%.
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DESCRIPTION OF BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP CAPITAL STOCK

The following summary describes the material terms of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s capital stock and is subject to, and qualified by, Berkshire
Hills Bancorp�s certificate of incorporation and bylaws and the Delaware General Corporation Law (�DGCL�). See �Where You Can Find More
Information� as to how to obtain a copy of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s certificate of incorporation and bylaws.

General

Berkshire Hills Bancorp is authorized to issue 26,000,000 shares of common stock having a par value of $0.01 per share, and 1,000,000 shares
of preferred stock having a par value of $0.01 per share. At _______________, 2007, _______ shares of common stock were outstanding. At
that date, no preferred shares were outstanding.

Common Stock

Voting Rights. The holders of common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters presented to shareholders. Holders of common
stock are not entitled to cumulate their votes in the election of directors.  However, Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s certificate of incorporation
provides that a record owner of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock who beneficially owns, either directly or indirectly, in excess of 10% of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s outstanding shares, is not entitled to any vote in respect of the shares held in excess of the 10% limit.

No Preemptive or Conversion Rights. The holders of common stock do not have preemptive rights to subscribe for a proportionate share of
any additional securities issued by Berkshire Hills Bancorp before such securities are offered to others. The absence of preemptive rights
increases Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s flexibility to issue additional shares of common stock in connection with Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s
acquisitions, employee benefit plans and for other purposes, without affording the holders of common stock a right to subscribe for their
proportionate share of those additional securities. The holders of common stock are not entitled to any redemption privileges, sinking fund
privileges or conversion rights.

Dividends. Holders of common stock are entitled to receive dividends ratably when, as and if declared by Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of
directors from assets legally available therefor, after payment of all dividends on preferred stock, if any is outstanding.  Under Delaware law,
Berkshire Hills Bancorp may pay dividends out of surplus or net profits for the fiscal year in which declared and/or for the preceding fiscal year,
even if its surplus accounts are in a deficit position.  Dividends paid by Berkshire Bank and proceeds received from the offering of trust
preferred securities have historically been the primary source of funds available to Berkshire Hills Bancorp.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp expects to
use these sources of funds in the future, as well as proceeds it may obtain from the offering of common stock, preferred stock and/or debt
securities for payment of dividends to its shareholders, the repurchase of its common stock and for other needs.  Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board
of directors intends to maintain its present policy of paying regular quarterly cash dividends. The declaration and amount of future dividends will
depend on circumstances existing at the time, including Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s earnings, financial condition and capital requirements, as well
as regulatory limitations and such other factors as Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors deems relevant.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s principal assets and sources of income consist of investments in its operating subsidiaries, which are separate and
distinct legal entities.

Liquidation. Upon liquidation, dissolution or the winding up of the affairs of Berkshire Hills Bancorp, holders of common stock are entitled to
receive their pro rata portion of the remaining assets of Berkshire Hills Bancorp after the holders of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s preferred stock, if
any, have been paid in full any sums to which they may be entitled.

Preferred Stock

Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s certificate of incorporation authorizes its board of directors, without shareholder action, to issue preferred stock in one
or more series and to establish the designations, dividend rates and rights,
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dissolution or liquidation rights, preferences, price and terms and conditions on which shares may be redeemed, terms and conditions for
conversion or exchange into any other class or series of the stock, voting rights and other terms. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing
flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could, among other things, adversely affect the voting power of
the holders of common stock and could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s control.

Certain Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaw Provisions Affecting Stock

Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain several provisions that may make Berkshire Hills Bancorp a less
attractive target for an acquisition of control by anyone who does not have the support of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s board of directors. Such
provisions include, among other things, the requirement of a supermajority vote of shareholders or directors to approve certain business
combinations and other corporate actions, a minimum price provision, several special procedural rules, a staggered board of directors, a vote
limitation provision and the limitation that shareholder actions may only be taken at a meeting and may not be taken by unanimous written
shareholder consent.  The foregoing is qualified in its entirely by reference to Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s certificate of incorporation and bylaws

Restrictions on Ownership

Under the federal Change in Bank Control Act, a notice must be submitted to the Office of Thrift Supervision if any person (including a
company), or group acting in concert, seeks to acquire �control� of a savings and loan holding company or savings association.  An acquisition of
�control� can occur upon the acquisition of 10% or more of the voting stock of a savings and loan holding company or savings institution or as
otherwise defined by the Office of Thrift Supervision.  Under the Change in Bank Control Act, the Office of Thrift Supervision has 60 days from
the filing of a complete notice to act, taking into consideration certain factors, including the financial and managerial resources of the acquirer
and the anti-trust effects of the acquisition.  Any company that so acquires control would then be subject to regulation as a savings and loan
holding company.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The Transfer Agent and Registrar for Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s common stock is Registrar and Transfer Company, 10 Commerce Drive,
Cranford, New Jersey 07016.
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COMPARISON OF RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

The rights of shareholders of Berkshire Hills Bancorp are currently governed by Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s certificate of incorporation, bylaws
and applicable provisions of the DGCL.  The rights of shareholders of Factory Point Bancorp are currently governed by Factory Point Bancorp�s
certificate of incorporation, bylaws and applicable provisions of the DGCL.  If the merger is completed, Factory Point Bancorp shareholders
who receive Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock will become Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders and their rights will likewise be
governed by Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s certificate of incorporation and bylaws and the DGCL.

The following is a summary of the material differences between the rights of a Factory Point Bancorp shareholder and the rights of a Berkshire
Hills Bancorp shareholder.  This summary is not a complete statement of the differences between the rights of Factory Point Bancorp
shareholders and the rights of Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholders and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the governing law of each
corporation and to the certificate of incorporation and bylaws of each corporation.  Copies of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s certificate of
incorporation and bylaws are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  Copies of Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s certificate of
incorporation and bylaws are available upon written request addressed to Gerald A. Denmark, Secretary, Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc., 24 North
Street, Pittsfield, Massachusetts 01201.

Authorized Stock

Berkshire Hills Bancorp Factory Point Bancorp
•  The Berkshire Hills Bancorp certificate of
incorporation authorizes 27,000,000 shares of
capital stock, consisting of 26,000,000 shares of
common stock, $0.01 par value, and 1,000,000
shares of preferred stock, $0.01 par value.

•  The Factory Point Bancorp certificate of incorporation
authorizes 6,000,000 shares of common stock, $1.00 par value.
No shares of preferred stock are authorized.

•  At ___________, 2007, there were _______
shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common
stock issued and outstanding.

•  As of ___________, 2007, there were ______ shares of Factory
Point Bancorp common stock issued and outstanding.

•  As of ___________, 2007, there were no
shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding.

Voting Rights

Berkshire Hills Bancorp Factory Point Bancorp
•  The holders of the common stock exclusively possess
all voting power, subject to the authority of the board of
directors to offer voting rights to the holders of preferred
stock.

•  Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote.
Beneficial owners of 10% or more of the outstanding
stock are subject to voting limitations.

•  Holders of common stock may not cumulate their
votes for the election of directors.

•  The holders of the common stock exclusively
possess all voting power.

•  Holders of common stock may not cumulate their
votes for the election of directors.
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Required Vote for Authorization of Certain Actions

Berkshire Hills Bancorp Factory Point Bancorp
•  At least 80% of the outstanding shares of voting stock
must approve certain �business combinations� involving
an �interested stockholder� or any affiliate of an �interested
stockholder.� However, if a majority of directors not
affiliated with the interested shareholder approves the
business combination or certain pricing criteria are
satisfied, a majority vote of the outstanding shares is
sufficient to approve a business combination.

•  At least 80% of the outstanding shares of voting
stock must approve certain �business combinations�
involving any �other corporation� or any affiliate of any
�other corporation.� However, if a majority of directors
not affiliated with the other corporation approves the
business combination, a majority vote of the
outstanding shares is sufficient to approve a business
combination.

Dividends

Berkshire Hills Bancorp Factory Point Bancorp
•  Holders of common stock are entitled, when declared
by the Berkshire Hills Bancorp Board, to receive
dividends, subject to the rights of holders of preferred
stock.

•  Holders of common stock are entitled, when declared
by the Factory Point Bancorp Board, to receive
dividends.

Shareholders� Meetings

Berkshire Hills Bancorp Factory Point Bancorp
•  Berkshire Hills Bancorp must deliver notice of the
meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, a
description of its purpose no fewer than ten days and no
more than 60 days before the meeting to each
shareholder entitled to vote.

•  Factory Point Bancorp must deliver notice of the
meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, a
description of its purpose no fewer than ten days and
no more than 60 days before the meeting to each
shareholder entitled to vote.

•  Special meetings may be called only by the board of
directors.

•  Special meetings may be called only by the board of
directors.

•  For purposes of determining shareholders entitled to
vote at a meeting, the board of directors may fix a record
date that is not less than 10 days and not more than 60
days before the meeting.

•  For purposes of determining shareholders entitled to
vote at a meeting, the board of directors may fix a
record date that is not less than 10 days and not more
than 60 days before the meeting.

•  The board of directors or any shareholder entitled to
vote may nominate directors for election or propose new
business.

•  The board of directors or any shareholder entitled to
vote may nominate directors for election or propose
new business.

•  To nominate a director or propose new business,
shareholders must give written notice to the Secretary of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp not less than 90 days before the
meeting. However, if Berkshire Hills Bancorp gives less
than 100 days� notice or prior public disclosure of the
meeting, written notice of the shareholder proposal or
nomination must be delivered to the Secretary not later
than ten days following the date notice of the meeting

•  To nominate a director or propose new business,
shareholders must give written notice to the Secretary
of Factory Point Bancorp not less than 75 days nor
more than 100 days before the anniversary date of the
immediately preceding annual meeting of shareholders.
However, if Factory Point Bancorp holds the annual
meeting for a date that is not within 30 days before or
after such anniversary date, written notice of the
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was mailed to shareholders or public disclosure of the
meeting was made.Each notice given by a shareholder
with respect to a nomination to the board of directors or
proposal for new business must include certain
information regarding the nominee or proposal and the
shareholder making the nomination or proposal.

shareholder proposal or nomination must be delivered
to the Secretary not later than ten days following the
date notice of the meeting was mailed to
shareholders.Each notice given by a shareholder with
respect to a nomination to the board of directors or
proposal for new business must include certain
information regarding the nominee or proposal and the
shareholder making the nomination or proposal.
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Action by Shareholders Without a Meeting

Berkshire Hills Bancorp Factory Point Bancorp
•  Action taken at an annual or special meeting of
shareholders must be effected at a duly called meeting
and may not be effected by written consent of
shareholders.

•  Action taken at an annual or special meeting of
shareholders must be effected at a duly called meeting
and may not be effected by written consent of
shareholders.

Board of Directors

Berkshire Hills Bancorp Factory Point Bancorp
•  The bylaws provide that the number of directors, to be
fixed by resolution, shall not exceed 12.

•  The bylaws provide that the number of directors shall
be set by a resolution of the board of directors.

•  The board of directors is divided into three classes as
equal in number as possible and approximately one-third
of the directors are elected at each annual meeting.

•  The board of directors is divided into three classes as
equal in number as possible and approximately
one-third of the directors are elected at each annual
meeting.

•  Vacancies on the board of directors will be filled by a
vote of a majority of the remaining directors.

•  Vacancies on the board of directors will be filled by
a majority vote of the remaining directors.

•  Directors may be removed only for cause by the vote
of 80% of the outstanding shares entitled to vote at an
annual or special meeting called for that purpose.

•  Directors may be removed only for cause by the vote
of 80% of the outstanding shares entitled to vote at an
annual or special meeting called for that purpose.

Amendment of the Bylaws

Berkshire Hills Bancorp Factory Point Bancorp
•  The bylaws may be amended or repealed either the
approval of a majority of the board of directors or by the
vote of 80% of the outstanding shares entitled to vote.

•  The bylaws may be amended or repealed either the
approval of a majority of the board of directors or by
the vote of 80% of the outstanding shares entitled to
vote.

Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation

Berkshire Hills Bancorp Factory Point Bancorp
•  The certificate of incorporation may be amended or
repealed upon approval of a majority of the shares
entitled to vote on the matter, unless otherwise provided
in the certificate of incorporation or Delaware law.

•  The certificate of incorporation may be amended or
repealed upon approval of a majority of the shares
entitled to vote on the matter, unless otherwise
provided in the certificate of incorporation or Delaware
law.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS AFTER THE MERGER

Board of Directors

After completion of the merger, the board of directors of Berkshire Hills Bancorp will consist of all the current directors of Berkshire Hills
Bancorp plus Susan M. Hill.  Lawrence A. Bossidy will continue to be Non-Executive Chairman of the Board.  Susan M. Hill also will join the
board of directors of Berkshire Bank.  Information regarding the proposed appointee is contained below. The indicated period for service as a
director includes service as a director of Factory Point National Bank.

Susan M. Hill is President of Hill & Thompson, P.C., a certified public accounting firm located in Manchester Center,
Vermont.  Age 57.  Director since 1992.

Information regarding the current directors and executive officers of Berkshire Hills Bancorp, executive compensation and relationships and
related transactions is included in this Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s proxy statement for its 2007 annual meeting of shareholders, which is
incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

Management

The executive officers of Berkshire Hills Bancorp and Berkshire Bank will not change as a result of the merger.

Operations

While there can be no assurance as to the achievement of business and financial goals, Berkshire Hills Bancorp currently expects to achieve cost
savings equal to approximately 25% of Factory Point Bancorp�s current annualized non-interest expenses through the elimination of redundant
senior management and back-office staffing and other operating efficiencies (such as the elimination of duplicative data processing services). 
Berkshire Hills Bancorp expects to achieve most of these savings in the first full year following the merger. See �A Warning About
Forward-Looking Statements.�

INFORMATION ABOUT FACTORY POINT BANCORP

General

Factory Point Bancorp, Inc. is a one bank holding company.  Factory Point National Bank is a community bank headquartered in Manchester
Center, Vermont with seven full-service branch offices in Arlington, Dorset, Ludlow, Manchester and Rutland, Vermont.  Factory Point
National Bank has been serving customers since it was founded in 1883.  Factory Point National Bank�s deposits are insured to the maximum
extent permitted by law by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.  Factory Point National Bank is subject to comprehensive regulation,
examination and supervision by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency.

Factory Point National Bank�s primary business includes residential real estate lending (for portfolio and sale on the secondary market), small
business loan and deposit services as well as variety of consumer loan and deposit services.  Factory Point National Bank is chartered with trust
powers and offers trust and investment services in the markets it serves.

Management�s Discussion And Analysis Of Results Of Operations
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Factory Point Bancorp is a publicly-held, one-bank holding company whose wholly-owned subsidiary, the Factory Point National Bank of
Manchester Center, maintains its corporate offices in Manchester Center, Vermont.  The Company is incorporated in the state of Delaware. 
Factory Point Bancorp�s activity is currently limited to the holding of Factory Point National Bank outstanding common stock and Factory Point
National Bank is Factory Point Bancorp�s primary investment.  Factory Point Bancorp�s net income is largely derived from the business of
Factory Point National Bank.
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Factory Point National Bank is an insured bank under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act up to its applicable limits. Factory Point National Bank
is a member of the Federal Reserve System.

Factory Point National Bank operates seven full-service community banking offices located in Arlington, Dorset, Ludlow, Manchester, and
Rutland, Vermont.

Factory Point National Bank is principally engaged in the business of attracting deposits from the general public and investing those deposits in
small business, commercial real estate, residential real estate, and consumer loans.  In connection with both loans and deposits, Factory Point
National Bank does a substantial amount of business with individuals as well as customers in commercial and professional businesses.  Factory
Point National Bank offers safe deposit boxes at four of its offices, and other community banking services to its customers.  Factory Point
National Bank has drive up facilities and automated teller machines which are connected to the NYCE, SUM, and PLUS networks.  Factory
Point National Bank is chartered with trust powers and offers advisory and investment services to consumers and businesses on retirement and
estate planning, individual investment portfolios, and asset management in the markets it serves.

Neither Factory Point Bancorp nor Factory Point National Bank holds any patents, trademarks, licenses, franchises or concessions materially
important to Factory Point National Bank, other than those required or granted by regulatory authorities.

The retail nature of Factory Point National Bank�s operations allows for full diversification of deposits and borrowers.  Most of Factory Point
National Bank�s deposits are from individuals and small business related sources.  No material portion of Factory Point National Bank�s loans is
concentrated within a single industry or group of related industries.  No loans are made to foreign companies or governments.  Factory Point
National Bank generally finances real estate within its market area.

At March 31, 2007, Factory Point National Bank had 100 full time equivalent employees.

Factory Point National Bank�s business is affected not only by competition and general economic conditions, but also by governmental, tax,
monetary, and fiscal policies.

Factory Point National Bank�s operations are subject to regulation, examination, and supervision by the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency.

Federal and state banking regulations regulate, among other things, the scope of the business a bank, a bank holding company, or a financial
holding company, the investments a bank may make, deposit reserves a bank must maintain, the establishment of branches and the activities of a
bank with respect to mergers and acquisitions.  Factory Point National Bank is subject to the federal regulations promulgated pursuant to the
Financial Institutions Supervisory Act to prevent banks from engaging in unsafe and unsound practices, as well as various other federal and state
laws and consumer protection laws.

The earnings and growth of Factory Point Bancorp, Factory Point National Bank and the banking industry are affected by the monetary and
fiscal policies of the United States government and its agencies, particularly the Federal Reserve Board.  The Open Market Committee of the
Federal Reserve Board implements national monetary policy to curb inflation and combat recession.  The Federal Reserve Board uses its power
to adjust interest rates in United States Government securities, the discount rate and the deposit reserve retention rates.  The actions of the
Federal Reserve Board influence growth of bank loans, investment and deposits.  They can also affect interest rates changes on loans and paid
on deposits.  The nature and impact of any future changes in monetary policies can not be predicted.

In addition to other laws and regulations, Factory Point National Bank is subject to the Community Reinvestment Act, which requires the
Federal bank regulatory agencies, when considering certain applications involving Factory Point Bancorp or Factory Point National Bank, to
consider Factory Point National Bank�s record
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of helping to meet the credit needs of the entire community, including low and moderate income neighborhoods.  The Community Reinvestment
Act was originally enacted because of concern over unfair treatment of prospective borrowers by banks and over unwarranted geographic
differences in lending patterns.  Existing banks have sought to comply with Community Reinvestment Act in various ways; some banks have
made use of more flexible lending criteria for certain types of loans and borrowers (consistent with the requirement to conduct safe and sound
operations), while other banks have increased their efforts to make loans to help meet identified credit needs within the consumer community,
such as those for home mortgages, home improvements and small business loans.  For example, this may include participation in various
government insured lending programs, such as Small Business Administration loans and participation in other types of lending programs such as
high loan to vale conventional mortgage loans with private mortgage insurance.  The market area from which Factory Point National Bank
draws much of its business is Manchester, Arlington, Dorset, Ludlow, and Rutland, Vermont.  Factory Point Bancorp and Factory Point National
Bank have not and will not adopt any policies or practices which discourage credit applications from, or unlawfully discriminate against,
individuals or segments of the communities served by Factory Point National Bank.  Factory Point National Bank�s current Community
Reinvestment rating is outstanding.

On October 26, 2001, the United and Strengthening America by Providing Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001, or
the USA Patriot Act, was enacted to further strengthen domestic security following the September 11, 2001 attacks.  The USA Patriot Act
amends various federal banking laws, particularly the Bank Secrecy Act with the intent to curtail money laundering and other activities that
might be undertaken to finance terrorist actions.  The USA Patriot Act also requires that financial institutions in the United States enhance
already established anti-money laundering policies, procedures, and audit functions and ensure that controls are reasonably designed to detect
instances of money laundering through certain correspondent and private bank accounts.  Verification of customer identification, maintenance of
said verification records, and cross checking names of new customers against government lists of known or suspected terrorists is also required. 
The Patriot Act was recently re-authorized and modified with the enactment of the USA Patriot Act Improvement and Reauthorization Act of
2005.

Factory Point Bancorp does not anticipate that compliance with applicable federal and state banking laws will have a material adverse effect on
its business of the business of Factory Point National Bank.  Compliance by Factory Point Bancorp and Factory Point National Bank with
federal, state and local provisions which have been enacted or adopted regulating or otherwise relating to the discharge of material into the
environment is not expected to have a material effect upon the capital expenditures, earnings, or competitive position of Factory Point Bancorp.

Comparison of Financial Condition at March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements and related footnotes and
the consolidated financial statements and other financial data.
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Assets.  Total assets remained steady in 2007 ending the quarter at $339,378,000 compared to $340,499,000 as of December 31, 2006.

Loans.  Total loans were $228,023,000 at March 31, 2007, down slightly from $229,666,000 at December 31, 2006, a
decrease of 0.72%.  Average total loans for the first three months of 2007 were $230,125,000 up 5.02% over the first
three months of 2006 average balances of $219,123,000.

Loans secured by residential real estate increased slightly from $89,360,000 at December 31, 2006 to $89,832,000 at March 31, 2007 while
commercial and commercial real estate loans decreased slightly from $128,427,000 at December 31, 2006 to $128,104,000 at March 31, 2007.

Securities.  Factory Point Bancorp maintains a portfolio of securities available for sale to enhance income, manage
liquidity needs, and fulfill pledging requirements for municipal deposits and repurchase agreements.  This investment
portfolio is primarily comprised of U.S. Government sponsored enterprise securities, mortgage-backed securities,
collateralized mortgage obligations, corporate bonds, and municipal bonds.  Total available for sale securities
decreased $3,148,000, from $89,090,000 at December 31, 2006, to $85,942,000 at March 31, 2007.
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The net unrealized loss on the portfolio of securities available for sale was $198,000 at March 31, 2007 compared to $444,000 at December 31,
2006.  Management has the ability and intent to hold all securities which are in an unrealized loss position at March 31, 2007 until there is
market recovery of the unrealized loss or until maturity.  Management does not consider any securities to be other than temporarily impaired.

Deposits.  Total deposits increased to $274,567,000 as of March 31, 2007 compared to $269,967,000 at December 31,
2006.  Savings, NOW and money market accounts increased a total of $11,118,000 or 8.21% from $135,391,000 at
December 31, 2006 to $146,509,000 at March 31, 2007.  Total time deposits decreased $536,000 from $83,944,000 at
December 31, 2006 to $83,408,000 at March 31, 2007.  Average deposit balances for the first three months of  2007
were $266,799,000 compared to average deposit levels for the first three months of 2006 of $260,910,000.

Borrowings.  Total short-term borrowings were $27,202,000 and $38,677,000 at March 31, 2007 and December 31,
2006, respectively.  This decrease of 29.67% is due to a decrease in our short term borrowings from the FHLB.  FHLB
Borrowings decreased $11,500,000 from $17,500,000 as of December 31, 2006 to $6,000,000 as of March 31, 2007. 
Long-term borrowings increased from $353,000 at December 31, 2006 to $5,351,000 at March 31, 2007 due to longer
term borrowing agreements from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston instead of overnight advances.

Shareholders� Equity.  Shareholders� equity at March 31, 2007 was $29,554,000, an increase of $730,000 or 2.53% from
the $28,824,000 at December 31, 2006.  The overall increase is primarily due to earnings that were retained to fund
future growth.  Shareholders� equity as a percentage of total assets was 8.71% and 8.43% at March 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, respectively.  Book value per common share was $7.25 at March 31, 2007, compared to $7.08 at
December 31, 2006.

Capital provides the foundation for future growth and profitability for Factory Point Bancorp.  At March 31, 2007, Factory Point Bancorp�s
leverage ratio was 8.13% versus 8.18% at December 31, 2006.  The Tier 1 Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio at March 31, 2007 was 12.06%
compared to 11.74% at December 31, 2006.  At March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the Total Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio was
13.32% and 12.99%, respectively.  All ratios exceed regulatory minimum levels, and place Factory Point National Bank in the �well-capitalized�
category according to regulatory standards.

Asset Quality.  Non-performing loans consist of nonaccrual loans of $1,066,000 at March 31, 2007 and $1,052,000 at
December 31, 2006.  This represents an increase of $14,000 or 1.3%.

Non-performing loans to total loans as of March 31, 2007 was 0.47% compared to 0.46% at December 31, 2006.  Non-performing assets as a
percentage of total assets at March 31, 2007 was 0.31% compared to 0.31% at December 31, 2006.  There were no impaired loans at March 31,
2007 or December 31, 2006.

Allowance for Loan Losses.  Factory Point Bancorp assumes lending and credit risks as a principal element of business,
and anticipates that credit losses will be experienced in the normal course of business.  Accordingly, management
makes a quarterly determination as to an appropriate provision from earnings necessary to maintain an allowance for
loan losses that is adequate for probable losses.  Management�s evaluation is based upon a continuing review of the
loan portfolio, which includes factors such as the risk characteristics of individual loans, net loan charge-off or
recovery experience, delinquency rates, the overall size and composition of the loan portfolio and local and general
economic conditions. The balance in the allowance for loan losses was $4,122,000, or 1.81% of total loans at March
31, 2007, compared to $4,132,000, or 1.80% of total loans at December 31, 2006.

Credit Risk.  Management reviews the allowance for loan losses monthly and
makes provisions for loan losses, when necessary, in order to maintain the
adequacy of the allowance. Management believes the allowance for loan
losses is adequate to cover risks inherent in Factory Point Bancorp�s loan
portfolio at March 31, 2007.  However, there can be no assurance that Factory
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Point Bancorp will not have to increase its provision for loan losses in the
future as a result of changes in economic conditions or for other reasons,
which could adversely affect both the estimates made by management and
Factory Point Bancorp�s results of operations.
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Interest Rate Risk.  Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and rates.  Factory Point
Bancorp utilizes an Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), which meets quarterly, to review Factory Point Bancorp�s
interest rate sensitivity on an ongoing basis and prepare strategies to limit exposure to interest rate risk.  The principal
objective of the ALCO is to maximize Factory Point Bancorp�s net interest income while maintaining a level of risk
appropriate given Factory Point Bancorp�s business focus, operating environment, capital, and liquidity requirements
and performance objectives.  The ALCO also reviews Factory Point Bancorp�s liquidity, capital position, cash flow
needs, maturities of investments, deposits and borrowings and current market conditions and interest rates.  
Management meets weekly to make pricing and funding decisions with respect to Factory Point Bancorp�s retail
deposits and selected consumer loans.

Factory Point Bancorp�s primary monitoring tool is an asset/liability simulation model, which is prepared quarterly.  Factory Point Bancorp
examines changes to net interest income assuming rising or falling interest rate levels.

Liquidity Risk.  Managing liquidity involves meeting the day-to-day needs of
depositors and borrowers, taking advantage of investment opportunities, and
providing a cushion against unforeseen cash flow needs.

Sources of liquidity for Factory Point Bancorp include short-term investments, securities available-for-sale, maturing and repaying loans, and
monthly cash flows from mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations.  The loan portfolio provides an additional source
of liquidity due to Factory Point Bancorp�s participation in the secondary mortgage market and the ability to sell loans as necessary.  Factory
Point Bancorp also meets its liquidity needs by attracting deposits and utilizing borrowing arrangements with the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Boston for both short-term and long-term borrowings.

Factory Point Bancorp has a $2.76 million line of credit available from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston with no outstanding balance as
of March 31, 2007.

Factory Point Bancorp�s sources of liquidity are deemed by management to be sufficient to fund outstanding loan commitments and meet other
obligations.

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005

This discussion provides information concerning changes in the consolidated financial condition of Factory Point Bancorp from December 31,
2005 to December 31, 2006.  The comments are intended to supplement and should be reviewed in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements, related notes and selected financial data presented elsewhere herein.

Assets.  Total assets grew 6.58% in 2006 ending the year at $340,499,000 compared to $319,485,000 as of December 31, 2005.

Loans.  Total loans were $229,666,000 at December 31, 2006, up from $210,288,000 at December 31, 2005, an
increase of 9.21%.  Average total loans for the three months ended March 31, 2006 were $219,123,000 up 6.40% over
the three months ended March 31, 2005 average balance of $205,934,000.  Loans secured by residential real estate
increased 24.92% from $71,532,000 at December 31, 2005, to $89,360,000 at December 31, 2006 while commercial
and commercial real estate loans increased 3.85% from $123,666,000 at December 31, 2005 to $128,427,000 at
December 31, 2006.  In 2006, Factory Point Bancorp decided to hold more residential real estate loans for its own
portfolio in order to reduce the bank�s exposure to interest rate risk.  Consumer loans decreased 38.51% from
$10,312,000 at December 31, 2005 to $6,341,000 at December 31, 2006 due to the reduction in consumer time notes. 
Factory Point Bancorp plans to continue to establish new and expanded commercial banking relationships with
customers throughout southern Vermont.  The following table shows the loan portfolio composition as of the
respective balance sheet dates.

Edgar Filing: BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC - Form S-4

Liquidity Risk.  Managing liquidity involves meeting the day-to-day needs of depositors and borrowers, taking advantage of investment opportunities, and providing a cushion against unforeseen cash flow needs.135



88

Edgar Filing: BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC - Form S-4

Liquidity Risk.  Managing liquidity involves meeting the day-to-day needs of depositors and borrowers, taking advantage of investment opportunities, and providing a cushion against unforeseen cash flow needs.136



At December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
(Dollars In thousands) Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total

Residential real estate $ 89,360 38.9 % $ 71,532 34.0 % $ 70,996 34.8 % $ 64,848 33.6 % $ 58,472 33.7 %
Commercial and commercial
real estate 128,427 56.0 123,666 58.9 119,854 58.8 115,534 59.8 99,864 57.6
Construction 5,311 2.3 4,581 2.2 3,935 1.9 3,561 1.8 5,347 3.1
Consumer 6,341 2.8 10,312 4.9 9,176 4.5 9,227 4.8 9,640 5.6
Total loans $ 229,439 100 % $ 210,091 100 % $ 203,961 100 % $ 193,170 100 % $ 173,323 100 %
Net deferred loan fees/costs 227 197 184 179 153
Allowance for loan losses (4,132 ) (3,618 ) (2,910 ) (3,385 ) (3,239 )
Total loans receivable, net $ 225,534 $ 206,670 $ 201,235 $ 189,964 $ 170,237
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The following table sets forth certain information at December 31, 2006 regarding the dollar amount of loan principal repayments becoming due
during the periods indicated.

December 31, 2006

(in thousands)
One year 
or Less

More than One
Year to Five Years

More than
Five Years Total

Residential real estate $ 2,762 $ 1,107 $ 85,491 $ 89,360
Commercial and commercial real estate 26,946 69,242 32,238 128,427
Construction 5,311 � � 5,311
Consumer 490 3,703 2,148 6,341
Total $ 35,509 $ 74,052 $ 119,877 $ 229,439

The following table sets forth the dollar amount of all loans at December 31, 2006 that are due after December 31, 2007 and have either fixed
interest rates or floating or adjustable interest rates.  The amounts shown below exclude loan origination fees.

Fixed Rates
Floating or
Adjustable Rates Total

(In thousands)

Residential real estate $ 28,984 $ 57,614 $ 86,598
Commercial and commercial real estate 41,802 59,678 101,480
Consumer 4,009 1,842 5,851
Total $ 74,795 $ 119,134 $ 193,929

Securities.  Factory Point Bancorp maintains a portfolio of securities available for sale to enhance income, manage
liquidity needs, and fulfill pledging requirements for municipal deposits and repurchase agreements.  This investment
portfolio is primarily comprised of U.S. Government sponsored enterprise securities, mortgage-backed securities,
collateralized mortgage obligations, corporate bonds, and municipal bonds.  Total available for sale securities
increased $2,659,000, from $86,431,000 at December 31, 2005, to $89,090,000 at December 31, 2006.

The net unrealized loss on the portfolio of securities available for sale was $444,000 at December 31, 2006 compared to $659,000 at December
31, 2005.  Management has the ability and intent to hold all securities that are in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2006 until there is
market recovery of the unrealized loss or until maturity.  Management does not consider any securities to be other than temporarily impaired.

The following table sets forth the amortized cost and fair values of Factory Point Bancorp�s securities portfolio at the dates indicated.

December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(in thousands)
Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

U.S. Government sponsored enterprises $ 11,449 $ 11,322 $ 9,456 $ 9,319 $ 5,951 $ 5,921
Corporate bonds 5,902 5,895 2,905 2,899 � �
Municipal securities 31,798 31,908 30,910 30,981 21,781 22,204
Mortgage-backed securities 32,738 32,367 35,807 35,339 32,394 32,322
Collateralized mortgage obligations 5,727 5,677 5,554 5,439 11,088 11,075
Securities backed by SBA loans 766 767 980 976 1,435 1,426
Nonmarketable equity securities 1,154 1,154 1,478 1,478 1,478 1,478
Total $ 89,534 $ 89,090 $ 87,090 $ 86,431 $ 74,127 $ 74,426
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The following table sets forth information with regard to contractual maturities of securities available for sale as of December 31, 2006
(non-marketable equity securities are reflected in the more than ten years category) (mortgage backed securities and securities backed by SBA
loans are included by final maturity).  Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because of prepayments on loans underlying
asset-backed securities and the right of issuers to call or prepay obligations with or without prepayment penalties.

December 31, 2006 One year or Less
More than One
Year to Five Years

More than Five
Years to Ten Years

More than
Ten Years Total

(in thousands)
Fair
value

Weighted
Average
Yield(1)

Fair
value

Weighted
Average
Yield(1)

Fair
value

Weighted
Average
Yield(1)

Fair
value

Weighted
Average
Yield(1)

Fair
value

Weighted
Average
Yield(1)

U.S. Government
sponsored enterprises $ 5,977 4.40 % $ 3,968 4.39 % $ 1,376 4.28 % $ � � % $ 11,322 4.38 %
Corporate bonds � � 5,895 5.27 � � � � 5,895 5.27
Municipal securities 1,109 5.32 4,152 5.53 9,503 5.81 17,144 5.86 31,908 5.79
Mortgage-backed
securities � � 953 4.99 335 6.66 31,079 4.74 32,367 4.76
Collateralized mortgage
obligations � � 687 5.57 � � 4,991 4.68 5,678 4.79
Securities backed by
SBA loans � � 122 5.69 25 7.90 620 5.66 767 5.74
Nonmarketable equity
securities � � � � � � 1,154 5.77 1,154 5.77
Total $ 7,086 4.54 % $ 15,777 5.12 % $ 11,239 5.65 % $ 54,988 5.10 % $ 89,090 5.13 %

(1)  Calculated on a tax-equivalent basis using a tax rate of 34%.
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Deposits.  Total deposits remained level throughout 2006 and ended at $269,967,000 as of December 31, 2006
compared to $270,001,000 at December 31, 2005.  While savings, NOW and money markets declined, demand and
time deposits grew significantly.  Savings, NOW and money market accounts declined a total of $16,919,000 or
11.11% from $152,310,000 at December 31, 2005 to $135,391,000 at December 31, 2006.  Demand deposits
increased $5,126,000 or 11.26% to $50,632,000 at December 31, 2006, from $45,506,000 at December 31, 2005. 
Total time deposits increased $11,759,000 from $72,185,000 at December 31, 2005 to $83,944,000 at December 31,
2006.

The following table summarizes the composition of Factory Point Bancorp�s deposit balances:

At December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Non-interest-bearing demand $ 50,632 18.8 % $ 45,506 16.8 % $ 45,614 17.2 %
NOW 65,236 24.2 64,980 24.1 60,935 23.0
Money Market 52,752 19.5 65,523 24.3 70,274 26.5
Savings 17,403 6.4 21,807 8.1 22,306 8.4
Time Deposits 83,944 31.1 72,185 26.7 66,135 24.9
Total $ 269,967 100.0 % $ 270,001 100.0 % $ 265,264 100.0 %

The following table indicates the amount of jumbo certificates of deposit by time remaining until maturity as of December 31, 2006:

(In thousands) Time Deposits
Maturity Period
Three months or less $ 34,492
Over three through six months 27,559
Over six through twelve months 16,121
Over twelve months 5,772
Total $ 83,944

Borrowings.  Total short-term borrowings were $38,677,000 and $19,666,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.  This increase of 96.67% from year to year is due to an increase in our short term borrowings from the
FHLB.  Short-term FHLB borrowings increased $16,000,000 in 2006 from $1,500,000 as of December 31, 2005 to
$17,500,000 as of December 31, 2006.  Short-term FHLB borrowings were used to fund loan demand due to slow
deposit growth in 2006.  Long-term borrowings declined slightly from $364,000 at December 31, 2005 to $353,000 at
December 31, 2006 due to the amortizing of the long-term loan from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston.

The following indicates information about Factory Point Bancorp�s short-term borrowings at and for the periods indicated:

At of For the Year Ended
December 31,

(Dollars in thousands 2006 2005 2004
Maximum amount outstanding at any month end during the period $ 51,707 $ 19,666 $ 24,260
Average amount outstanding during the period 39,022 14,503 13,510
Weighted average interest rate during the period 4.96 % 3.27 % 1.34 %
Balance outstanding at end of period $ 38,677 $ 19,666 $ 11,031
Weighted average interest rate at end of period 4.23 % 2.51 % 1.65 %
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Comparison of Operating Results for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 and 2006

Factory Point Bancorp earned net income for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 of $1,079,000 or $0.26 per diluted share.  This compares with
$1,072,000 or $0.26 per diluted share earned during the quarter ended March 31, 2006.

Return on average assets for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 was 1.29%, compared to 1.35% at March 31, 2006.  Factory Point Bancorp�s
return on average equity for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 was 15.08% compared to 16.12% for March 31, 2006.
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The following table sets forth certain information relating to Factory Point Bancorp�s average earning assets and average
interest-bearing liabilities for the periods indicated.  The yields and rates were derived by dividing tax equivalent interest income or
interest expense by the average balance of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the periods shown.

Statutory tax rates were used to calculate tax-exempt income on a tax equivalent basis.  Average balances were computed based on
average daily balances.  Non-accruing loans have been included in loan balances.  The yield on securities available for sale is computed
based upon amortized cost.

Quarter Ended
March 31,
2007

Quarter Ended
March 31,
2006

INTEREST AVERAGE INTEREST AVERAGE
AVERAGE INCOME / YIELD / AVERAGE INCOME / YIELD /
BALANCE EXPENSE RATE BALANCE EXPENSE RATE

EARNING ASSETS:
SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE $ 88,218,841 $ 1,130,657 5.14 % $ 87,742,737 $ 1,091,370 4.99 %
LOANS 230,124,589 4,290,002 7.48 211,163,475 3,768,594 7.16
OTHER SHORT TERM
INVESTMENTS 352,295 4,267 4.86 165,067 1,842 4.48
TOTAL EARNING ASSETS 318,695,725 5,424,926 6.83 % 299,071,279 4,861,806 6.52 %

CASH & DUE FROM BANKS 8,524,021 11,921,484
ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (4,127,305 ) (3,690,323 )
OTHER ASSETS 15,964,011 13,808,174
TOTAL ASSETS $ 339,056,452 $ 321,110,614

INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES:
NOW ACCOUNTS $ 65,465,194 $ 221,441 1.36 % $ 64,169,334 $ 129,163 0.81 %
MONEY MARKETS 55,485,267 410,025 2.96 60,969,916 301,207 1.98
REGULAR SAVINGS 17,260,907 30,780 0.72 21,573,704 25,932 0.48
TIME DEPOSITS > $100M 25,770,591 353,269 5.50 19,116,899 227,323 4.77
TIME DEPOSITS < $100M 58,980,020 524,536 3.57 53,471,369 348,665 2.62
LONG TERM BORROWINGS 2,507,890 25,572 4.09 362,851 2,268 2.51
OTHER SHORT TERM
BORROWINGS 38,025,693 485,494 5.12 29,809,449 329,416 4.43
TOTAL INTEREST BEARING
LIABILITIES 263,495,562 2,051,117 3.12 % 249,473,522 1,363,974 2.19 %

DEMAND DEPOSITS 43,837,458 42,031,854
OTHER LIABILITIES 2,711,087 2,633,473
EQUITY 29,012,345 26,971,765
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY $ 339,056,452 $ 321,110,614

NET INTEREST INCOME $ 3,373,809 $ 3,497,832

INTEREST RATE SPREAD 3.71 % 4.33 %

NET INTEREST MARGIN 4.25 % 4.69 %
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Net Interest Income.  Net interest income is the difference between interest income on earning assets and interest
expense on interest-bearing liabilities.  Net interest income on a tax equivalent basis for the quarter ended March 31,
2007 was $3,374,000, a decrease of $124,000, or 5.34%, when compared to the quarter ended March 31, 2006 when
net interest income on a tax equivalent basis was $3,498,000.  Average earning assets increased $19,625,000 from the
first quarter of 2006 average balance of $299,071,000 to an average balance of $318,696,000 in the first quarter of
2007.

As general interest rate levels continued to climb throughout the last year, the yield on earning assets improved as well from 6.52% in the first
quarter of 2006 to 6.83% in the first quarter of 2007.  Offsetting the increase in the yields on earning assets, was the increase in the overall cost
of funds in 2007, due primarily to our higher short term borrowing levels, the increased rate environment impacting all deposit categories and
the shift in the deposit base to higher cost funds.  Our cost of interest bearing liabilities increased 93 basis points from 2.19% in 2006 to 3.12%
in 2007.  As a result, Factory Point Bancorp�s net interest margin ended the quarter at 4.25% compared to 4.69% as of 2006.

Provision for Loan Losses.  Factory Point Bancorp establishes a provision for loan losses, which is charged to earnings, in
order to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level that is adequate based on the estimated inherent risk of loss
in the loan portfolio.  In determining an appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses, management considers such
factors as the risk characteristics of individual loans, net loan charge-off or recovery experience, delinquency rates, the
overall size and composition of the loan portfolio and local and general economic conditions.  The provision for loan
losses was $0 for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and $195,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2006. 
The reduction in the provision for loan losses from the first quarter of 2006 to the first quarter of 2007 was primarily
due to the reduction in the total loan portfolio, the continued changing mix of the loan portfolio with lower credit risk
loan types such as residential loans increasing as a percentage of total loans, a reduction in impaired loans from the
first quarter of 2006 to the same period in 2007, as well as a continuation of strong credit quality indicators.

Non-Interest Income.  Non-interest income for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 amounted to $889,000, compared to
$750,000 for the quarter ended March 31, 2006.  Non-interest income is comprised primarily of trust service fees,
service charges on deposit accounts, other service charges, net gains on sales of residential loans, and net gains on
sales of investments.

Trust service fees include fees associated with the Trust and Investment Group as well as fees from brokerage services.  Total trust service fees
increased 13.06% in the first quarter of 2007 to $329,000 from $291,000 in the first quarter of 2006.  The increase was primarily due to an
increase in fees associated with brokerage services.

Service charges on deposit accounts amounted to $317,000 for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 compared to $258,000 in the first quarter of
2006.  The increase was primarily due to an increase in fees charged for certain deposit account services.

Non-Interest Expense.  Total non-interest expenses for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 amounted to $2,645,000, an
increase of $235,000 from total non-interest expenses of $2,410,000 for the quarter ended March 31, 2006.

The major components of non-interest expenses are salaries and benefits expense, occupancy & equipment expenses, and other operating
expenses.

Salary and benefits expenses were $1,390,000 for the quarter ended March 31, 2007, up 12.80% from $1,232,000 for the quarter ended March
31, 2006.  The increases are primarily attributable to annual salary increases and increased health insurance costs.

Other expenses are comprised primarily of the following: advertising, courier expenses, consulting fees, FDIC insurance assessments, supplies
expense, postage and the Vermont franchise tax.  In total, other expenses were $781,000 for the quarter ended March 31, 2007, up $22,000 or
2.90% from $759,000 for the quarter ended March 31, 2006.
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Income Tax Expense.  Income tax expense for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 totaled $357,200 compared to $397,300
for the first quarter of 2006.  Factory Point Bancorp�s statutory Federal corporate tax is 34%.  The decrease in income
tax expense was primarily due to the decline in income before income taxes as well as an increase in tax exempt
income.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Factory Point Bancorp earned net income for the year ended December 31, 2006 of $4,465,000 or $1.08 per diluted share.  This compares with
$4,400,000 or $1.06 per diluted share, earned during the year ended December 31, 2005.  For the year ended December 31, 2004, earnings were
$3,758,000 or $0.90 per diluted share.

Return on average assets for the year ended December 31, 2006 was 1.35%, compared to 1.41% for 2005 and 1.23% for 2004.  Factory Point
Bancorp�s return on average equity for the year ended December 31, 2006 was 16.29% compared to 16.88% and 15.27% for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The following table sets forth certain information relating to Factory Point Bancorp�s average earning assets and average
interest-bearing liabilities for the years indicated.  The yields and rates were derived by dividing tax equivalent interest income or
interest expense by the average balance of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the years shown.

Statutory tax rates were used to calculate tax-exempt income on a tax equivalent basis.  Average balances were computed based on
average daily balances.  Non-accruing loans have been included in loan balances.  The yield on securities available for sale is computed
based upon amortized cost.
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2006 2005 2004

AVERAGE
BALANCE

INTEREST/
INCOME
EXPENSE

AVERAGE/
YIELD
RATE

AVERAGE
BALANCE

INTEREST/
INCOME
EXPENSE

AVERAGE/
YIELD
RATE

AVERAGE
BALANCE

INTEREST/
INCOME
EXPENSE

AVERAGE/
YIELD
RATE

EARNING
ASSETS:
SECURITIES
AVAILABLE
FOR SALE $ 89,840,784 $ 4,497,290 5.01 %$ 78,576,848 $ 3,593,469 4.57 %$ 81,855,395 $ 3,356,603 4.10 %
LOANS 219,123,226 16,409,360 7.49 205,934,431 13,313,513 6.46 200,816,711 10,828,661 5.39
OTHER SHORT
TERM
INVESTMENTS 212,777 9,863 4.64 4,086,911 125,794 3.08 2,280,015 38,612 1.69

TOTAL
EARNING
ASSETS 309,176,787 20,916,513 6.77 %288,598,190 17,032,776 5.90 %284,952,121 14,223,876 4.99 %

CASH & DUE
FROM BANKS 10,106,493 12,391,049 12,153,176
ALLOWANCE
FOR LOAN
LOSSES (3,984,963 ) (3,288,882 ) (3,608,684 )
OTHER ASSETS 14,820,580 13,303,931 13,036,455
TOTAL ASSETS $ 330,118,897 $ 311,004,288 $ 306,533,068

INTEREST
BEARING
LIABILITIES:
NOW
ACCOUNTS $ 64,727,394 $ 673,427 1.04 %$ 64,111,655 $ 393,254 0.61 %$ 61,310,187 $ 195,361 0.32 %
MONEY
MARKETS 55,855,347 1,401,373 2.51 68,154,556 946,834 1.39 72,095,794 658,579 0.91
REGULAR
SAVINGS 19,914,530 126,068 0.63 22,023,679 113,236 0.51 21,320,221 75,528 0.35
TIME DEPOSITS
> $100M 21,600,292 1,085,696 5.03 17,128,947 470,706 2.75 15,418,542 278,642 1.81
TIME DEPOSITS
< $100M 55,566,562 1,777,265 3.20 52,335,716 1,169,999 2.24 53,366,738 889,711 1.67
LONG TERM
BORROWINGS 358,834 9,072 2.53 369,158 9,359 2.54 379,142 9,667 2.55
OTHER SHORT
TERM
BORROWINGS 39,021,852 1,934,120 4.96 14,502,980 473,587 3.27 13,510,235 181,373 1.34

TOTAL
INTEREST
BEARING
LIABILITIES 257,044,811 7,007,021 2.73 %238,626,691 3,576,975 1.50 %237,400,859 2,288,861 0.96 %

DEMAND
DEPOSITS 43,245,506 44,165,397 42,446,166
OTHER
LIABILITIES 2,407,824 2,146,680 2,080,273
EQUITY 27,420,756 26,065,520 24,605,770
TOTAL
LIABILITIES &
EQUITY $ 330,118,897 $ 311,004,288 $ 306,533,068

NET INTEREST
INCOME $ 13,909,492 $ 13,455,801 $ 11,935,015

INTEREST RATE
SPREAD 4.04 % 4.40 % 4.03 %

NET INTEREST
MARGIN 4.50 % 4.66 % 4.19 %
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The following tables set forth the effects of changing rates and volumes on Factory Point Bancorp�s net interest income.  The rate column shows
the effects attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume).  The volume column shows the effects attributable to
changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate).  Changes due to both volume and rate have been allocated proportionally to the
volume and rate changes. The net column represents the sum of the prior columns.

2006 Compared to 2005
(Dollars in thousands) Volume Rate Net
Interest income:
Loans $ 853 $ 2,243 $ 3,096
Securities available for sale 515 389 904
Other short term investments (119 ) 3 (116 )
Total 1,249 2,635 3,884

Interest expense:
Deposits 17 1,953 1,970
Borrowings 1,012 448 1,460
Total 1,029 2,401 3,430
Increase in net interest income $ 220 $ 234 $ 454

2005 Compared to 2004
(Dollars in thousands) Volume Rate Net
Interest income:
Loans $ 276 $ 2,209 $ 2,485
Securities available for sale (134 ) 371 237
Other short term investments 31 57 87
Total 172 2,637 2,809

Interest expense:
Deposits (11 ) 1,007 996
Borrowings 21 271 292
Total 10 1,278 1,288
Increase in net interest income $ 162 $ 1,359 $ 1,521

Net Interest Income.  Net interest income is the difference between interest income on earning assets and interest
expense on interest-bearing liabilities.  Net interest income on a tax equivalent basis for the year ended December 31,
2006 was $13,909,000, an increase of $454,000, or 3.37%, when compared to the year ended December 31, 2005
when net interest income on a tax equivalent basis was $13,456,000.  Average earning assets increased $20,579,000
from the 2005 average balance of $288,598,000 to an average balance of $309,177,000 in 2006.  For the year ended
December 31, 2004 net interest income on a tax equivalent basis was $11,935,000.  Comparing 2005 and 2004, net
interest income on a tax equivalent basis increased $1,521,000 or 12.74%.

As general interest rate levels continued to climb throughout the last year, the yield on earning assets improved as well from 5.90% in 2005 to
6.77% in 2006.  Offsetting the increase in the yields on earning assets, was the increase in the overall cost of funds in 2006, due primarily to our
higher short term borrowing levels, the increased interest rate environment impacting all deposit categories and the shift in the deposit base to
higher cost funds.  Our cost of interest bearing liabilities increased 123 basis points from 1.50% in 2005 to 2.73% in 2006.  As a result, Factory
Point Bancorp�s net interest margin ended the year at 4.50% compared to 4.66% as of 2005.  From 2004 to 2005, the net interest margin
increased 47 basis points.

Provision for Loan Losses.  Factory Point Bancorp establishes a provision for loan losses, which is charged to earnings, to
maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level that is adequate given the estimate the inherent risk of loss in the loan
portfolio.  The provision for loan losses was $390,000 in 2006, compared to $780,000 in 2005 and $630,000 in 2004. 
In 2006, the provision for loan losses declined from 2005 primarily due to the net loan recoveries experienced in 2006
of $124,000 compared to the net loan charge offs experienced in 2005 of $72,000, as well as the continued changing
mix of the loan portfolio with lower credit risk loan types such as residential loans increasing as a percentage of total
loans, partially offset by an increase in non-performing loans.  In
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2005, the provision for loan losses increased from 2004 primarily due to growth in the loan portfolio and an increase in non-performing loans,
offset by a decrease in net loan charge offs.

Non-Interest Income.  Non-interest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 amounted to $3,104,000, compared to
$3,302,000 and $2,976,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  Non-interest income is
comprised primarily of trust service fees, service charges on deposit accounts, other service charges, net gains on sales
of residential loans, and net gains on sales of investments.  In 2005, Factory Point Bancorp realized a pre-tax gain of
$377,000 on life insurance proceeds.  Adjusting for this unusual item as well as net securities gains and losses,
non-interest income for 2006, 2005, and 2004 would have been $3,104,000, $2,925,000, and $2,976,000, respectively.

Trust service fees include fees associated with the Trust and Investment Group as well as fees from brokerage services.  Total trust service fees
increased 5.87% in 2006 to $1,191,000 from $1,125,000 in 2005.  During 2004, trust service fees totaled $940,000.  Those increases were
primarily due to an increase in fees associated with our brokerage services.  In late 2004, the bank began offering brokerage services in
partnership with UVEST.

Service charges on deposit accounts amounted to $1,128,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to $1,001,000 in 2005.  The 2006
increase was primarily due to an increase in fees charged for certain deposit account services.  In 2004, service charges on deposit accounts were
$992,000.

Throughout 2006, Factory Point Bancorp continued to originate and sell loans in the secondary market.  Net gains on sales of residential loans
amounted to $127,000 in 2006, $242,000 in 2005, and $276,000 in 2004.  As interest rates continued to climb in 2006, Factory Point Bancorp
experienced a slow down in mortgage originations and refinancing.  Factory Point Bancorp�s practice is to sell fixed rate residential mortgage
loan originations.

In 2006, Factory Point Bancorp did not realize any gains or losses on securities.  Factory Point Bancorp realized losses of $45,000 in 2005 and
gains of $167,000 in 2004.

Non-Interest Expense.  Total non-interest expenses for the year 2006 amounted to $9,890,000, an increase of $437,000
from total non-interest expenses of $9,453,000 for 2005.  For the year ended December 31, 2004 total non-interest
expenses were $8,704,000.

The major components of non-interest expenses are salaries and benefits expense, occupancy & equipment expenses, and other operating
expenses.

Salary and benefits expenses were $5,148,000 for 2006, up 2.73% from $5,011,000 for 2005.  For 2005 salaries and benefits were up 3.19%
over the 2004-expense level of $4,856,000.  The increases are primarily attributable to annual salary increases and increased health insurance
costs.

Other expenses are comprised primarily of the following: advertising, courier expenses, consulting fees, FDIC insurance assessments, supplies
expense, postage and the Vermont franchise tax.  In total, other expenses were $3,009,000 for 2006, up $130,000 or 4.52% from $2,879,000 in
2005.  Other expenses for 2005 were up $385,000 or 15.44% from 2004 at $2,494,000.  The increase from 2004 to 2005 was primarily due to an
increase in consulting fees, advertising and contributions.

Income Tax Expense.  For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, income
tax expense amounted to $1,552,600, $1,510,400 and $1,292,100, respectively. 
Factory Point Bancorp�s statutory Federal corporate tax is 34%.  The increase
in income tax expense from 2005 to 2006, as well as from 2004 to 2005, was
primarily due to increased income before income taxes.  The Company�s
effective tax rate was consistent each year at 25.8%, 25.6% and 25.6% for
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Capital Resources

Shareholders� Equity.  Shareholders� equity at December 31, 2006 was $28,824,000, an increase of $1,879,000 or 6.97%
from the $26,945,000 at December 31, 2005.  The overall increase is primarily due to earnings
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that were retained to fund future growth.  Shareholders� equity as a percentage of total assets was 8.47% and 8.43% at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively.  Book value per common share was $7.08 at December 31, 2006, compared to $6.61 at December 31, 2005.

Capital provides the foundation for future growth and profitability for Factory Point Bancorp.  At December 31, 2006, Factory Point Bancorp�s
leverage ratio was 8.18% versus 8.12% at December 31, 2005.  The Tier 1 Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio at December 31, 2006 was
11.74% compared to 11.92% at December 31, 2005.  At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the total capital to risk-weighted assets ratio was 12.99%
and 13.17%, respectively.  All ratios exceed regulatory minimum levels, and place Factory Point National Bank in the �well-capitalized� category
according to regulatory standards.

Credit Risk

Management reviews the allowance for loan losses quarterly and makes provisions for loan losses, when necessary, in order to maintain the
adequacy of the allowance. Management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate to cover risks inherent in Factory Point Bancorp�s
loan portfolio at December 31, 2006 and 2005.  However, there can be no assurance that Factory Point Bancorp will not have to increase its
provision for loan losses in the future as a result of changes in economic conditions or for other reasons, which could adversely affect both the
estimates made by management and Factory Point Bancorp�s results of operations.

Asset Quality.  Non-performing loans consist of nonaccrual loans of $1,052,000 at December 31, 2006 and $708,000 at
December 31, 2005.  This represents an increase of $344,000.  Increases in nonaccrual loans were evident in the
commercial, commercial real-estate, and home equity loan portfolios while consumer and residential real estate non
accrual loans declined.

Non-performing loans to total loans as of December 31, 2006 was 0.46% compared to 0.34% at December 31, 2005.  Non-performing assets as a
percentage of total assets at December 31, 2006 was 0.31% compared to 0.25% at December 31, 2005.

The table below sets forth the amounts and categories of Factory Point Bancorp�s non-performing assets at the respective balance sheet dates:

At December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Loans accruing, but past due 90 days or more $ � $ � $ � $ � $ �
Total non accrual loans 1,052 708 448 1,865 1,564
Restructured loans � � � � �

Total non-performing loans 1,052 708 448 1,865 1,564
Foreclosed real estate � 93 57 � �
Total non-performing assets $ 1,052 $ 801 $ 505 $ 1,865 $ 1,564

Non-performing loans as a percentage of total loans 0.46 % 0.34 % 0.22 % 0.96 % 0.90 %

Non-performing assets as a percentage of total assets 0.31 % 0.25 % 0.17 % 0.61 % 0.54 %

Interest income that would have been recorded for the year ended December 31, 2006 had nonaccruing loans been current according to their
original terms was $131,000, of which $86,000 was included in interest income.

Allowance for Loan Losses.  Factory Point Bancorp assumes lending and credit risks as a principal element of business,
and anticipates that credit losses will be experienced in the normal course of business.
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Accordingly, management makes a quarterly determination as to an appropriate provision from earnings necessary to maintain an allowance for
loan losses that is adequate given the estimate of the inherent risk of loss in Factory Point Bancorp�s loan portfolio.  Management�s evaluation is
based upon a continuing review of the loan portfolio as discussed above.  The balance in the allowance for loan losses was $4,132,000, or 1.80%
of total loans at December 31, 2006, compared to $3,618,000, or 1.72% of total loans at December 31, 2005.

The following table summarizes the activity for the past five years in the allowance for loan losses:

For the years ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Balance at beginning of year: $ 3,618 $ 2,910 $ 3,385 $ 3,239 $ 3,035

Loan charge-offs:
Commercial 108 241 1,102 439 312
Real estate-mortgage � � � 15 10
Consumer 44 47 44 54 115

Total charge-offs 152 288 1,146 508 437

Loan recoveries:
Commercial 234 204 8 28 20
Real estate-mortgage � � � 1 �
Consumer 42 12 33 25 21

Total recoveries 276 216 41 54 41
Net recoveries, charge-offs (124 ) 72 1,105 454 396
Provision for loan losses 390 780 630 600 600

Balance at end of year: $ 4,132 $ 3,618 $ 2,910 $ 3,385 $ 3,239

Total loans outstanding 229,666 210,288 204,145 193,348 173,476

As a percent of total loans
Net charge-offs (0.05 %) 0.03 % 0.54 % 0.23 % 0.23 %
Provision for loan losses 0.17 % 0.37 % 0.31 % 0.31 % 0.35 %

Allowance as a percent of each of the following:
Total loans 1.80 % 1.72 % 1.43 % 1.75 % 1.87 %
Total non-performing loans 392.78 % 511.02 % 649.55 % 181.50 % 207.10 %

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the allowance for loan losses by loan category at the dates indicated:

At December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Amount

% of
Loans in
Category
to Total
Loans Amount

% of
Loans in
Category
to Total
Loans Amount

% of
Loans in
Category
to Total
Loans Amount

% of
Loans in
Category
to Total
Loans Amount

% of
Loans in
Category
to Total
Loans

Residential real estate $ 813 38.9 % $ 442 34.0 % $ 459 34.8 % $ 597 33.6 % $ 430 33.7 %
Commercial and
commercial real estate 2,556 56.0 2,455 58.9 1,753 58.8 2,093 59.8 2,031 57.6
Construction 265 2.3 235 2.2 210 1.9 200 1.8 260 3.1
Consumer 78 2.8 96 4.9 88 4.5 110 4.8 122 5.6
Total 3,712 100.00 % 3,228 100.00 % 2,510 100.00 % 3,000 100.00 % 2,843 100.00 %
Unallocated 420 390 400 385 396
Total allowance for loan
losses $ 4,132 $ 3,618 $ 2,910 $ 3,385 $ 3,239
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and rates.  Factory Point Bancorp utilizes an Asset Liability Committee
(the �ALCO�), which meets quarterly, to review Factory Point Bancorp�s interest rate sensitivity on an ongoing basis and prepare strategies to limit
exposure to interest rate risk.  The principal objective of the ALCO is to maximize Factory Point Bancorp�s net interest income while maintaining
a level of risk appropriate given Factory Point Bancorp�s business focus, operating environment, capital, and liquidity requirements and
performance objectives.  The ALCO also reviews Factory Point Bancorp�s liquidity, capital position, cash flow needs, maturities of investments,
deposits and borrowings and current market conditions and interest rates.   Management meets weekly to make pricing and funding decisions
with respect to Factory Point Bancorp�s retail deposits and selected consumer loans.

Factory Point Bancorp�s primary monitoring tool is an asset/liability simulation model, which is prepared quarterly.  Factory Point Bancorp
examines changes to net interest income assuming rising or falling interest rate levels.

Liquidity Risk

Managing liquidity involves meeting the day-to-day needs of depositors and borrowers, taking advantage of investment opportunities, and
providing a cushion against unforeseen cash flow needs.

Sources of liquidity for Factory Point Bancorp include short-term investments, securities available-for-sale, maturing and repaying loans, and
monthly cash flows from mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations.  The loan portfolio provides an additional source
of liquidity due to Factory Point Bancorp�s participation in the secondary mortgage market and the ability to sell loans as necessary.  Factory
Point Bancorp also meets its liquidity needs by attracting deposits and utilizing borrowing arrangements with the Federal Home Loan Bank (the
�FHLB�) of Boston for both short-term and long-term borrowings.

Factory Point Bancorp has a $2.76 million line of credit available from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston with no outstanding balance as
of December 31, 2006.

Factory Point Bancorp�s sources of liquidity are deemed by management to be sufficient to fund outstanding loan commitments and meet other
obligations.

Stock Ownership

The table below provides certain information about beneficial ownership of Factory Point Bancorp common stock as of May 31, 2007.  The
table shows information for:

•  Each person, or group of affiliated person, who is known to Factory Point Bancorp to beneficially own more
than 5% of Factory Point Bancorp�s common stock;

•  Each of Factory Point Bancorp�s directors;

•  Each of Factory Point Bancorp�s executive officers; and

•  All of Factory Point Bancorp�s directors and executive officers as a group.
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Except as otherwise noted, the persons or entities in this table have sole voting and investing power with respect to all shares of common stock
beneficially owned by them, subject to community property laws, where applicable.  The address of each person is care of Factory Point
Bancorp at Factory Point Bancorp�s principal executive office.

Name

Number of
Shares Owned
(Excluding Options)

Number of Shares That
May Be Acquired
Within 60 Days by
Exercising Options

Percent of Total
Common Stock
Outstanding(1)

Paul J. Beaulieu 47,828 46,089 2.26 %
Guy H. Boyer 51,904 102,444 3.67
Robert E. Buzzell, Jr. 14,377 8,582 *
Edgar T. Campbell 22,974 10,013 *
Tyler Dann 369,279 8,582 9.18
John R. Hand 26,361 7,151 *
Tamara E. Heaton 6,182 3,984 *
Susan M. Hill 29,597 � *
Timothy J. Kononan 3,141 2,033 *
Katherine P. Mosenthal 2,306 6,271 *
Michael A. Powers 54,546 11,444 1.60
Sheri A. Savage 3,175 7,977 *
Daniel X. Stannard, Jr. 19,388 19,765 *
David S. Wolk 3,612 5,720 *
Total directors and executive officers as a group
(14 persons) 654,670 240,055 20.59

*  less than 1%

(1)  Based on 4,105,765 shares of Factory Point Bancorp common stock outstanding on May 31, 2007 plus, for
each person, the number of shares that such person may acquire within 60 days of such date by exercising stock
options.
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ADJOURNMENT OF THE SPECIAL MEETINGS

If there are not sufficient votes to constitute a quorum or to approve the merger agreement at the time of the Factory Point Bancorp special
meeting, the merger agreement cannot be approved unless the Factory Point Bancorp special meeting is adjourned to a later date or dates to
permit further solicitation of proxies.  To allow proxies that have been received by Factory Point Bancorp at the time of the special meeting to be
voted for an adjournment, if deemed necessary, Factory Point Bancorp has submitted the question of adjournment to its shareholders as a
separate matter for their consideration. The board of directors of Factory Point Bancorp unanimously recommends that shareholders vote �FOR�
the adjournment proposal. If it is deemed necessary to adjourn the special meeting, no notice of the adjourned meeting is required to be given to
shareholders, other than an announcement at the meeting of the place, date and time to which the meeting is adjourned.

If there are not sufficient votes to constitute a quorum or to approve the merger agreement at the time of the Berkshire Hills Bancorp special
meeting, the merger agreement cannot be approved unless the Berkshire Hills Bancorp special meeting is adjourned to a later date or dates to
permit further solicitation of proxies.  To allow proxies that have been received by Berkshire Hills Bancorp at the time of the special meeting to
be voted for an adjournment, if deemed necessary, Berkshire Hills Bancorp has submitted the question of adjournment to its shareholders as a
separate matter for their consideration. The board of directors of Berkshire Hills Bancorp unanimously recommends that shareholders vote �FOR�
the adjournment proposal. If it is deemed necessary to adjourn the special meeting, no notice of the adjourned meeting is required to be given to
shareholders, other than an announcement at the meeting of the place, date and time to which the meeting is adjourned.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock to be issued in the proposed merger has been passed upon for Berkshire Hills
Bancorp by Muldoon Murphy & Aguggia LLP, Washington, D.C.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of Berkshire Hills Bancorp as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2006 have been incorporated by reference to this joint proxy statement/prospectus in reliance upon the report of
Wolf & Company, P.C., independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing therein, and upon the authority of said
firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements of Factory Point Bancorp as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2006 have been included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus in reliance upon the report of KPMG LLP,
independent auditors, as stated in their report appearing herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

Factory Point Bancorp will hold its 2008 annual meeting only if the merger is not completed.  Factory Point Bancorp�s bylaws provide that in
order for a shareholder to make nominations for the election of directors or proposals for business to be brought before the annual meeting, a
shareholder must deliver notice of such nominations and/or proposals to the Secretary of Factory Point Bancorp at least 75 but no more than 100
days before the anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting.  Factory Point Bancorp�s last annual meeting was held on May
15, 2007.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Berkshire Hills Bancorp filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a registration statement on Form S-4 under the Securities Act to
register the shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock to be issued to Factory Point Bancorp shareholders in the merger. This joint proxy
statement/prospectus is a part of that registration statement and constitutes a prospectus of Berkshire Hills Bancorp, a proxy statement of
Berkshire Hills Bancorp for its special meeting and a proxy statement of Factory Point Bancorp for its special meeting. As permitted by the
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Securities and Exchange Commission rules, this joint proxy statement/prospectus does not contain all of the information that you can find in the
registration statement or in the exhibits to the registration statement.  The additional information may be inspected and copied as set forth above.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.  These filings are available to the public over the Internet at the Securities and Exchange Commission�s website at www.sec.gov.
You may also read and copy any document Berkshire Hills Bancorp files with the Securities and Exchange Commission at its public reference
room located at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington D.C. 20549. Copies of these documents also can be obtained at prescribed rates by
writing to the Public Reference Section of the Securities and Exchange Commission, at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington D.C. 20549
or by calling 1-800-SEC-0330 for additional information on the operation of the public reference facilities.

The Securities and Exchange Commission allows Berkshire Hills Bancorp to �incorporate by reference� information into this joint proxy
statement/prospectus.  This means that Berkshire Hills Bancorp can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document
filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  The information incorporated by reference is deemed to be part of this
document, except for any information superseded by information contained directly in this document.  This document incorporates by reference
the other documents that are listed below that Berkshire Hills Bancorp has previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and
additional documents that Berkshire Hills Bancorp files with the Securities and Exchange Commission between the date of this joint proxy
statement/prospectus and the date of the Berkshire Hills Bancorp shareholder meeting.  These documents contain important information about
Berkshire Hills Bancorp�s financial condition.

BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP FILINGS (FILE NO. 000-51584)

Filings Period of Report or Date Filed
• Annual Report on Form 10-K Year ended December 31, 2006

• Quarterly Report Form 10-Q Quarter ended March 31, 2007

• Current Reports on Form 8-K March 16, 2007, April 11, 2007, April 24, 2007, May 4, 2007
and May 15, 2007 (other than information furnished under
Regulation FD)

• The description of Berkshire common stock set
forth in the Registration Statement on Form 8-A
filed October 25, 2005, which incorporates by
reference the portion of the �Description of
Berkshire Hills Stock� contained in Berkshire Hills
Bancorp�s prospectus filed pursuant to
Rule 424(b)(3) on May 26, 2000.

Documents incorporated by reference are available from Berkshire Hills Bancorp without charge (except for exhibits to the documents unless
the exhibits are specifically incorporated in this document by reference).  You may obtain documents incorporated by reference in this document
by requesting them in writing or by telephone from Berkshire Hills Bancorp at the following address:

Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc.
24 North Street
Pittsfield, Massachusetts 01201
Attention: Ann-Marie Racine, Investor Relations
Telephone: (413) 236-3239

If you would like to request documents from Berkshire Hills Bancorp, please do so by ________________, 2007 to receive them before each
company�s meeting of shareholders.  If you request any incorporated documents, Berkshire Hills Bancorp will mail them to you by first-class
mail, or other equally prompt means, within one business day of its receipt of your request.
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Berkshire Hills Bancorp incorporates by reference additional documents that it may file with the Securities and Exchange Commission between
the date of this document and the date of the special meetings.  These documents include periodic reports, such as annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K (other than information furnished under Items 2.02 or 7.01 of Form 8-K), as
well as proxy statements.

Berkshire Hills Bancorp has supplied all information contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus relating to Berkshire Hills Bancorp, and
Factory Point Bancorp has supplied all information relating to Factory Point Bancorp.

You should rely only on the information contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus when evaluating the merger agreement and
the proposed merger. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with information that is different from what is contained in this
joint proxy statement/prospectus.  This joint proxy statement/prospectus is dated _________________, 2007.  You should not assume
that the information contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus is accurate as of any date other than such date, and neither the
mailing of this joint proxy statement/prospectus to shareholders of Factory Point Bancorp or Berkshire Hills Bancorp nor the issuance
of shares of Berkshire Hills Bancorp common stock as contemplated by the merger agreement shall create any implication to the
contrary.
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FACTORY POINT BANCORP, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006

(unaudited)

Assets 3/31/2007 12/31/2006
Cash and due from banks $ 7,727,690 $ 9,143,850
Other short-term investments 5,364,033 194,862
Cash and cash equivalents 13,091,723 9,338,712
Loans held for sale 650,492 601,987
Securities available for sale, at fair value 85,941,731 89,090,111
Net loans receivable 223,901,467 225,533,774
Bank premises and equipment, net 5,462,661 5,561,245
Accrued interest receivable 1,947,961 1,912,376
Goodwill 2,298,707 2,298,707
Bank owned life insurance 3,784,588 3,708,996
Other assets 2,298,822 2,453,205
Total assets $ 339,378,152 $ 340,499,113

Liabilities and Shareholders� Equity
Liabilities:
Deposits:
Demand deposits $ 44,649,962 $ 50,631,815
Savings, N.O.W., and money market 146,509,344 135,391,290
Time deposits under $100,000 57,703,955 58,458,891
Time deposits $100,000 and greater 25,704,011 25,484,924
Total deposits 274,567,272 269,966,920
Short-term borrowings:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 20,348,845 19,872,086
Borrowings from FHLB Boston 6,000,000 17,500,000
Borrowings from U.S. Treasury 852,927 1,305,078
Total short-term borrowings 27,201,772 38,677,164
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,704,431 2,677,828
Long-term borrowings:
Borrowings from FHLB Boston 5,350,595 353,286
Total liabilities 309,824,070 311,675,198

Shareholders� equity:
Common stock, $1.00 par value; 6,000,000 shares authorized at March 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, respectively; 4,102,610 shares issued at March 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, respectively 4,102,610 4,102,610
Paid-in capital 18,730,731 18,734,232
Retained earnings 6,985,729 6,698,736
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (130,504 ) (292,387 )
Treasury stock, at cost (9,199 and 28,698 shares at March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006,
respectively) (134,483 ) (419,276 )
Total shareholders� equity 29,554,083 28,823,915
Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 339,378,152 $ 340,499,113

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated interim financial statements.
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FACTORY POINT BANCORP, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Income

Quarters ended March 31, 2007 and 2006

(unaudited)

2007 2006
Interest and dividend income:
Interest and fees on loans $ 4,263,078 $ 3,747,901
Securities available for sale 975,686 939,112
Other short-term investments 4,267 1,842
Total interest and dividend income 5,243,031 4,688,855
Interest expense:
Savings, NOW, and money market accounts 662,247 456,301
Time deposits $100 thousand and greater 353,269 227,323
Other time deposits 524,535 348,666
Short-term borrowings 485,494 329,416
Long-term debt 25,572 2,268
Total interest expense 2,051,117 1,363,974
Net interest income 3,191,914 3,324,881
Provision for loan losses � 195,000
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 3,191,914 3,129,881
Noninterest income:
Trust service fees 328,575 290,643
Service charges on deposit accounts 317,165 257,914
Other service charges 137,602 131,679
Net gain on sale of loans 28,438 21,857
Other 77,264 48,060
Total noninterest income 889,044 750,171
Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and wages 982,926 901,437
Employee benefits 406,799 330,923
Occupancy expenses 189,176 159,289
Equipment expenses 284,796 259,512
Other 781,224 759,208
Total noninterest expenses 2,644,921 2,410,369
Income before income taxes 1,436,037 1,469,683
Income tax expense 357,200 397,300
Net income $ 1,078,837 $ 1,072,383
Basic earnings per share $ 0.26 $ 0.26
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.26 $ 0.26

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated interim financial statements.
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FACTORY POINT BANCORP, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Quarters ended March 31, 2007, and 2006

(unaudited)

2007 2006
Increase in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 1,078,837 $ 1,072,383
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation of bank premises and equipment 204,978 172,128
Stock option compensation expense 51,786 8,100
Amortization of restricted stock 10,701 18,046
Provision for loan losses � 195,000
Net amortization of premiums and on securities 34,566 52,214
Net gain on sale of loans (28,438 ) (21,857 )
Loans originated for sale (1,853,417 ) (2,339,336 )
Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale 1,833,349 2,387,237
Net gain on sale of other real estate owned � (59,020 )
Net (increase) decrease in cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance (75,592 ) 36,742
Net increase in accrued interest receivable (35,585 ) (175,179 )
Net decrease in other assets 70,989 40,499
Net increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities 26,603 (128,303 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,318,777 1,258,654
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturity and paydowns of securities available for sale 3,424,991 2,164,558
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 175,100 �
Purchases of securities available for sale (241,000 ) (8,353,970 )
Net loans repaid by (made to) customers 1,632,307 (2,553,195 )
Capital expenditures (106,394 ) (667,575 )
Proceeds from sale on other real estate owned � 151,954
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 4,885,004 (9,258,228 )

continued
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FACTORY POINT BANCORP, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Quarters ended March 31, 2007, and 2006 (continued)

(unaudited)

2007 2006
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits $ 4,600,352 $ (5,876,054 )
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowings from FHLB Boston (11,500,000 ) 15,000,000
Repayments of long-term borrowings from FHLB Boston (2,691 ) (2,626 )
Proceeds from long-term borrowings from FHLB Boston 5,000,000 �
Net increase in securities sold under agreements to repurchase 476,759 364,873
Net decrease in borrowings from U.S. Treasury (452,151 ) (517,970 )
Dividends (692,566 ) (611,134 )
Purchase of treasury stock � (208,078 )
Issuance of treasury stock related to exercise of stock options 119,527 113,991
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (2,450,770 ) 8,263,002
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,753,011 263,428
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 9,338,712 12,635,890
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 13,091,723 $ 12,899,318
Additional disclosures relative to cash flows:
Interest paid $ 1,972,596 $ 1,326,504
Taxes paid � 85,000
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities:
Adjustment of securities available for sale to fair value, net of tax 161,883 (455,072 )

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated interim financial statements.

F-4

Edgar Filing: BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC - Form S-4

Liquidity Risk 164



Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

Note 1 � Organization

Factory Point Bancorp, Inc., is a publicly-held, one-bank holding company whose wholly-owned subsidiary, The Factory Point National Bank of
Manchester Center (�Factory Point National Bank�), maintains its corporate offices in Manchester Center, Vermont.  Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.
is incorporated in the state of Delaware.  Its subsidiary, Factory Point National Bank, is regulated by the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency.  Factory Point National Bank operates seven full-service community banking offices in Arlington, Dorset, Ludlow, Manchester, and
Rutland, Vermont.  Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.�s primary product lines include residential real estate lending (for portfolio and sale in the
secondary market), small business loan and deposit services as well as a variety of consumer loan and deposit services.  Factory Point National
Bank is chartered with trust powers and offers trust and investment services in the markets it serves.

Note 2 � Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated interim financial statements of the Factory Point Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary (the �Company�)
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and general practices within the banking industry. The
Company utilizes the accrual method of accounting for financial reporting purposes.  The results of operations for the interim periods presented
are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year.

The preparation of the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenue and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The unaudited consolidated interim financial statements include the accounts of Factory Point Bancorp, Inc. and Factory Point National Bank, its
wholly owned subsidiary. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.  All adjustments are of a normal
recurring nature.  Prior period amounts are reclassified whenever necessary to conform to the current period presentation.

Note 3 � Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or
other contracts to issue common stock (such as the Company�s stock options) were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the
issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the entity.
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Quarter Ended
31-Mar-07 31-Mar-06

Net income $ 1,078,837 $ 1,072,383
Weighted average common shares outstanding 4,077,448 4,075,922
Dilutive effect of potential common shares related to stock based compensation plans 62,420 81,564
Weighted average common shares including potential dilution 4,139,868 4,157,486

Basic earnings per share $ 0.26 $ 0.26
Diluted earnings per share 0.26 0.26

There were 8,045 and 183 anti-dilutive stock options outstanding at March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Note 4 � Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (In thousands)

Comprehensive (loss) income represents the sum of net income and items of �other comprehensive (loss) income� which are reported directly in
shareholders� equity, such as the net unrealized gain or loss on securities available for sale.

The Company�s accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss), which is included in shareholders� equity, represents the after-tax net unrealized
(loss) gain on securities available for sale at the consolidated balance sheet date. The Company�s other comprehensive (loss) income, which is
attributable to unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale during the respective periods, consisted of the following amounts for
the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006

Net unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period, net of taxes of $83,394
in 2007 and ($234,431) in 2006 $ 161,883 $ (455,072 )

Total comprehensive income for the quarters ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 was $1,240,720 and $617,311, respectively.

Note 5 � Guarantees

Factory Point National Bank does not issue any guarantees that would require liability-recognition or disclosure, other than its standby letters of
credit.  Standby and other letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third
party.  Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public or private borrowing arrangements, including bond financing and similar
transactions.  The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. 
Typically, these instruments have terms of twelve months or less.  Some expire unused, and therefore, the total amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements.

For letters of credit, the amount of the collateral obtained, if any, is based on management�s credit evaluation of the counter-party.   Factory Point
National Bank had approximately $888,000 of standby letters of credit on March 31, 2007 and $557,000 on December 31, 2006, most of which
will expire within one year.  All the letters of credit were for private borrowing arrangements.  The fair value of standby letters of credit at
March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was not significant.
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Note 6 � Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes � an Interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109� (FIN 48).  The adoption of FIN 48 did not result in an increase or decrease to the Company�s income tax liability.  The
Company�s accounting policy calls for any interest expense and/or penalties related to any underpayment of income taxes to be recorded as a
component of the provision for income taxes.  There was no accrual for interest expense or penalties at December 31, 2006 or at March 31,
2007.

Note 7 � Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FASB Statement No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (FAS No. 157) issued in September 2006, defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in United States generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements.  FAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, the Board having
previously concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute.  The provisions of FAS No. 157
are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The adoption of this standard is not expected to
have a material effect on the Company�s results of operations or financial position.

FASB Statement No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities� (FAS No. 159) issued in February 2007, permits
entities to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates.  A business entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on
items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings (or another performance indicator if the business entity does not report
earnings) at each subsequent reporting date.  The fair value option may be applied instrument by instrument, with a few exceptions, such as
investments otherwise accounted for by the equity method.  The election is irrevocable (unless a new election date occurs) and is applied only to
entire instruments and not to portions of instruments.  FAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.  The
adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material effect on the Company�s results of operations or financial position.

Note 8 � Definitive Merger Agreement

On May 15, 2007, the Company entered into a definitive merger agreement in which the Company will be acquired by Berkshire Hills Bancorp,
Inc. (Berkshire Hills) in exchange for cash and common stock of Berkshire Hills.  Berkshire Hills is a corporation based in Pittsfield,
Massachusetts and is the holding company for Berkshire Bank in Pittsfield, Massachusetts.  At the effective time of the merger, the separate
corporate existence of the Company shall cease, and Factory Point National Bank will be merged into Berkshire Bank.  The transaction is
subject to the approval of the shareholders of both companies, as well as state and federal regulatory agencies.
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Independent Auditors� Report

The Shareholders
Factory Point Bancorp, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Factory Point Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary (the Company) as of December
31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders� equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2006.  These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management.  Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Factory
Point Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

/s/ KPMG LLP

March 23, 2007, except as to note 19, which is as of June 20, 2007

Albany, NY
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FACTORY POINT BANCORP, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2006 and 2005

Assets 2006 2005
Cash and due from banks $ 9,143,850 $ 12,463,673
Other short-term investments 194,862 172,217
Cash and cash equivalents 9,338,712 12,635,890
Loans held for sale 601,987 342,080
Securities available for sale, at fair value 89,090,111 86,430,928
Net loans receivable 225,533,774 206,669,841
Bank premises and equipment, net 5,561,245 3,932,082
Accrued interest receivable 1,912,376 1,677,382
Goodwill 2,298,707 2,298,707
Bank owned life insurance 3,708,996 3,051,768
Other assets 2,453,205 2,446,687
Total assets $ 340,499,113 $ 319,485,365

Liabilities and Shareholders� Equity
Liabilities:
Deposits:
Demand deposits $ 50,631,815 $ 45,506,106
Savings, N.O.W., and money market 135,391,290 152,310,298
Time deposits under $100,000 58,458,891 53,249,608
Time deposits $100,000 and greater 25,484,924 18,935,291
Total deposits 269,966,920 270,001,303
Short-term borrowings:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 19,872,086 16,878,978
Borrowings from FHLB Boston 17,500,000 1,500,000
Borrowings from U.S. Treasury 1,305,078 1,287,261
Total short-term borrowings 38,677,164 19,666,239
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,677,828 2,509,312
Long-term borrowings:
Borrowings from FHLB Boston 353,286 363,788
Total liabilities 311,675,198 292,540,642
Commitments and contingent liabilities (note 17)
Shareholders� equity:
Common stock, $1.00 par value; 6,000,000 shares authorized at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively; 4,102,610 shares issued at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively 4,102,610 4,102,610
Paid-in capital 18,734,232 18,899,106
Retained earnings 6,698,736 4,806,242
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (292,387 ) (434,872 )
Unvested Restricted stock � (153,932 )
Treasury stock, at cost (28,692 and 24,333 shares at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively) (419,276 ) (274,431 )
Total shareholders� equity 28,823,915 26,944,723
Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 340,499,113 $ 319,485,365

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FACTORY POINT BANCORP, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

2006 2005 2004
Interest and dividend income:
Interest and fees on loans $ 16,312,291 $ 13,226,779 $ 10,753,588
Securities available for sale 3,878,622 3,065,717 2,903,851
Other short-term investments 9,863 125,794 38,612
Total interest and dividend income 20,200,776 16,418,290 13,696,051
Interest expense:
Savings, NOW, and money market accounts 2,201,078 1,453,324 929,468
Time deposits $100 thousand and greater 1,085,697 470,706 278,642
Other time deposits 1,777,055 1,169,999 889,711
Short-term borrowings 1,934,119 473,588 181,373
Long-term debt 9,072 9,358 9,667
Total interest expense 7,007,021 3,576,975 2,288,861
Net interest income 13,193,755 12,841,315 11,407,190
Provision for loan losses 390,000 780,000 630,000
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 12,803,755 12,061,315 10,777,190
Noninterest income:
Trust service fees 1,191,262 1,125,472 940,020
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,128,360 1,000,781 991,905
Other service charges 526,008 507,011 491,534
Net gain on life insurance proceeds � 376,578 �
Net gain on sale of loans 127,130 241,756 275,778
Net gain (loss) on sale of securities available for sale � (44,794 ) 166,543
Other 131,190 95,314 110,407
Total noninterest income 3,103,950 3,302,118 2,976,187
Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and wages 3,884,089 3,851,467 3,730,479
Employee benefits 1,264,210 1,159,295 1,125,528
Occupancy expenses 687,249 624,832 610,296
Equipment expenses 1,045,275 938,418 743,726
Other 3,008,811 2,878,908 2,493,662
Total noninterest expenses 9,889,634 9,452,920 8,703,691
Income before income taxes 6,018,071 5,910,513 5,049,686
Income tax expense 1,552,600 1,510,400 1,292,100
Net income $ 4,465,471 $ 4,400,113 $ 3,757,586
Basic earnings per share $ 1.10 $ 1.08 $ 0.93
Diluted earnings per share 1.08 1.06 0.90

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FACTORY POINT BANCORP, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders� Equity
Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Retained Accumulated
earnings other Unvested Total

Comprehensive Common Paid-in (accumulated comprehensive Restricted Treasury shareholders�
income stock capital deficit) (Loss) Income Stock stock equity

Balance as of December 31, 2003 2,625,851 20,271,340 837,596 570,483 � (217,573 ) 24,087,697
5 for 4 stock split (effected in the form of
a dividend) 656,339 (656,339 ) �
Fractional shares in stock split (495
shares) paid in cash (3,081 ) (3,081 )
Net income $ 3,757,586 3,757,586 3,757,586
Cash dividends ($0.49 per share) (1,973,030 ) (1,973,030 )
Purchase of 770 shares of treasury stock
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